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VISION B =

Making an impactful contribution
to build a sustainable and
environmentally friendly world.
RAFEERBEBEAER £BIRR
RERH R -

MISSION &7

To be a global market leader in resources recycling and
environmental protection, earning a quality return to
shareholders through the provision of quality products and
services, by a group of motivated and diversified staff force.
BMERZENEFEBRHEEER KRS RIKR
2HBEERRBERITENTISEEE  WARKRRER
AR D3R o

CULTURE 321k

We are committed to building a long-term and win-win X IERERF 6 FE R R 2T & 5
partnership with our customers including suppliers. EERRITHBK K-

We provide a safe workplace and career development FHfIERAE TIRELZE2H TERE
opportunities for our employees. MBEREFZHHSE -

We are devoted to achieving a quality, stable and FfIERABREMEAE BTEM
continuous return for our shareholders. P AR B3 o

We meet our corporate social responsibility, making FHFIERCELS ST AHEEREAL
continuous contributions to social well-being and — KIRIB(RETEEL BB o
environmental protection.
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A Snapshot of CEG in 2019
TE-NEFESRRERRE

We are one of the largest metal recyclers
globally, and the only listed metal recycling
corporation with major operation bases

ABOUT CEG across three continents (Asia, Europe and

Eﬁ ﬁg@%;%{% North America) in the world.
BMRE2MEANEBEWE 2 — TE2E2HRE
——REBZEEEMEMD - BIRIEEZ=TNH

thmBEeBEiE-
HONG KONG
§5§ ©Group headquarters
EEEE

©0ne of the few operators in Hong Kong
that recycles material within a closed-loop
system
EERBAZ et —EFRA MBS B
WA ESREZ —

& The first private company to obtain the Licence
to Dispose of Waste in Hong Kong for waste
electrical and electronic equipment processing
ERE—RMLECEXREREYEE MR IAGERE
ERETEM

© Largest privately owned and most diversified and
comprehensive e-waste recycling centre in Hong

Kong
EERAREASZTEEOTLEEFREY
(el Y
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A Snapshot of CEG in 2019
TE-NFESRRERERE

MAINLAND CHINA . g
aizhou production site
A 3t aMNEERS

©Engaged in aluminium ingot and copper rod foundry

business

= tmde MR EER

€ A major metal importer and domestic metal trader

IZeRENHAERNEEESE

Yantai production sites

BEatEREM

© Metal recycling operation: mainly engaged in domestic

metal trading

CBRKRER TERELBEES

&€ Waste-lubricant oil recycling operation: purification,
distillation and addition of lubricant additives to produce
lubricant base oil for lubricant oil production plants

I U EETS < FE - AR BAMRINEEHOR A AREE

S £ 2 A O R S

GERMANY

/ T

T B

&€ Operates 80 yards, including joint ventures, covering
South-West, Central and Eastern Germany
LESVETS (BRAELE) BEEEEME PR
RED

© Strongest region of operation in Scholz Group
JIE R % B2 [ N 5RO AR i b [

© Covering full scope of collection, sorting and processing
with all types of equipment including the most advanced
post-shredder material recovery technology
wEE 2 (BRRLENFEYE R O RE2 N
W g ~ 9 $8 K R 3R AR 75

Technical Equipment, excluding joint ventures
Bii&E (FTREaERE)

Shredder #) i : 5
Shears 874 # : >15
Employees & 8 : >1,400

EeRREBERAT

—E-hEFR 3



A Snapshot of CEG in 2019
TE-NFECRREBRE

USA
XE

POLAND
BB

& 7 yards, including joint ventures, in operation
EEVELS (BEAERE)

&€ 100% subsidiary and joint venture in Buffalo and Rochester
RKEH R BN R 2EFRAIRAERE

& Business model includes brokerage and yard business
(including feeder yards)

E¥BEABRERESMTHER (BHRHE™S)

& Supplier base with robust market position in selected areas
{5 E P 3R T 40 R 0 TS S5 2

Technical Equipment #17 3% &

Shredder $## - 3
Shears 3744 - 1
Employees & 8 : >240

& Operates 5 yards covering central and southern Poland,

the most industrialised and scrap rich areas

LESEATS BEAM T RERSAEENSRS

SEEEE

© Operations covering full scope of collection, sorting

and processing with all types of equipment

wEED 2ERERE2EAHRE DB REERE

Technical Equipment $ 17 =& #5

Shears BT H) % : 2
Employees /& & : >130

AUSTRIA
BR 3t 5

4  Chiho Environmental Group Limited  Annual Report 2019

& Operates 16 yards
ZiE16E TS

© Market leader for ferrous scrap trading in Austria
B EEELESEEENMISERES

& Joint venture with steel mill Voestalpine Group
IR D AVAS LSS

© Sourcing subsidiary in Hungary
2 7 &) 5F A B EREE 7 R &)

& Strong track record in project business (e.g. power
plant dismantling)
BB % (PINBEEHmFR) RBHR

Technical Equipment F /7 3%

Shredder ) : 2
Shears BT t]# : 5
Employees (& 8 : >300



A Snapshot of CEG in 2019
TE-NFESRRERERE

& 61 yards mainly situated in northern Bohemia and Prague area

CZECH REPUBLIC 98 F BAT RO A KT8 40 5P R AR R AR B K061 18 T35
B HA © 100% subsidiary
2EF AT

& Joint venture with steel mill Voestalpine Group
aER e i)k S E D VA
& A very strong market share in ferrous market (covering both old
scrap and new scrap market)
REEREMS OREERER XRERTS) TG Tish BB h R
& Business model is comparable with Germany with a dense yard
network including a large number of feeder yards and several
processing yards
BERREENERES RIS MEE  BRZEARNSRS
EmIH

Technical Equipment #2117 3% &

Shredder ¥ FEH# : 2
Shears 3741 # - 6
Employees € & : >370

SLOVENIA .
R Operates 18 yards
H 3% 4 2 25 ® eEremTs

€ 100% subsidiary
2EFRA

& Strong non-ferrous operations

FesBEGRE

© Well equipped with yard network, transportation assets
and processing capabilities to cover all suppliers (industry
and old scrap)
ERIFNTSEE EREERNTIRENABE D EH
FER (TR R ERER)

© Footprint for paper and plastic recycling
R AR KB R R

Technical Equipment % fl7 58 4% & New Leimbach shear and plastic recycling/granulation in
place since January 2020
Shredder #) i : 1 BT -THE— ARRE SRR REREE K
Shears BT 4)#% : 3 ygitir
Employees & 8 : >290

BEBREMERAR —E-hEEHR 5



A Snapshot of CEG in 2019
TE-NFECRREBRE

¢ 38 yards in operation

ROMANIA HRBELE
Joint venture with two experienced local business partners
#E e ¢ with two experienced local busir
5 HREEMEREENEBRBERIAERE

© Covering the heavily populated and well industrialized areas in
this country
BEZBEADREZEREE IR

© Market attractive due to strong supply from industry as well as
presence of old scrap

TEREMMERMEEEAN mHARSID

& Proximity to Turkey enables significant scrap exports
AR T EE AR E M OER

© High non-metals share of sales (including significant portion of
wood, paper and plastics)

B (BEAEAM RRERZB)NHERIELS

Technical Equipment #2117 5% &

Shredder ) FE# : 2
Shears 741 : 6
Employees & 8 : >600

DENMARK & 4 yards in operation
g EiBAMEAT S
€ 100% subsidiary
2EFRA
& Business model with feeder and production yards
BAEEEE RAEE TS EBER

&€ New headquarter at deep sea harbor yard in Fredericia
in fourth quarter of 2019
RIE-NFENFEERESEEATNEEO ISR
ST AR D

¢ Potential in non-metals

BRRIFCBEBHNEN
& Efficient production
mREE
Technical Equipment $: 17 5% #5

Shears 8 ] 1% : 2
Employees /& 8 : >35
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MEXICO
S

Technical Equipment F 77 3%

Shredder ¥ : 2
Shears BJ ] # : 2
Employees & & : >300

MALAYSIA
HRA D

¢ Joint venture with Heng Hup Group
HESEBKIEERE

© Engaged in the dismantling of scrap motors and other
mixed scrap metal

NEEREERIEMBEE RS SBOFE

THAILAND
S

A Snapshot of CEG in 2019
TE-NFESRRERERE

& Owns 15 yards
BEA15{E T %

© 50% joint venture with a local co-shareholder
B — A @R R HEBS0% M & &

© Strong presence in northern part of Mexico, with
strong industrial supplier base
MREFEFFILEBONTIHEE KR Y - BB TEMH

© Strong supply from industrial accounts made
operations more robust than peers in North-America
KEREZITEEZFPOHESEBLERRBILEM—
FRIFIZEE nsa &

INDIA
ENE

&€ Joint venture with Century Metal Recycling
Group (“CMR")
A Century Metal Recycling Group ([CMR |)
[DAVAC -1t S

© Engaged in the dismantling of scrap motors

and other mixed scrap metal

NEFEERIEMEE RS SBOFE

& Joint venture with Hidaka Yookoo Enterprises Co.
Limited and Suzuki Shokai Co. Limited
EiHidaka Yookoo Enterprises Co. Limited & Suzuki
Shokai Co. Limitedf 37 & &%

© To engage in the dismantling of scrap motors and
other mixed scrap metal

NEBREERLHEMBEERS SEOFE

€ To commence operation in 2020
R ZEZTFRAEE

ESRREBERAT —E-LFER



Financial Highlights

MBRRE

For the year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=+—HLEE

Increase/
(Decrease)
2019 2018 wm,
—B-NF —E-)N\F CRA)
Operating results (HK$M) KEEE(BBET)
Segment revenue 7 EBUL
Asia M 2,015.4 3,751.4 (46.3%)
Europe B 12,166.8 15,166.5 (19.8%)
North America b M 1,410.9 2,386.7 (40.9%)
Inter-segment sales o EE S & (229.7) (391.8) (41.4%)
Revenue U 5 15,363.4 20,912.8 (26.5%)
Gross profit £ 877.9 1,684.1 (47.9%)
Segment (loss)/profit AEP(E18) a
Asia M (172.3) 275.2 (162.6%)
Europe B 379.7 4435 (14.4%)
North America b =M (48.4) 8.4 (676.2%)
Unallocated KoL (45.9) 118.4 (138.8%)
Profit before interest and B ) B, K 75 I8 A1 g
tax (EBIT) 113.1 845.5 (86.6%)
Finance costs, net B ISR AN JF 5E (212.6) (376.1) (43.5%)
(Loss)/Profit before income tax BETSRLAT (B51E)
el (99.5) 469.4 (121.2%)
Income tax expense FriSfif (34.3) (70.4) (51.3%)
(Loss)/Profit for the year FRN(EBE) & F (133.8) 399.0 (133.5%)
Financial position (HK$M) MR (B8HBT)
Net cash generated from operating & & BB TSR & /F 5
activities 528.8 317.3 66.7%
Cash and pledged bank deposits Re REERRITER 976.5 1,010.7 (3.4%)
Total assets AEME 10,190.0 11,387.5 (10.5%)
Equity attributable to NN EIRR G =
shareholders of the Company 4,941.3 5,175.3 (4.5%)
Per share data (HK$) SRER (BT)
(Loss)/Earnings per share NN 8 S8
attributable to shareholders B (BE8) &BF
of the Company (0.08) 0.25 (132.1%)
Shareholders’ funds per share ERBERES 3.08 3.22 (4.3%)

8 Chiho Environmental Group Limited  Annual Report 2019



Financial Highlights
HRE

For the year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=+—HLEE

Increase/
(Decrease)
2019 2018 ®wm,/
—E-hEF —E—)\F OCRd)
Key ratios (%) FEP B E(%)
Gross profit margin ES I 5.7 8.1 (2.4)
Net profit margin’ SR % ) = (0.8) 1.9 2.7)
EBIT/Revenue RS R AR 1B A
il P 0.7 4.0 (3.3)
Return on shareholders’ funds? fi% 5 & & (o] 7R K2 (2.6) 7.8 (10.4)

Revenue in Last 5 Years

Gross Profit (Loss) and Gross Net Profit (Loss) and Net Profit

BERF KRR Profit (Loss) Margin in Last 5  (Loss) Margin in Last 5 Years
Years? BERFFRMN (BFB)R
BERAFERN (BFBE)R FomAl (| R
EF (FBE) =
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEET BEET
25,000 2,500 15% 5
600 " 5.0%
2,000 12% 400 0.0%
20,000 (©.8%)
9.7% 200 5.0%
15,000 o 3 o 0 = 100%
A 6.7% 5.7%
(200) -15.0%
1,000 6%
10,000 (400) -20.0%
500 3% (600) -25.0%
(800) -30.0%
5,000 . o
(1,000) -35.0%
-15% 2% (1200 305% 40.0%
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Asia T ™ Europe B Gross Profit/(Loss) B,/ (E518) Net Profit/(Loss) SF&F,/ (E518)
¥ North America 3t 3£ — Gross Profit/(Loss) Margin £F,/ (&) =& — Net Profit/(Loss) Margin &% (E518) &
Net profit margin is calculated as profit attributable to shareholders of the Company ! FHEAERZREARABRBEGSEFEKEOE
as a percentage of revenue DLEtE
Return on shareholders’ fund is calculated based on the profit attributable to 2 R E & Bl ] R RARIE AR R AR &R F 5 F
shareholders of the Company as a percentage of average shareholders’ funds HRRESHBEDLLTE
These figures illustrate the impact after the adoption of HKFRS 15 Revenue and HKFRS 3 REHTRRNEMNBE BN HRESEE 155 K

16 Lease for comparison purpose only.

REBMBREENFE 16RBERITE  EHLL
BZMe

BEEREMERAR —E-hEEHR 9



Chairman’s Statement
TRMS

2019 ANNUAL RESULTS

2019 has been a difficult year. The US-China trade dispute lasted
for more than a year, leaving apparent impact on the domestic and
foreign economies. The extent of influence was not limited to the two
countries involved, and the global economy began to show signs of
slowing down due to the uncertainties brought by the trade war. The
US economy was seemingly thriving, but the growth was only driven by
consumption and service industry. The US industrial activities showed
a momentary sign of recovery at first when the US adjusted the tariffs
upward, and temporarily supported the iron and steel industries in the
US, but other industries such as automobile manufacturing that use
steel, iron and aluminium as raw materials had to face the predicament
of rising costs and squeezing profits. The increased tariffs had not eased
the downturn of the traditional industries in the US, but instead showed
signs of further fall in demand.

The European economy with Germany as its key driver also showed
signs of slowdown. The EU region grew by only 0.1% in the fourth
quarter of 2019, while the German economy grew 0.6% for the
whole year in 2019, but was primarily driven by the service industry.
The German economy has been growing for the past decade, but
the growth rate began to slowdown and the export growth is on the
downturn. In view of the impact from the trade war on the supply
chain, many enterprises postponed their investment plans, and hence
orders for machineries were affected. The German automotive industry
is also facing transformation. As environmental protection is gaining
more attention in Europe, the key players in the automotive industry
need to introduce more models of new energy vehicles and to eliminate
or rebuild existing production lines. This will have short-term impact
on production and demand of scrap metal. Thankfully, the overall
unemployment rate in Europe is currently at its lowest level in the past
decade, especially in Germany where its current unemployment rate
is at historical low. This provided support for demand in the domestic
markets to a certain extent. The gradual introduction of new vehicle
models in 2020 is also expected to increase sales volume.

10 Chiho Environmental Group Limited  Annual Report 2019

“E-NEFFERE
TE-NFRBREN-F-PXBEHEFE
—FEH HEANEENTELERN S
R-EFERECNMEERBNE EH 2
BEERE S B RN N HEE LR 1 IR K
BROPR-RE L XERE-—RES ER
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P& -

LA 128 B & 457 S| 1) BUM 48 75 th 1 IR A&
TR-BEBEE T NFHUEFEEERT
01% MERKLEN _ZT—hE2FHEER
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O RMBE TR ZEDESHUHEENY
Z RELGCECHETREHE EmyET
B E ERABITE M EEREE Y
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R FES LHEEEMNAEREFIHE
EEEE - EABEAMSEHERREET —EX
FoHBAE_T_TFEEE A hERR
FHEEE -



The slowdown in industrial activities also directly affected global
demand for metals and has been indirectly reflected in the commodity
prices. The sluggish industrial activities in Europe and in the US reduced
the demand for metals, especially in the automotive industry. The
monetary easing policies in Europe, however, provided certain support
to the construction, infrastructure and real estate industries in Europe,
thereby driving some demand.

In 2019, the Group’'s shredded motor line in the US commenced
operation. This processing line collects and processes scrap motors
in the East Coast and around the Great Lakes region in the US. In
designing this processing line, the Group preserved its flexibility to the
maximum extent, as not only can it shreds scrap motors, but it also
processes scrap cables. The Group’s FMA (fine-grained metal containing
waste) processing line in Germany also has commenced commercial
operation. This processing line mainly processes shredded wastes and
waste circuit boards, and recycles the copper and precious metals
therefrom. The FMA processing line further reduced the residual wastes
which would have been landfilled or incinerated and enhanced the
recovery rate of end-of-life vehicles ("ELV"). The processing technique in
the FMA processing line was researched and developed internally over a
two year time frame, upholding our leading position in the industry in
terms of technological advancement.

2019 was also a year of business transformation. Due to the changes
under the Catalog for the Administration of the Import of Solid Wastes
promulgated by the Chinese Government, the existing scrap metal
dismantling business, such as imported scrap motors and cable scrap,
operated by the Group’s plant in Taizhou is gradually relocated to
Southeast Asian countries and other countries in the “Belt and Road”
initiative as set out in the Group’s business strategy.

The joint venture between the Group and Heng Hup Group (“Heng
Hup Group”, a leading scrap ferrous metal trader in Malaysia)
commenced production in the first half of 2019, primarily engaging in
the dismantling of scrap motors and other mixed scrap metal. The scrap
steel and scrap aluminum produced are mostly sold to the local markets
in Malaysia. Majority of the steel mills in Malaysia uses scrap steel for
production, and thus, the demand for scrap steel is relatively stable.
Copper scrap from the Malaysian joint venture is mainly exported to
China. The Malaysian joint venture is currently increasing its production.

Chairman’s Statement
FERS

IEEHNRETEZEZE T 2ReRBHER
7 fEBE R AT KR OB S £ o B T3/
FERBRETeBHF K LERAEIE-BEZ
BN EREREBUR Al ABNEE  AENE
HWETERET —EXR RmEE THSH
o

ZE-NF EEEEENEEERETE
BREANEE - ZEBGEREREEAR
EMAXHRAEEEK ERTEELEN
Rk £EOEZRETRARENEEE BT
RIEFEEH ZEBGOUNEEEES
4% o L B A BB HFMA (fine-grained metal
containing waste ) BRIR 4R 038 ARG FE A E < 7%
FRIRAR E BRI IR 1R A 4R /) BE AL R B B B
1R - S EUSE A SRR B S8 o FMARIEAR
HE—RETRBHEEARBENEGER
Wik 7 WEAENGES EREE - FMAR
BRORETEHEERERKE EHE
FERF N 23R » ZRIBFEO I ABREEB TR
M5 B R R R UL o

“ENFHREFREBHN—F - XREBA
HE CENEMERRR) PE SEBTH
BMNABREHEOEEY BEREESE
T2 BRFBEFCREEENEE LHE S
BRIREEE —w BEEER-

EEESRATELINECESBE S HE
A E ([Heng Hup Group | ) &1EBIEIA A
DEBREN -T—NF LI FRBEE A&
RAEENREEEEUREMBEERASE
BT IR 275 - BRI MR IR T BT S 5K
FIIRE IS - 2R Ph g il £ = K2R A
BESH - KA BB E - BRAERAE AR
WEERAIFE B OEFEME - A7 B ATER
8 h0 A AE B B
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHBS

Another joint venture formed by the Group and Century Metal
Recycling Group (“CMR”, India’s largest producer of aluminum and
zinc die-casting alloys) also commenced production in November 2019.
This joint venture is mainly engaged in the dismantling of scrap motors
and other mixed scrap metal. The Indian market is enormous and the
recycled metals currently produced is sold locally. As the ratio between
electric furnaces and blast furnaces in India is higher than that in China,
their dependence on iron ore is relatively lower than that of China,
therefore, the Group has greater bargaining power as a scrap steel
supplier. The Indian joint venture is currently ramping up its production.

A cooperation agreement was signed in November 2019 among the
Group, Hidaka Yookoo Enterprises Co. Limited (the largest scrap steel
and iron recycler in Thailand) and Suzuki Shokai Co. Limited (a leading
resource recycling company in Japan and our long-term business
partner) to establish a joint venture to set up a metal recycling business
in Thailand in 2020, focusing on the dismantling of scrap motors. The
project is currently under preparation.

2019 was the toughest year for the Taizhou plant since its
establishment. Due to changes in the PRC national policies, the Taizhou
plant transferred its primary business abroad and dismissed most of
its long-time employees. Apart from Greater China, the Group also
streamlined the organisational structure in Europe and North America
as a response to the market changes and to optimise the cost structure.
On behalf of the Group, | would like to thank everyone for their
dedication and contributions over the years.

The remaining staff at Taizhou plant, other than those in the production
of copper rod and recycled aluminum ingots, will mainly support the
development of the Southeast Asia operations and the domestic scrap
metal collection in China. The Shuyang Division under the Taizhou plant
will mainly engage in the dismantling of local scrap motors in China.

Against this broad backdrop, both the revenue and profit of the Group
experienced a year-on-year decrease with broader declines in Asia
and North America. The revenue of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019 amounted to HK$15,363.4 million (2018: HK$20,912.8
million), representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 26.5%.

Chiho Environmental Group Limited  Annual Report 2019

SEHEDERANEBEEESAoRERD
Century Metal Recycling Group ([CMR )&
ERIMEELELDR_T—hEFE+—AH
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ERGeBNRMERK -EEMBEN Bl
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B B
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([ Hidaka Yookoo Enterprises Co. Limited ] )
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R AREE ([Suzuki Shokai Co. Limited |)
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The loss attributable to shareholders of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2019 was HK$128.7 million (2018:
profit HK$401.2 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of
approximately 132.1%. The basic and diluted loss per share in 2019
were HK$0.08 (2018: basic and diluted earnings per share HK$0.25).

REGIONAL PERFORMANCE

In 2019, as the shrinking of the German automotive industry affected
its peripheral industries, the revenue recorded by the Group from
Europe decreased by 19.8% year-on-year to HK$12,166.8 million
(2018: HK$15,166.5 million), and a segment profit of HK$379.7 million
(2018: HK$443.5 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of
14.4%.

The US-China trade war has a greater impact on the US industrial
activities. Increase in prices and sales volume at the onset of the US-
China trade war could not be sustained, and even began to have
counter-effects at the later stage. The main reason was that the
root cause of de-industrialisation in the US was not only from the
competition of China-manufactured products, but also from US’s
domestic issues. In the US market where the Group operates, while
it remains profitable in the fast-growing Southwestern region, the
Northeast region is becoming increasingly competitive due to reduced
industrial activities in the traditional industrial towns. In 2019, the
Group'’s revenue from North America decreased 40.9% to HK$1,410.9
million as compared to last year (2018: HK$2,386.7 million), and a
segment loss of HK$48.4 million (2018: segment profit HK$8.4 million).

As the Group's Southeast Asia business was still at its start-up stage in
2019, its contribution to revenue and earnings were relatively limited.
Currently, the business in Asia mainly represented those in Greater
China, including Hong Kong. In 2019, the revenue from the Asia
region decreased by 46.3% to HK$2,015.4 million when compared to
last year (2018: HK$3,751.4 million), and segment loss was HK$172.3
million (2018: segment profit HK$275.2 million). The decline was
mainly caused by the revisions of the Catalog for the Administration of
the Import of Solid Wastes by the China Government, while the new
businesses in China could not form a scale to replace those interrupted
business in the short term.

Chairman’s Statement
FERS

BHE_Z-NF+-A=+—RHLFE &Q
ARG E 18 1182,8708 BT (— 2 — N\FX%
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHBS

PROSPECTS

In December 2019, the European Commission passed the European
Green Deal with a goal of achieving carbon emission neutral by 2050.
In addition to expanding the scope of carbon tax, there is also a need
to review the fossil energy tax, to support low-carbon iron and steel
production and development of new energy battery technology, and to
formulate a series of action plans for a circular economy. Among them,
resources recycling are not only because of environmental protection,
but also for the protection of resources necessary for the sustainable
development of European industries.

As China barred the import of unprocessed waste plastic, the Group
also invested in a new plastic recycling line which will commence
operation in early 2020 to process waste plastic in Europe and produce
highly added value LDPE and HDPE pellets. Those pellets are high value
industrial raw materials and can be exported around the world. It would
help mitigate the plastic issue in Europe and enhance the Group’s
plastic recycling business.

In the fourth quarter of 2019, the market saw signs of the US-China
trade war ending and industrial activities began to rebound, with
various metals prices also having increased towards year-end. The
economic impact from the outbreak of the novel coronavirus pandemic
("COVID-19") before the Chinese New Year in 2020 would be difficult
to assess. Production resumption after the Chinese New Year holidays
usually drive up prices due to restocking after generally low inventory
level of enterprises in the PRC before the Chinese New Year. This year,
the resumption of business activities was delayed until April in China as
production only gradually resumes after nation-wide lockdowns were
gradually lifted. In Europe, US and other parts of the world, widespread
lockdowns started in March. While some countries are exiting or
preparing to exit their lockdowns towards end of April, some countries
may extend lockdowns towards May. We have seen major disruptions to
global supply chains. Ports, customs and banks, all of which are critical
to the global supply chain, are either understaffed as they are required
to work on shifts or employees are at home office or quarantines. Our
recycling operations are considered essential industry and the Group
was able to maintain operations in most countries where we operate.
We have implemented protective measures to safeguard the safety
of the staff. We are satisfied that these measures are working but we
urge everyone to continue to be vigilant to contain the spread of the
pandemic. At this point of time, it is difficult to determine the impact of
the pandemic to the Group's businesses.
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One of the important tasks in 2020 is to increase the output in the
South and Southeast Asia processing yards. New energy vehicles will be
the future direction in the automotive industry. The Group estimated
that the number of electric engines and motors will increase in the
future, and the demand for copper will also step up. Not only do South
and Southeast Asia have a young population and abundant labour
resources, they are also at a stage of rapid industrial development,
capable of replacing China as the future dismantling bases and sales
markets for recycled metals.

2019 was a critical year for the automotive industry in Europe. Most
German automobile companies agreed that the automobile industry
would head to the direction of electric vehicles going forward. Once
the strategy has been determined, the German automobile companies
would accelerate their investments in electric vehicles, including
auxiliary power battery and power system. Comparing to traditional
petrol or diesel vehicles, electric vehicles require more copper and are
equipped with more automotive electronics components. The Group's
R&D team will also focus more in this area, to improve the processing of
materials generated from the future automotive industry such as scrap,
motors and batteries, thereby maximising resources recycling.

In mid-2019, the new Measures for the Management of End-of-Life
Vehicle Recycling ( ¥REE#B)E BIUE I #HE) ) promulgated in China
lowered an important barrier to this blue ocean market. Leveraging on
our existing scrap metal business layout and experiences in China, the
Group will explore opportunities to develop the ELV business in China
with our own resources or by way of joint venture, and transfer from
Europe and the US the Group’s leading technology on ELV processing
into China.

I would like to extend my heart-felt gratitude to the members of the
Board and all our employees around the world for their loyalty, efforts,
professionalism and valuable contributions, and also to our customers
and partners for their priceless support and trust.

Qin Yongming
Chairman
Hong Kong, 12 May 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SpEIERE YA

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The macro market environment throughout 2019 has been volatile
due to the prolonged US-China trade war which has brought adverse
impact to the Group. The Group sold in aggregate over 4.8 million
tonnes of recycled products in 2019, a 10.1% decrease when compared
to 5.3 million tonnes being sold in 2018. Revenue for the year was
HK$15,363.4 million, a decrease of approximately 26.5% compared to
HK$20,912.8 million last year.

The decrease in revenue was largely driven by the slowdown of the
industrial activities globally and led to a soft demand for metal scraps.
Scrap prices have been in a downward trend since the start of 2019
with the prices bottomed out in October 2019.

Our China operation has been particularly impacted by the changes
in China’s Catalog for Administration of the Import of Solid Wastes
which banned the import of scrap motors into China, effective at the
beginning of 2019. Sales have been temporarily affected as the Group
is in transition to shift the production bases from China to South/
Southeast Asia.
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Increase/
2019 2018 (Decrease)
—E-NE “E-N\E #i,/ (BP)
Asa As a
percentage of percentage of
total segment total segment
HK$M revenue HK$M revenue HK$M
- 159 Bplas - 159 BBz
BEEL BENESL BEATL BENESL BEATL
Europe M 12,166.8 78.0% 15,166.5 71.2% (2,999.7)
North America =M 1,410.9 9.1% 2,386.7 1.2% (975.8)
Asia M 2,015.4 12.9% 3,751.4 17.6% (1,736.0)
Total segment revenue DEREBE 15,593.1 100% 21,304.6 100% (5,711.5)
Inter-segment sales DEREEE (229.7) (391.8) 162.1
Revenue Wz 15,3634 20,912.8 (5,549.4)
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EIEESRR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Gross Profit/Margin

Gross profit for year was HK$877.9 million, a decrease of HK$806.2
million or 47.9% compared to HK$1,684.1 million recorded in the
previous financial year. The decrease in gross profit was mainly
attributable to the rising energy and transportation cost but declining
scrap prices, putting pressure on our margins. Gross profit declined also
due to the lower tonnage processed in our China facilities as a result of
the import restrictions on scrap motors in China.

Gross profit margin for the year decreased from 8.1% to 5.7%.
The decline in gross profit margin is largely attributed to the weak
performance from the China operations, while the gross profit margin
in Europe stays largely stable.

Profit Before Interest And Tax (EBIT)/Margin

EBIT for the year was a profit of HK$113.1 million, as compared to a
profit of HK$845.5 million last year. EBIT margin was 0.7% for the year
(2018: 4.0%).

Total operating expenses were HK$1,021.6 million, a decrease of
23.3% over the previous financial year. The decrease is in part due to
lower tonnages, but also due to cost control measures put in place
during the year. Total operating expenses as a percentage of revenue
increased slightly from 6.4% to 6.6%.

Distribution and selling expenses increased from HK$49.0 million to
HK$51.5 million, an increase of 5.1% compared with the last financial
year. The increase is mainly due to a reclassification of freight and
packaging expenses from administrative expenses and the addition of
some new sales agents during the year. As a percentage of revenue,
distribution and selling expenses was 0.3% (2018: 0.2%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Profit Before Interest and Tax (EBIT)/Margin (continued)

Administrative expenses decreased from HK$1,283.3 million to
HK$970.1 million over the last financial year, partly due to stringent
cost controls are in place in the course of the Group transitioning our
production bases to South/Southeast Asia. As a percentage of revenue,
administrative expenses remained flat at around 6.3% as compared to
last year (2018: 6.2%).
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Increase/
2019 2018 (Decrease)
—E-NF —E-N\F #Bm/ ()
Asa As a
percentage percentage
HK$M of revenue HK$M of revenue HK$M
€] [l€aty
EXc Bl BEBT ERass BEBT
Distribution and selling expenses PEREERS 51.5 0.3% 49.0 0.2% 2.5
Administrative expenses THEX 970.1 6.3% 1,2833 6.2% (313.2)
Total @it 1,021.6 6.6% 1,332.3 6.4% (310.7)

Loss/Profit Attributable to Shareholders and Loss/
Earnings Per Share

Loss attributable to shareholders of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2019 was HK$128.7 million, as compared to a profit of
HK$401.2 million in the last financial year.

Taxation charges reduced from HK$70.4 million in the last financial
year to HK$34.3 million in the current year as the profitability in some
regions have lessen this year.

Basic loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2019 was
HK$0.08 as compared to earnings per share of HK$0.25 in the previous
financial year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EIEESRR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Analysis of Cash Flow from Operations

The Group's net cash generated from operating activities for the year
ended 31 December 2019 was HK$528.8 million, an increase of 66.7%
as compared to HK$317.3 million in the previous financial year, as
the Group carefully managed its working capital in response to the
uncertainties in the market conditions.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Shareholders’ funds as at 31 December 2019 were HK$4,941.3 million,
a decrease of 4.5% from HK$5,175.3 million as at 31 December 2018.
Shareholders’ funds per share decreased by 4.3% from HK$3.22 to
HK$3.08.

The Group's financial resources remain stable and steady. As at 31
December 2019, the Group had cash, various bank balances and
pledged bank deposits amounting to HK$976.5 million, a decrease of
3.4% or HK$34.2 million as compared to HK$1,010.7 million as at 31
December 2018. It was mainly for repayment of external borrowings
and working capital needs for expansion of business operations.

The current ratio has decreased from 1.62 as at 31 December 2018
to 1.01 as at 31 December 2019 as certain borrowings have been
reclassified as current liabilities as they will be maturing within the
next twelve months. Subsequent to year-end, the Group has reached
an agreement with the lender to extend the repayment date of these
maturing loans to March 2021. With the extension of the repayment,
the current ratio would have been 1.76 as at 31 December 2019.

Total external borrowings, including lease liabilities, were approximately
HK$3,556.5 million (31 December 2018: approximately HK$3,787.6
million). Such borrowings were mainly utilised for the purchase of mixed
recycle metal and working capital, and denominated in Euro, U.S. Dollar
and Renminbi. Approximately HK$2,102.8 million (31 December 2018:
approximately HK$1,757.9 million) of borrowings are at fixed interest
rates.

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2019 was 34.9%
(31 December 2018: 33.3%) which is calculated based on the total
borrowings divided by our total assets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Working Capital Change

Inventories as at 31 December 2019 were HK$1,495.9 million, having
decreased from HK$2,105.7 million as at 31 December 2018. The
inventory turnover days for the financial year was 45 days, increased
slightly by 3 days than the last financial year as sales were soft during
the year.

Provision for inventories as at 31 December 2019 were HK$35.9 million,
as compared to the provisions of HK$38.8 million as at 31 December
2018

The Group is committed to streamline and improve the inventory cycle
so as to mitigate the short-term impact of price volatility on the overall
performance of the Group.
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Net trade and bills receivables as at 31 December 2019 were HK$957.3
million, decreased from HK$1,367.5 million as at 31 December 2018.
Debtor turnover days for the financial year increased from 23 days
to 28 days when compared with the last financial year. The lower
receivable balance as at 31 December 2019 was partly due to reduced
sales as well as timing of sales towards the year end. The Group adopts
a tight management on credit exposure.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Working Capital Change (continued)

Trade and bills payable as at 31 December 2019 were HK$639.3 million,
as compared to HK$1,042.9 million as at 31 December 2018. Creditor
turnover days for the year ended 31 December 2019 remained flat at
21 days as compared with the last financial year.
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Treasury Policies

The Group's treasury policies are designed to mitigate the impact of
fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates arising from the Group's
global operations. The Group principally uses forward foreign exchange/
futures contracts as appropriate to hedge the foreign exchange risks/
commodity price risks in the ordinary course of business. It is the
Group’s policy not to enter into derivative transactions for speculative
purposes.

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group invested HK$733.2
million (31 December 2018: HK$602.1 million) in the purchase
of tangible assets including land, buildings, plant, machinery and
equipment for the improvement of production efficiency, of which
HK$337.5 million were financed from internal resources and HK$395.7
million were financed through lease arrangement.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Revenue by Products
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Operation Performance

The Group continued to operate in our long established markets and
also has been expanding into new markets in South/Southeast Asia.
Through the geographic diversification, we are in a good position to
mitigate the risks of overly relying on a single market.

Europe

Our Europe segment provides all steps in recycling mixed metal scraps
and is equipped with one-stop shop service for collecting, gathering,
sorting and processing. We are among the processing and technology
leaders in ferrous and non-ferrous metal recycling worldwide. We own
many advanced processing technologies in scrap metal shredding and
post-shredding processing.

Our scrap metal shredding services, including cleaning, sorting,
shearing, shredding, and pressing, constitute a “One-Stop-Shop”
process for all customers and cater to any metal supply needs. In post
shredding technologies, we are able to achieve approximately 97%
recovery rate for ELV, ranking as a world leader (95% recycling rate is
the existing recovery target under the European Union directive).

In 2019, the sales tonnage for the Europe segment was 4.09 million
tonnes, a drop of 6.8% as compared to 4.38 million tonnes in the
previous financial year. Segment revenue was HK$12,166.8 million,
decreased by 19.8% at current exchange rate or by 15.4% in local
currencies. Demand has been strongly affected by a weak automobile
and machine engineering industry in Europe due to a softening demand
in China as a result of the US-China trade war, and less exports to China
due to the import restrictions of certain scrap metals which came into
effect this year.

Scrap prices in Europe have dropped on average by 9% in 2019. The
lack of investments in the aging European infrastructure limited the
transportation capacity, and with the increasing tolls, freight costs are
on the rise. Gross profit for the year, therefore, was only HK$876.5
million, a decrease of 23.6% at current exchange rate or 19.2% in local
currencies as compared with the last financial year. Gross profit margin
for the year dropped slightly from 7.6% to 7.2%.
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EIEESRR DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Europe (continued)

Segment profit for the year was HK$379.7 million, a decrease of 14.4%
at current exchange rate or 7.4% in local currencies. Effective cost
management in coping with the challenging market conditions had
partially outweighed the drop in gross profit.

Besides efficient margin control, several business improvement initiatives
have been initiated to react to the market downturn. Alternative sales
channels have been identified to reduce the impact brought about by
China’s new import restrictions. Moreover, additional sorting processes
have been implemented in some of our European yards to fulfil China’s
requirements on importing of cleaned scrap. The Group has also been
expanding our non-metallic businesses such as recycled plastics and
paper to diversify and mitigate the challenges brought about from the
metal recycling business. An all new plastic recycling line will come
online in 2020 to help contribute relieving Europe’s plastic problem.

North America

The North America segment possesses extensive recycling process
know-how in all relevant process steps from collection, sorting,
processing to trading of materials. It operates state-of-the-art shredder
technology and has extensive post-shredding technologies in place for
recovery optimisation. The North America segment has also commenced
its scrap motor mechanical shredding and dismantling as well as trading
of reused auto components.

The segment sales tonnage for the North America segment was 0.45
million tonnes as compared to 0.61 million tonnes last year. Segment
sales revenue was HK$1,410.9 million as compared to HK$2,386.7
million, a drop of 40.9% at current exchange rate or 37.6% in local
currencies. Demand from local steel mills has fallen due to mill outages
and destocking at the mills. The main driver behind the weak steel scrap
demand in US is the generally weakening macroeconomic factors in the
US, especially in the industrial sector, which had been badly affected by
the US-China trade war. The uptick in steel prices in US after the tariff
war started was short lived and prices soon dropped faster than it was
before the pre-tariffs war. The trade war resulted in declining activities
and lowering demand. Automotive production trended down across
most countries over the second half of 2019, resulting in more stagnant
steel demand towards the end of the year.

26  Chiho Environmental Group Limited  Annual Report 2019

EisoEE (&)

BOM ()

15 3 M A 3187,9708 8T W 214.4%
(RBEE R E)RT4% (RE BT
H) o BT BN KB TISERMETH
BRRAEREEBHBH N TR

HEMREE BT HRNMBEEHSN 52
REAE TR UL - AEB DRI ERE
L SHE R IE - FE UL A BT O PR BIAE R A
TR BTATEERFHEYEEN
HIRTE - FAFIED D OB LS B 1B R FRSMNN D
BEF - AEETTE B IEEBERH (10
B 2B R 4o )+ BA 9 BRSO S & 88 (ol i 2%
TEHDEEL - — (RO BR ERRHR —F =
TEXE BHEBENEE 2R 2E -

XM
XM BMERKRSE DR BEEVHEER

MAMBERBLIF PRGBS EBLERENER
Mo BRARAENRERN BRAFEZ
BB AR 1R B TR B 4 [ W B 1L  dE SR 53 BB T
ERBEEHEM R REN - FRES
MHEREXH-

EEMD D I EMBNL BASENE  EF A
618 M8 - 7 2B 85 E W = FR231E88,6708 B T
540.9% (LI FIE K518 ) k37.6% (IRE
RS E) F141481,0908 78 7T © B SRS
ERMmAET BHEMHETHRAOFRLT
P& o EBEE 7R ORI M E ZRARERRE
CERRERFEYR LHEPXBEZBEER
2T ¥ -BEHEHARE ZHMEERSYT L
AR AR EREREITE B TBRE AT E
ZRIEER - BHBBHMER TR T
MR- RZE—NFTEEF KEZEERNA
HESHETHRBY SREHEFKAEER
BER



Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
North America (continued)

In 2019, falling domestic steel scrap prices have put significant pressure
on margins, with a steep price decline in October 2019 to year lows.
As China imposed retaliatory tariffs on certain scraps from US, the
materials need to be diverted to other markets which further eroded
the margins in US. Hence, segment gross profit was HK$103.2 million,
decreased by 50.4% at current exchange rate, or 47.7% in local
currencies. Gross profit margin dropped from 8.7% last year to 7.3%
this year.

The lowered sale volume, together with a narrowed margin, turned the
segment profit from a profit of HK$8.4 million to a loss of HK$48.4
million as compared to the last financial year.

Asia

Our major production facilities in Asia include Yuen Long (Hong Kong),
Taizhou (Zhejiang) and Yantai (Shandong), and has expanded to
Malaysia and India in the current year.

The sales tonnage in the Asia segment was 0.23 million tonnes (2018:
0.31 million tonnes) as the scrap motor dismantling business has been
temporarily interrupted while the Group relocates the production to our
new processing yards in South/Southeast Asia. Segment revenue has
decreased by 46.3% from HK$3,751.4 million last year to HK$2,015.4
million.

The bearish scrap prices and the temporarily reduced sales volume have
hampered our margin, resulted in a gross loss for the Asia segment. The
gross loss for the year was HK$83.0 million, with a gross loss margin of
4.1%, as compared to a gross profit of HK$352.2 million and a gross
profit margin of 9.4% last year.

As a result, the Asia segment has experienced a loss of HK$172.3
million during this transformation period, as compared to a profit of
HK$275.2 million last year. As our new production facilities in South/
Southeast Asia ramp up operation, the performance of our Asia
segment will gradually recover.
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EIEESRR DM

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had pledged certain plants and
buildings, land use rights, inventories, trade receivables and bank
deposits with an aggregate carrying value of approximately HK$3,807.4
million (31 December 2018: HK$4,308.3 million) to secure borrowings.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had capital commitments in
respect of acquisition of property, plant and equipment, additions
in construction in progress and investments in joint ventures which
are contracted for but not provided for in the consolidated financial
statements and amounted to HK$128.9 million (31 December 2018:
HK$116.6 million).

As at the date of this report, save as disclosed below, the Board is not
aware of any material contingent liabilities.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities (31 December 2018: HK$27.4 million) which consist of non-
financial guarantee in favour of investee entities.

A writ of summons was issued by Delco Participation B.V. (“Delco”),
as plaintiff, on 21 December 2015 in the High Court of Hong Kong
(High Court Action No. 3040 of 2015, "HCA 3040/2015"), followed by
an amended writ on 5 December 2016, against the Company and Mr.
Fang Ankong (“Mr. Fang”) as defendants for a sum of HK$57.8 million
together with interest and costs. The claim relates to an alleged non-
payment of a portion of the loans advanced by Delco Asia Company
Limited (“Delco Asia”) to subsidiaries of the Company in accordance
with the terms of a shareholders loan assignment dated 24 June 2010
between, amongst others, Delco Asia and the Company. The Company
gave notice of the intention to contest the proceedings on 4 January
2016 and filed its defence on 23 September 2016. An amended writ
of summons was filed by Delco on 5 December 2016, adding Fang
Ankong (“Fang”) as a defendant to the proceedings. The Company
filed its amended defence on 13 December 2016 and the Plaintiff filed
its amended reply to the Company’s defence on 21 December 2016.
The case is still in progress.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES (continued)

Each of Mr. Fang, a former director of the Company, and HWH Holdings
Limited ("HWH"), undertook to the Company to indemnify and hold
harmless on demand (on an after-tax basis) the Company against all
losses arising out of, inter alia, HCA 3040/2015 in accordance with the
terms of a letter of indemnity signed by Mr. Fang and HWH in favour
of the Company on 17 December 2015. Further, HWH has also agreed
that a sum including the amount of HK$57.8 million be held in escrow
as security for any liability of the Company in respect of, inter alia, HCA
3040/2015. As such, the Board does not consider HCA 3040/2015 to
be a claim of material importance.

A writ of summons was issued by Delco as plaintiff on 10 November
2016 in the High Court of Hong Kong (High Court Action No. 2939 of
2016, “"HCA 2939/2016") against the Company as the 1st defendant,
Chiho-Tiande (HK) Limited (“CTHK"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, as the 2nd defendant, HWH as the 3rd defendant, and Mr.
Fang as the 4th defendant. So far as the Company and its subsidiaries
are concerned, Delco claimed against the Company for damages for
an alleged breach of a letter of undertaking dated 3 March 2015 in
relation to a convertible bond issued by the Company and subscribed
for by Delco on 1 March 2012. Delco further claimed against CTHK for
a sum of US$1.0 million, allegedly advanced by Delco Asia to CTHK
on or around 16 April 2009. Delco further claims interests, costs and
further or other relief. The Company and CTHK filed their defence on
24 March 2017 and the plaintiff filed its reply to the Company and
CTHK's defence on 20 June 2017. The case is still in progress.

Whilst the Board does not consider HCA 2939/2016 to be a claim
of material importance for the reason set out above, details of HCA
2939/2016 are disclosed herein for the sake of completeness.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SPEEREY A

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group in its ordinary course of business is exposed to market risks
such as commodities price risk, foreign currencies risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's risk management strategy
aims minimising the adverse effects of these risks on its financial
performance.

On 7 March 2018, the Group adopted a commaodity price risk hedging
policy which the Board believes is suitable for the current operating
conditions. The commodity price risk hedging policy is posted on the
Company's website, www.chihogroup.com.

As part of its foreign currency hedging strategy, the Board closely
monitors the Group’s foreign currency borrowings in view of the volatile
exchange rate of Euro, Renminbi and other relevant currencies to U.S.
Dollar and considers various measures to minimise foreign currency risk.

Regarding credit risk, the Group continues to follow the best practices
of cash collection for sales of most recycled products in order to
minimise the carrying amounts of the financial assets in the Group's
financial statements.
closely its trade debtors to minimise potential impairment losses.

In addition, the Group continues monitoring

Regarding liquidity risk, the Group continues maintaining a balance
between the continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank borrowings.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a workforce of 3,115
employees. In addition, we engaged approximately 350 separation
and selection workers through local recognised contractors. We have
not experienced any strikes, work stoppages or significant labor
disputes which have affected our operations in the past. We have
not experienced any significant difficulties in recruiting and retaining
qualified staff. We continue to maintain good relationships with our
employees.

The Group's total staff costs for the year was approximately
HK$1,155.1 million. The remuneration package of staff consists of
basic salary, mandatory provident fund, insurances and other benefits
as considered appropriate. Remuneration of the employees of the
Group is determined by reference to the market standard, individual
performance and their respective contribution to the Group.

The emoluments of the Directors are subject to the recommendations of
the remuneration committee of the Company and the Board’s approval.
Other emoluments including discretionary bonuses, are determined by
the Board with reference to the Directors’ duties, abilities, reputation
and performance.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Group considers that investor relations are important to a listed
company. The Board believes that maintaining a good relationship
with investors and keeping them up-to-date on the latest corporate
communications and business development in a timely fashion would
enhance transparency and strengthen corporate governance of the
Group.

Going forward, the Company will continue to endeavour to keep our
investors abreast of the corporate and business developments, and to
introduce the Group’s strengths and strategies in order to gain support
and recognition from them and also the market in general.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EZRSREEAEERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS #i{TE =

Mr. Tu Jianhua (“Mr. Tu”), aged 56, is an executive Director of the Company. He was appointed as an executive Director
on 29 April 2015. Mr. Tu is a member of the executive committee and the strategy and investment committee of the
Company and he is also the director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Tu was appointed as the chief executive
officer of the Company during the period from 16 February 2016 to 31 March 2016. He has been the chairman of
USUM Investment Group Limited since April 2014. He has been the director of Loncin Group Co., Ltd. (R &£ EER
A A]) since January 1996 and the director of Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd (&% B R A 7)) since January 2003. USUM
Investment Group Limited, Loncin Group Co., Ltd. (fE& & B BBR A 5]) and Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd. (E&ZERAER QD
a]) are controlling shareholders of the Company.

He served as the chairman of the board of Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd. (R & A& B R A 7)) in the period from January
2003 to July 2010 and from February 2013 to December 2013, the executive director of Loncin Group Co., Ltd. (%
£ E AR QA from January 1996 to January 1997, and the chairman of the board of Loncin Group Co., Ltd. (2 &%
B AR A7) from January 1997 to December 2013. He served as the general manager of Chongging Loncin Gasoline
Engine Company (SinoAmerican Joint Venture) (R E& B EEME & )TEH A F]) , a company that used to be controlled
by Mr. Tu during its existence, from 1995 to 1996, and served as the chairman of Chongging Loncin Transportation and
Machinery Factory (EE R & BEMER ) , a company that used to be controlled by Mr. Tu during its existence, from
1993 to 1995. He served as the chairman of Chongging City Jiulongpo District Loncin Metal Factory (EE ™ fLEEH &
EEZSEM) , a company that used to be controlled by Mr. Tu during its existence, from 1991 to 1993 and the factory
director of Chongqing Cinhua Metals Factory (EE & E & BZ M E) , from 1983 to 1990.

Mr. Tu graduated from the Economic Management (£ & & 2 F 2 ) of the Open College in Chongging City Municipal
Party School (EEMZ B HHEEPT) in December 1998. Mr. Tu previously acted as the deputy to the 11th, 12th
National People’s Congress, the deputy to the 2nd, 3rd and 4th Chongging Municipal People’s Congress and the
member of the Finance and Economic Affairs Committee of Chongging Municipal People’s Congress. He currently serves
as a Member of the National Committee of the 13th Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, a Standing
Committee Member of the Executive Committee of the 12th All China Federation of Industry & Commerce (£ B T 75
i) , the president of Chongging City Industry and Commerce Federation ( & & M L) , the President of Chongging
City General Chamber of Commerce (EEEM#75€ ) , the president of Chongging City Technology Equipment Industry
Chamber of Commerce (EE MR EHEEBEER), the vice president of Chongging City Charity Federation ( EEE T
ZZE ) and the vice president of Chongqing City Private Entrepreneurs Confederation (EE TR E P XXM A &

Mr. Tu is a non-executive director of Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.* (BESZERMAR AT ) , a company listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 3903), and a director
of Loncin Motor Co., Ltd., a company whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 603766).

The annual salary of Mr. Tu is HK$2,600,000, He is also entitled a discretionary bonus. The annual salary and discretionary
bonus of Mr. Tu are determined with reference to his duties and responsibilities in the Company, qualifications,
experience, the prevailing market conditions and the Company’s remuneration policy and is subject to annual review by
the Board and the remuneration committee of the Company.
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EShSREEAERE

Mr. Qin Yongming (“Mr. Qin”), aged 56, is the chairman of the Board and an executive Director of the Company.
He joined the Group on 1 June 2016 as executive vice president, and was appointed as an executive director on 30
June 2016. He was re-designated to chief executive officer of the Company on 24 October 2016, to the chairman of
the Board of the Company on 17 July 2017, and was appointed as the chief executive officer of the Company on 11
October 2017. Mr. Qin ceased to be the chief executive officer of the Company with effect from 1 March 2020. Mr. Qin
serves as the chairman of the executive committee, the nomination committee, the strategy and investment committee
and the pricing committee of the Company. He is also the director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Qin was
appointed as the president of USUM Investment Group Co., Ltd. on 22 January 2018. From 2004 to 2016, Mr. Qin
worked with LafargeHolcim group and his last position with LafargeHolcim group was the purchasing director of the
China region, with a particular focus on raw materials and cementitious materials. Mr. Qin served as the head of the
purchasing department of Tianjin Henkel Detergent Co. Ltd. from 1996 to 1999 and the finance director of Tianjin Philips
Sy Catering and Entertainment Co., Ltd. from 1994 to 1996. Mr. Qin has extensive experience in corporate operation
management, process and budget control, strategic materials procurement and supplier management. Mr. Qin holds a
bachelor degree of Finance and Accounting from Renmin University of China and a Master of Business Administration
from the University of Southampton.

The annual salary of Mr. Qin is HK$5,200,000. He is also entitled a discretionary bonus. The annual salary and
discretionary bonus of Mr. Qin are determined with reference to his duties and responsibilities in the Company,
qualifications, experience, the prevailing market conditions and the Company’s remuneration policy and is subject to
annual review by the Board and the remuneration committee of the Company.
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Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan (“Mr. Suchan”), aged 38, joined the Group as the chief executive officer and executive
Director of the Company on 19 February 2020. Mr. Suchan serves as a member of each of the executive committee,
pricing committee and strategy and investment committee of the Company. Mr. Suchan graduated with a Bachelor’s
degree (Diplom-Kaufmann) in Business Administration and Economics from the University of Applied Sciences in Essen,
Germany in 2005. He further holds a Master of Business Administration degree from Nanyang Technological University
in Singapore and from Tsinghua University in Beijing, China respectively. Mr. Suchan started his career at the German
pharmaceutical and chemical company Bayer AG as a management trainee in 2002 where he worked across various
marketing and finance functions in Germany and Poland. In 2006, he joined specialty chemicals company Lanxess as
a Strategy Consultant working in Germany, Canada and China. From there he moved to become Head of Corporate
Development based in Shanghai at Lanxess Greater China in 2008. In 2010, Mr. Suchan joined Lanxess’ Inorganic
Pigments business unit as Commercial Director for Asia Pacific and in 2012, he took over responsibility as Vice President
for Global Product Management. In 2014, Mr. Suchan was additionally appointed as Vice President for all operations of
the Inorganic Pigments business unit in the Asia Pacific region which also included the responsibility as Managing Director
for Lanxess’ three Inorganic Pigments production sites in Shanghai and Ningbo, China. Since April 2017, Mr. Suchan had
been globally responsible for identifying and implementing digital solutions which can be used along the whole chemical
value chain within Lanxess' Digital Transformation activities. In addition, Mr. Suchan was also the Chief Digital Officer at
Lanxess in Asia-Pacific coordinating Digital Transformation efforts in the region.

The annual salary of Mr. Suchan is HK$6,288,000. The annual salary Mr. Suchan are determined with reference to
his duties and responsibilities in the Company, qualifications, experience, the prevailing market conditions and the
Company's remuneration policy and is subject to annual review by the Board and the remuneration committee of the
Company.
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Mr. Wong Wun Lam (“Mr. Wong”), aged 55, was the chief financial officer and an executive Director of the Company
and resigned with effect from 20 December 2019. He joined the Group on 10 August 2017 as chief financial officer, and
was appointed as an executive director on 11 October 2017. Mr. Wong served as a member of each of the executive
committee, the strategy and investment committee and the pricing committee of the Company. He was also the director
of certain subsidiaries of the Group. And he has resigned on 20 December 2019. Mr. Wong obtained a Bachelor of
Commerce degree from the University of Calgary and received a degree of Executive Master of Business Administration
from Kellogg School of Management at the Northwestern University. He is also a Chartered Accountant of Canada. Prior
to joining the Company, Mr. Wong had more than 29 years of extensive experience in the field of financial management.
He was the Chief Financial Officer of Cargo Services Group and before that, Mr. Wong worked in Royal Philips
Electronics, Jarden Corporation and CLP Power and held senior positions in financial and business management.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, Mr. Wong was not entitled any salary for the appointment as executive
Director of the Company but he was entitled to an annual salary of HK$2,600,000 for his role as chief financial officer.
He was also entitled a discretionary bonus. The annual salary and discretionary bonus of Mr. Wong were determined with
reference to his duties and responsibilities in the Company, qualifications, experience, the prevailing market conditions
and the Company'’s remuneration policy and was subject to annual review by the Board and the remuneration committee
of the Company.
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Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam (“Dr. Loke"), aged 70, is an independent non-executive Director. He was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 23 June 2010. Dr. Loke serves as the chairman of the audit committee
and a member of the remuneration committee and the nomination committee of the Company. Dr. Loke has over 41
years of experience in accounting and auditing for private and public companies, financial consultancy and corporate
management. He holds a Master of Business Administration degree from Universiti Teknologi Malaysia and a Doctor of
Business Administration degree from University of South Australia. He is a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales; Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants; The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors; The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive Director
Association. He currently serves as an independent non-executive director of the following companies whose shares are
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange: V1 Group Limited (Stock Code: 82), Matrix Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
1005), CIMC-TianDa Holdings Company Limited (formerly known as China Fire Safety Enterprise Group Limited) (Stock
Code: 445), Zhong An Group Limited (formerly known as Zhong An Real Estate Limited) (Stock Code: 672), Tianjin
Development Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 882), Tianhe Chemicals Group Limited (Stock Code: 1619), Forebase
International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2310), Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited (Stock
Code: 3626), Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 2882), Zhenro Properties Group Limited
(Stock Code: 6158), TC Orient Lighting Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 515) and TradeGo FinTech Limited (Stock Code:
8017).

Dr. Loke is entitled to a director’s fee of HK$250,000 per annum, which is determined with reference to his duties and
responsibilities in the Company and the market rate for his position as independent non-executive Director and is subject
to annual review by the Board and the remuneration committee of the Company.
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Ms. Qian Liping (“Ms. Qian”), aged 42, is an independent non-executive Director. She joined the Group on 24 October
2016. Ms. Qian is a member of the audit committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination committee of
the Company. Ms. Qian is currently a professor at the School of Economics and Business Administration in Chongging
University and a managing director of Marketing Committee, Chinese Research Council of Modern Management. She
was also a visiting scholar of the Chinese University of Hong Kong from 2010 to 2011. Ms. Qian has been appointed
as an external review expert of several journals including “Management World”, “Journal of Marketing Science” and
“Nankai Business Review", and was awarded “2015 Annual Excellent Review Expert” by “Journal of Marketing Science”.
She has more than 16 years of research experience in B2B Marketing and Marketing Channel Management and has
intimate knowledge of the marketing environment and management mechanism in mainland China. Ms. Qian holds a
doctoral degree in Management from School of Management of Xi‘an Jiaotong University.

Ms. Qian is entitled to a director’s fee of HK$250,000 per annum, which is determined with reference to her duties and
responsibilities in the Company and the market rate for her position as independent non-executive Director and is subject
to annual review by the Board and the remuneration committee of the Company.
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Mr. Ko Frankie Andrew (“Mr. Ko"”), aged 69, is an independent non-executive Director. He joined the Group on 19
February 2020. Mr. Ko is the chairman of the remuneration committee of the Company and a member of the audit
committee and the nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Ko graduated from the University of Wisconsin-
Madison with a Bachelor’s degree in chemical engineering in 1974, the University of Kentucky with a Master’s degree in
chemical engineering in 1976, and also from Marshall University with a Master of Business Administration in 1982. Mr.
Ko started his career at Dow Chemical Company in 1976 and spent 31 years in various manufacturing and commercial
leadership roles, with his most recent role from 2005 to 2007 as vice president of Greater China, responsible for business
development. He also previously served as director of operations of Greater China, general manager of Greater China,
and also an executive or director of various joint ventures of Dow Chemical Company. In 2007, Mr. Ko joined AEA
Investors, a global private investment firm focused on private equity and debt investments in the middle market, and is
currently a partner and an operating executive.

Mr. Ko is entitled to a director’'s fee of HK$250,000 per annum, which is determined with reference to his duties and
responsibilities in the Company and the market rate for her position as independent non-executive Director and is subject
to annual review by the Board and the remuneration committee of the Company.

BREEE([BEE]) 695 ABYFATEF FR_T_SF_A+tAAMAREE -GEEARDAFME
BT REERZE G RERZEENE BEEN - NtEFEXERMNTEFARE AR IRLBIGCETIESE L
B -R—NERFEERERERBYRSCRIRBELEMUULRR AN FEEZREFRMABIREIEHE R
BI2M -SAER-NEARFRERCEARMARER BECSBRERAEFEERBEINF ROMBHELAN_-F
ZHEE_TTHFEARTEHLRIEER BEXBRE -RENTREMKCEARNAPEDR L EMRLE K
FEMEALE TREEZHGELENTRABRRESE R_ZTLF SLEMARARE (—HRBAUARKRE
AR BENPHTENLEREREBRE) BARETEABAREZTHE -

SELEFRWRERRETF250,00087T WIHRBERNARRAENBRE REEAREBYFNTEERBHOT
SHWEE YXEEFERARAFMEESSFR -

BEBERERERAR —E-hEg®R 39



Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EShSREEAERE

Mr. Zhu Hongchao (“Mr. Zhu"), aged 60, was an independent non-executive Director. He joined the Group on 18 April
2018 and resigned with effect from 19 February 2020. Mr. Zhu was the chairman of the remuneration committee of the
Company and a member of the audit committee and the nomination committee of the Company. And he has resigned
on 19 February 2020.

Mr. Zhu is one of the founding partners of Shanghai United Law Firm and a senior lawyer. He possesses a Juris Master
degree obtained from Fudan University and has rich litigation and non-litigation experience in terms of Contract Law,
Law of Torts, Company Law and other legal fields. Mr. Zhu has served as a permanent legal adviser or specially invited
adviser of a large number of state-owned enterprises, Global 500 enterprises and governmental departments for a long
time. As one of the first batch of lawyers with the qualification to practice securities law, he has participated in the
reorganisation and listing of over 40 large Chinese enterprises.

Mr. Zhu is currently the director and senior partner of Shanghai United Law Firm. He also serves as an arbitrator of
China International Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission, Shanghai International Economic and Trade Arbitration
Commission (Shanghai International Arbitration Center) and Shanghai Arbitration Commission, a mediator of Shanghai
Commercial Mediation Center, and a part-time professor of Shanghai University Law School and East China University of
Political Science and Law.

He once served as the third, fourth, fifth and sixth deputy president of All China Lawyers Association, the sixth president
of Shanghai Bar Association and the seventh chief supervisor of Shanghai Bar Association.

He is an independent director of the following companies: Wonders Information Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 300168 (SHE)),
Caitong Fund Management Co., Ltd., Jupai Holdings Limited (Stock Code: JP (NYSE)), and E-House (China) Holdings
Limited and Leju Holdings Limited (Stock Code: LEJU (NYSE)). He is currently an independent non-executive director of
E-House (China) Enterprise Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2048 (HKEX)). He once served as an independent director of
the following companies: Sinochem International Corporation (Stock Code: 600500 (SHA)), Shanghai Guangdian Electric
Group Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 601616 (SHA)) and Tengda Construction Group Co,. Ltd. (Stock Code: 600512 (SHA)).

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and up until his resignation, Mr. Zhu was entitled to a director’s fee of
HK$250,000 per annum, which was determined with reference to his duties and responsibilities in the Company and the
market rate for her position as independent non-executive Director and was subject to annual review by the Board and
the remuneration committee of the Company.

RHBBRE(TREE]D 605 BEBULINTEEZ -FR T \FHATN\BNAREE YEHE BT -F
F_ATNERER RAESARRFMHEEG T FERRZ B MERZBeXB -YE_T_TF _ A+ LB
£

REERLBTHARMBEBAABEBAZ — SRR - FHREEEARBZEZBRELEN YEARE REREEL -
REVEFELRAREALEENFRAMIFFALR RENKETHEREALE D R AREEARBRFIFINE
FERERSFAER - RATHERBE A NLERN EL2ETZENTERXNPREARCENSAMETI(E-

REERB/LBTHERMEBEAIME SREBA - BIRETEEREEESHTHZESMFHE  LERBRKLER
SHHEREE (LERARMEEFPL)MHE  LEFHEZESMHE  LSRERERABPLOARBE LEREESMR
RERBUERNBRBHIEX -

REEhEREEMGEE= W 1 NEFgR LETEMHEEESR LETEMBEELEESERK-

WEBATERABICEYLES  BEEEROHAERAT (MRS 300168 (SHE)) - HBESEEBR AR RREES
RAE (B8R : JP (NYSE) ) K E-House (China) Holdings Limited and Leju Holdings Limited ( B& {7 5% : LEJU (NYSE)) ° 1%
BAESE (PE)CEERAR AT (MY 2048 (HKEX)) 2 B ERITES - RERNA TS AREELBIES P
{EERER ($208) BRD AR AT (BXR 5% : 600500 (SHA)) « HEEEE R (L£8) RN ER AT (RMHL3E 601616 (SHA))
NEEZLEERMAER AR (KRR :600512 (SHA)) °

REBE-_Z-NAF+ A=+t ALFEREEEFT RELERUNEZHEESEF250,0008 7T B TIHRB R A
RAFRENBERETAREBYIATEESBRENTSHNEE URESGRARAHFHEZE ST FR -

40 Chiho Environmental Group Limited  Annual Report 2019



Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EShSREEAEEE

Parax

SENIOR MANAGEMENT =4 &8 A B

Mr. Goh Kian Guan (“Mr. Goh"), aged 42, is the vice president, chief investment officer of the Company and general
manager of the investment & development department of the Company. Mr. Goh also serves as a member of the strategy
and investment committee of the Company and he is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. He joined the Group
on 1 January 2016. Before joining the Group, Mr. Goh was the managing director for investments at USUM Investment
Group Limited. Prior to USUM Investment Group Limited, Mr. Goh was the head of international merger & acquisition at
an investment firm in Shanghai. Before that, Mr. Goh served in Standard Chartered Corporate Advisory and BNP Paribas
Investment Banking Energy & Commodities team. Prior to his post at investment banking, Mr. Goh was with the strategic
investment team for Singapore Telecom working on merger & acquisition. Mr. Goh has many years of experiences with
both buy-side and sell-side, covering energy, commodities, transportation, telecom-media-technology (TMT) and high
end manufacturing. Prior to that, Mr. Goh spent 6 years as an engineer, working on various projects, including oil fields,
refineries, petrochemical plants, pharmaceutical plants, power plants, oil rigs, real estates and advance equipment
manufacturing, covering technical, commercial and financial management.

Mr. Goh graduated with a Master of Finance degree from the Royal Melbourne Institute of Technology of Australia, and
a Bachelor of Engineering in Civil from the Nanyang Technological University of Singapore.
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Ms. Yiu Yi Ting (“Ms. Yiu"), aged 39, is the company secretary of the Company. She joined the Group in May 2017.

Ms. Yiu has worked in corporate secretarial field and corporate trust fields in several listed companies on the Main Board
and GEM of the Stock Exchange, commercial bank and professional firms for over 17 years.

Ms. Yiu graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2011 and was awarded a Master’s Degree in Corporate

Governance. She is an associate member of both The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the United
Kingdom and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
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The Directors of the Company have the pleasure in presenting their
report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Reporting Period”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance by operating segments for
the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out at in Note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income of the Group on
pages 116 to 117 of this Annual Report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors did not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019 is set out in sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”,
“Management Discussion and Analysis” from pages 10 to 15 and pages
16 to 31 respectively of this Annual Report which also form part of this
Directors’ Report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group has implemented a number of resources conservation
initiatives in its operations and workplaces. It is our strategy to
gradually embed sustainability into our daily management, thus, we
will continue to improve environmental sustainability measures in
all our facilities. During the Reporting Period, we complied with all
relevant environmental regulations in Hong Kong and the PRC that
have a significant impact on the Group's business. There were no
significant fines and no non-monetary sanctions for non-compliance
with environmental laws and regulations during the year. Details of
the above information will be set out in our environmental, social and
governance report which is scheduled to be published within three
months after the issuance of this annual report.

Directors’ Report
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group was not aware of any non-compliance with laws and
regulations during the year ended 31 December 2019 that would
have a significant impact on the Group in relation to issues such as
environmental protection, employment and labour practices, operating
practices and the community.

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND
EMPLOYEES

Maintaining and consolidating its relationship with customers is crucial
to increasing the profits of the Company. When carrying out business
with customers, the Group has adopted various methods to collect and
report their needs and expectations and taken corresponding measures
for improvement. The results of such measures were reviewed and
feedbacks were provided to the customers. The main duties include
conducting customer satisfaction survey by sending out questionnaires
to have their feedbacks, opinions, suggestions, complaints or praises to
ensure the service quality and to make improvement.

The Group's raw materials are required to be purchased in both
overseas and domestic markets. Maintaining a good relationship with
our scrap metal suppliers is one of the most important task in scrap
metal procurement. In addition, the Group continues to secure a group
of quality scrap suppliers by conducting regular evaluations, so as to lay
a solid foundation for the recycling and dismantling production of the
Group.

The Group is committed to providing equal employment opportunities
without regard to sex, age or nationality, which is in accordance with
anti-discrimination laws. We endeavor to ensure employees are treated
equally within our welfare system and are provided with effective
channels to freely express and communicate their opinions.

Our Group is committed to maintaining the highest standard of ethical
and responsible conduct when conducting business. A group-level
Whistle-blowing Policy is in place to deter corruption or any possible
violation of law or company policy and to promote standards of good
corporate practices.
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CHANGE IN SHARE CAPITAL IN THE YEAR

Details of the changes in the Company’s share capital in issue during
the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in Note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS" INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

There were no contracts of significance with any member of the
Group as the contracting party and in which any of the controlling
shareholders or any of its subsidiaries possessed direct or indirect
substantial interests, and which was still valid as at 31 December 2019
or any time during such year and related to the business of the Group.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Qin Yongming (Chairman)

Mr. Tu Jianhua

Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed with effect from 1 March 2020)

Mr. Wong Wun Lam (Chief Financial Officer)
(resigned with effect from 20 December 2019)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Loke Yu
Ms. Qian Liping
Mr. Ko Frankie Andrew
(appointed with effect from 19 February 2020)
Mr. Zhu Hongchao
(resigned with effect from 19 February 2020)

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, Ms. Qian
Liping shall retire from office and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
under articles 84(1) & (2).

Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan and Mr. Ko Frankie Andrew shall hold office
until the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company pursuant
to article 83(3) and then being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

Start Expire Duration of contract
R Elp BHEH
Executive Director Qin Yongming 17 July 2017 N/A (open contract) N/A (open contract)
WiTEE L —E—tF TER Er
tA+tA (BEFEEHEH) (BEEFHEH)
Tu Jianhua 29 April 2018 28 April 2021 3 years
REE —T-N\F —E-—% =F
MA-+hE mA=—+N\H
Rafael Heinrich Suchan 1 March 2020 29 February 2023 3 years
Rafael Heinrich Suchan il —TC=F =F
=R—-H —A=fAR
Independent Non-Executive Directors Loke Yu 24 June 2019 23 June 2022 3 years
BUFRITES Bk —Z-NE —EooF =F
ANAZ+@mA ARZ+=H
Qian Liping 24 October 2019 23 October 2022 3 years
HRY —E-NE e Sk =
+A=-+mA +A=+=H
Ko Frankie Andrew 19 February 2020 18 February 2023 3 years
B3t —Z-ZF —To=E =
—A+hBE ZRAt+NR

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has any services contract with the Company

BN EERFBEFAS LEEEENESM
EEARNA R LEEFFARTETAR
—ERTIHE OXEHERIN) ML ENE

and/or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of directors and senior management are set at

on pages 32 to 42.
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CHANGES OF INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS

In accordance with Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes
in information required to be disclosed by Directors pursuant to
paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules after
the publication of the Interim Report 2019 of the Company are set out
below:

Experience including other directorships

Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam, an independent non-executive Director
of the Company, resigned as an independent non-executive director of
Lamtex Holdings Limited (stock code: 1041) with effect from 23 March
2020.

Disclosure pursuant to Rule 13.51(2)(h)

Mr. Tu Jianhua (“Mr. Tu”), an executive director of the Company,
has received a decision on disciplinary actions (“Decision”) against
Shanghai Fenghua (Group) Co., Ltd. (“"Fenghua”), controlling
shareholder Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd. (“Loncin Holdings"”), actual
controller Mr. Tu and responsible persons ([2019] No. 124) ( { L/&&
ERXGHTRRBRDIRTEE) [2019] 124%%), issued by the Shanghai
Stock Exchange. According to the Decision, funds of Fenghua in the
aggregate amount of RMB480 million were used by its controlling
shareholder (i.e. Loncin Holdings), which constituted occupation of
funds by a controlling shareholder for non-operational purposes. As set
out in the Decision, the Shanghai Stock Exchange had determined that
Mr. Tu (as the actual controller of Fenghua) had used his control over
Fenghua to damage the independence of Fenghua, and violated Articles
1.1, 1.4 and 2.2 of the Notice on Certain Issues and Related Party Funds
Exchanges and Listed Companies’ External Guarantees and Guidelines
for Controlling Shareholders and Actual Controllers of Listed Companies
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. As described in the Decision,
having taken into consideration that Loncin Holdings has returned
the occupied non-operational funds and the related interest, and has
adopted measures to remedy the relevant violations, the Shanghai Stock
Exchange considered imposing lighter disciplinary measures. As such,
the Shanghai Stock Exchange has publicly condemned, among others,
Mr. Tu in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Stock Listing
Rules and the Measures for the Implementation of Disciplinary and
Supervision Measures of the Shanghai Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS" MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION
TO THE COMPANY'S BUSINESS

Saved as disclosed under the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” on pages 51 to 54 in this Annual Report and Note 39 to
the consolidated financial statements, no transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business (including
those to which the Company's subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its
parent company was a party) in which a director of the Company or an
entity connected with a Director had material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association of the Company provide that every Director
shall be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company
against liabilities (to the extent permitted by the Companies Ordinance
(Cap 622)) incurred by him as such Director in the execution of his
duties or otherwise in relation thereto, provided that such indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty
which may attach to any such director.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liabilities and costs
associated with defending any proceeding which may be brought
against the Directors of the Company.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
on pages 56 to 57 in this Annual Report, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into during the year or which subsisted at the end of the
year.

DIRECTOR’S RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
on pages 56 to 57 of this Annual Report, during the year, none of
the Company, its parent company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of the borrowings, including the maturity profile, currency
and interest rate structure of the Group are set out in Note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company or any of Its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated under, which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to its
existing shareholders.
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TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) by reason of their
holding of the shares of the Company.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. As at 31
December 2019, the distributable reserves of the Company amounted
to approximately HK$3,785.0 million.

DONATIONS

The Group did not make any donations during the Reporting Period.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In 2019, the Group's largest supplier accounted for 1.6% (2018: 3.0%)
of the total purchases. The five largest suppliers comprised 6.1% (2018:
9.5%) of the total purchases.

Aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers were
less than 25% of total revenue in 2019.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their respective
close associates or any shareholder of the Company (which, to the
knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group's five largest
suppliers or five largest customers during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the Company's business were entered into or subsisted during the year.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company had
the following connected transaction and continuing connected
transactions:

Sales Framework Agreement

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 11 January
2017, a number of connected transactions were entered into and
carried out between the Company, members of the Group and Loncin
International Limited (“Loncin International”) according to the sales
framework agreement (the “Sales Framework Agreement”) entered
into between the Company and Loncin International on 11 January
2017. Pursuant to the Sales Framework Agreement, Loncin International
purchased and the Company supplied, or procured relevant member(s)
of the Group to supply, certain products to Loncin International for
a term which commenced from 11 January 2017 and ended on 31
December 2019.

The annual caps in respect of the transactions contemplated under the
Sales Framework Agreement for each of the financial years ended 31
December 2017, 2018 and 2019 were US$150.0 million, US$250.0
million and US$350.0 million respectively. The total amount of the
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2019 was US$17.7
million.

Mr. Tu, a Director and controlling shareholder of the Company, holds
98% equity interests in Loncin Group Co., Limited, which in turn
holds 98% equity interests in Loncin Holdings Co., Limited (“Loncin
Holdings”). Loncin International is wholly-owned by Loncin Holdings.
Therefore, Loncin International is a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules by virtue of being an associate of Mr. Tu.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Sales Framework Agreement (continued)

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios for the annual
caps in respect of the Sales Framework Agreement exceeded 5%,
accordingly, the Sales Framework Agreement constituted a continuing
connected transaction for the Company and was subject to the
reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. On 17 February
2017, an extraordinary general meeting of the Company was convened
and the Sales Framework Agreement was duly approved.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 22 January 2020,
the Sales Framework Agreement expired on 31 December 2019,
and the Company and Loncin International entered into a new sales
framework agreement (the “New Agreement”) on 22 January 2020
(which is effective from 22 January 2020 to 31 December 2020),
and set the annual cap for the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the New Agreement for the year ending 31
December 2020. Pursuant to the New Agreement, relevant member(s)
of the Group will continue to supply certain non-ferrous metal products
to Loncin International.

The proposed annual cap in respect of the transactions contemplated
under the New Agreement is US$3,800,000 for the year ending 31
December 2020.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios for the proposed
annual cap in respect of the New Agreement exceeds 0.1% but is less
than 5%, the New Agreement as well as the proposed annual cap for
the continuing connected transactions contemplated thereunder are
subject to reporting, annual review, and announcement requirements
but are exempted from the independent Shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. For further details,
please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 22 January and
17 February 2020 respectively.

Chiho Environmental Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2019

RERER S (F)
SR ()

MR EMBEERGEZFE LRy —AR
% EEME D LR RIB5% Bt HEER

BEBRAARSERER S AAETLEH
BRAIFEMARTE TR A5 KB RIE
ZHRE-R_E—LF-_A+LH ARFE
BRBRFRIAE - iHEERBHEEALL
o

BMARBARA T -_EF—HA_1+_H
ZREMBRE HEERBENR_FT—NF
TZA=1T— RS MARFEEZEZBERR
TR CRE A+ HAUSHEERD
#([FmEl) BT _FTF-HA=-1+=H
Y 277¢+ R=+—B&E &l
YBE_ZT-_EF+_A=t—HLEFER
1 16 2 IETT ETZRERERHZFE L
IR - RIEF % - ANEREARRIRL B A RIS E
REZERHEEETACEBER

BE-ZT-_TF+-_A=1+—"HLFE
Tﬁ%%lﬁ?&i TZRPZEREFELRE
3,800,000% 7T ©

HARBERHECERFELR 2 —AES
THEA A 5 L EBIR0.1 % B KNS5 % - HURE
EARUNFVAE BRI EE T RETZ
SERER G ZEZHFE LRAGTRAR
FEEHMASHRE BRBRRETHIR
RUERTE - BRE— 5 FELHARA
BMOAR-—Z_FF-—HA_+-_HK_-A
TERZRE:.



CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Framework Sale and Purchase Agreement

On 16 October 2018 (after trading hours), Taizhou Chiho-Tiande Metals
Company Limited* (8 /INE& XS BABRAF), an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a framework sale and
purchase agreement (the “Framework Sale and Purchase Agreement”)
with Chongging USUM Recycling Resources Developments Co., Ltd.*
(ERamBEERMEARAQF) ("USUM Recycling”) for a term of
six (6) months commencing from 16 October 2018 regarding the supply
of scrap copper/brass to USUM Recycling for a total consideration of up
to RMB100.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$113.4 million).
There was no transactions made during the year ended 31 December
2019 (2018: RMB97.5 million).

USUM Investment Group Hong Kong Limited ("USUMHK"), being
a controlling shareholder of the Company, is a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of USUM Investment Group Limited* A& £ BN A
FR2A]) ("USUM Investment”) which directly holds 100% interest in
USUM Recycling. Accordingly, USUM Recycling is a connected person
of the Company as defined in the Listing Rules and the transactions
contemplated under the Framework Sale and Purchase Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details were disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 16
October 2018.

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been reviewed
by the independent non-executive Directors. The independent non-
executive Directors have confirmed that the aforesaid continuing
connected transactions have been entered into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Framework Sale and Purchase Agreement (continued)

(b)  either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from (as the case may be)
independent third parties;

(c) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole; and

(d)  within the respective cap amounts as disclosed in the previous
announcements in which the relevant continuing connected
transactions were disclosed.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued an unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

Apart from the aforesaid continuing connected transactions, no other
related party transactions disclosed in Note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements entered into by the Group during the year ended
31 December 2019 constituted connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules. The Company confirms
that it has complied with applicable disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, none of the Directors
(except Mr. Tu Jianhua, details of which are set out below) has interests
in any businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, pursuant to the Listing
Rules:
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Name of entity which businesses are are considered to compete or
considered to compete or likely to likely to compete with the business of Nature of interest of
Name of Director ~ compete with the business of the Group  the Group the Director in the entity
BRAEAEEERBARFR RARRASEXBRERFATE
EEpg THBRAENXBERER BRBRFHERRENEBHEL ESNERNESME
Mr. Tu Jianhua Chongging USUM Recycling Resources According to the business scope as registered  Controlling Shareholder
Development Co., Ltd. (“Chongging with the State Administration For Industry
Usum™) & Commerce of the PRC, this entity may

engage in, inter alia, recycling, processing,
marketing and sale of recycling resources,
scrap metal related businesses.

REERE ERREBLER

RENTPEEZIBTRERRELHEE BERRR

REERAR ([2BEHE]) HE HERITNE (KPR BEERE
BomI -EHEREE BESBMERER-

* for identification purposes only

Although the scope of business of Chongging USUM allows it to
engage in businesses that are considered likely to compete with the
business of the Group, Mr. Tu Jianhua reported to the Board that
Chongging USUM is currently only engaged in the disintegration of
automobiles and trading of steel scrap in the PRC, which are neither
the same as nor compete with the businesses of the Group. Further,
Chongging USUM has no intention to engage in businesses that
compete with or are likely to compete with the Group’s businesses.

The Board and management team of the Company and Chongging
USUM do not overlap with each other and are independent of each
other. Therefore, the Group is capable of carrying on its businesses
independently of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses of
Chongging USUM in which Mr. Tu Jianhua has declared interests.

* ERES
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EFETHRS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme was adopted by the Company on 23
June 2010 (the "Post-IPO Share Option Scheme”). The Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme was approved by written resolutions of the shareholders
of the Company and as approved by the listing committee of the Stock
Exchange is valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing on
23 June 2010. It is a share incentive scheme established to recognise
and acknowledge the contributions that the eligible participants have
or may have made to the Group. Pursuant to the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme, the Board may, as its discretion, offer to grant an option to any
director, employee, advisor, consultant, distributor, contractor, supplier,
customer, agent, business partner, joint venture business partner,
promoter, service provider of any member of the Group.

When the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme was adopted on 23 June
2010, the original scheme mandate limit in respect of which share
options could be granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme was
100,000,000 Shares and it was refreshed during the 2013 extraordinary
general meeting of the Company.

Pursuant to the terms of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and in
compliance with the provisions in Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules,
the maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all share options to be granted under the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme and all other share option schemes of the Company shall not
exceed 161,973,829 Shares, being 10% of the Shares in issue as at
17 February 2017, being the date of the 2017 extraordinary general
meeting (“2017 EGM"), when the scheme mandate limit was last
refreshed.

In addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of
the Company's shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million,
within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days
from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the directors of the Company, and
commences after a certain vesting period and ends on a date which is
not later than 10 years from the date of offer of the share options.

The subscription price at which a grantee may subscribe for shares on
the exercise of an option under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
shall be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion at the time
of the grant of relevant option and in any case shall not be less than
the higher of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotation sheets on the date of grant; (i) the average
of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five trading dates immediately preceding
the date of grant; or (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

No share options have been granted or outstanding during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

As at the date of this report the total number of securities available
for issue under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme under the refreshed
Scheme mandate limit, and all other share option schemes of the
Company must not exceed 161,973,829 shares, representing 10.09%
of the total number of Shares of the Company as at the date of this
report.
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EFETHRS

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company or any specified undertaking of the
Company and Its Associated Corporations

As at 31 December 2019, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

B R
EBRIETHRABREATRS  HEAR
B RS AN T REABEE O E AR
ARPHEERAR

R-E-NF+_A=+—H ARAEZS
REZTHABRAR B SE A8 A
(EER EBHEPERD) ([BHEPEKF
f511) EEXVER) WBfn - R REZT R
RRRIRIERE KBGO FE32GRATFE
B E R AP AT RC SR SR IR £ AR BB & A
BEMETAEFETESFRZINRETH
(MEESTA BHNEARARRIRBEEBARS
FRARAR (TBRA]) Rl RMT

Long positions in Shares: RBWEFE:
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the Company
(Note 1)
Total number of EAR AR RE
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares interested BHEDL
EEsA B3 REmtE BERBHROEH (PzE1)
Mr. Tu Jianhua Interest in controlled 1,008,885,181 (Note 2) 62.85%
corporations
REELL RRIEHER 2 #e s (BzE2)
Dr. Loke Yu Beneficial owner 730,000 0.05%
BE g AR £ BB A
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company or any specified undertaking of the
Company and Its Associated Corporations (continued)

Notes:

(1)

(2)

Save

As at 31 December 2019, the total number of issued Shares of the Company was
1,605,152,291 Shares.

The 1,008,885,181 Shares were held by USUM Investment Group Hong Kong Limited
("USUMHK"), a company in which Mr. Tu Jianhua (“Mr. Tu") was indirectly interested.
USUMHK is directly wholly owned by USUM Investment Group Limited (“USUM
Group”), a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC. The single largest
shareholder of USUM Group is Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd. (“Loncin Holdings”), with
an equity interest in USUM Group of approximately 49.055%. The remaining equity
interests in USUM Group are held by 16 individuals and 28 companies, all of whom
are independent third parties of Loncin Holdings and Mr. Tu, and they each hold
between 0.29% to 10% equity interests in USUM Group. Loncin Holdings is 98%
owned by Loncin Group Co., Ltd. (“Loncin Group”) and 2% owned by Mr. Tu. Loncin
Group is 98% owned by Mr. Tu; 1% owned by Ms. Tu Jianmin and 1% owned by Ms.
Tu Jianrong, both being sisters of Mr. Tu. USUMHK held 1,008,885,181 Shares as at
31 December 2019. Therefore, Mr. Tu was deemed to be interested in the Shares held
by USUMHK pursuant to the SFO.

as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the

Directors and chief executives of the Company had any interests or

short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the

Company or any of its associated corporations which would have to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the

SFO),

or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the

Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.
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EFETHRS

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the
persons, other than the Directors and chief executives of the Company,
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as

follows:

Long positions in Shares:

Eas KR ()
TERRRAD TR RABREG R K
HA

RZF-AF+=A=t—A BAARES
REBIRABSN U TFALRAR AR
RABRR G P B RREE S KBS OIS
3361478 T 17 B 2 Bac MR BT s e s Bk

B
R HFRE:

Approximate
percentage of
Shareholding in
the Company

Total number of (Note 1)
Shares interested HERATRE
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of Interest BHEEEN BREDL
BREBHHE B, Rty RA7 A E (BFEET)
USUM Investment Group Beneficial owner 1,008,885,181 (Note 2) 62.85%
Hong Kong Limited
AR EEE (FB)ERQA EmR R (FfF5E2)
USUM Investment Group Limited Interest in controlled 1,008,885,181 (Note 2) 62.85%
corporations
BMEREEEROBRAA REZEHNERE 2w (FF3E2)
Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd. Interest in controlled 1,008,885,181 (Note 2) 62.85%
corporations
EEIERBR QR REZIEHER 2 = (PfF3E2)
Loncin Group Co., Ltd. Interest in controlled 1,008,885,181 (Note 2) 62.85%
corporations
EEEEEBERAQR REZEHEE 2 s (BfF5E2)
Mr. Tu Jianhua Interest in controlled 1,008,885,181 (Note 2) 62.85%
corporations
RS REZEHEE 2 = (FF3E2)
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

(continued)

Directors’ Report

ER KR ()

ESERS

FERRAARD TR R EER G HIERDR

xR (&)

Approximate
percentage of
Shareholding in
the Company

Total number of (Note 1)
Shares interested AR RERE
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of Interest BEREEN BHBES
BREEZRE B B, REmttE IR 17 48 % (KzE)
FZERERBIR Interest in controlled 1,008,855,181 (Note 2) 62.85%
ORI BRAR corporations
Pz ERE #R R ESER 2 #a (MF5E2)
ORI BRA R
Baohua United Capital Interest in controlled 1,008,855,181 (Note 2) 62.85%
Management Limited corporations
REBSEEEBERAT NI ESER 2 #a (M3E2)
Tai Security Holding Limited Beneficial owner 98,773,990 (Note 3) 6.15%
Tai Security Holding Limited ERBEEA (BfF3E3)
Good Union Hong Kong Beneficial owner 44,700,000 (Note 4) 2.78%
Investment Limited
EEBBREARRAA EREA A (Hf5E4)
Mr. Zhang Mingjie Interest in controlled 143,473,990 (Notes 3 8.94%
corporations and 4)
RIANEE REIEEEE 2 (M5E3%4)
Pengda Value Fund SPC (acting for  Beneficial owner 93,292,000 (Note 5) 5.81%

and on behalf of DTC SP)

Pengda Value Fund SPC
(ADTC SPITH)

BEEEAA

(P 3E5)
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EFETHRS

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions

in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

(continued)

ER KR ()

FERRAARD TR R EER G HIERDR

xR (&)

Approximate
percentage of
Shareholding in
the Company

Total number of (Note 1)
Shares interested EARD T RAE
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of Interest BHEREEN BHABES
BREBHHE B, kY B3 4EH (FfFEET)
Cinda Asset Management Interest in controlled 93,292,000 (Note 5) 5.81%
(Cayman) Limited corporations
Cinda Asset Management M EESER 2 #a (FFEES)
(Cayman) Limited
Cinda (BVI) Limited Interest in controlled 93,292,000 (Note 5) 5.81%
corporations
Cinda (BVI) Limited REZESER 2 (KH3E5)
Cinda International Holdings Interest in controlled 93,292,000 (Note 5) 5.81%
Limited corporations
FEBRZERERAF REZEHER 2 = (H$&ES)
Sinoday Limited Interest in controlled 93,292,000 (Note 5) 5.81%
corporations
Sinoday Limited M ZESER 2 #a (Hf5E5)
China Cinda (HK) Holdings Interest in controlled 93,292,000 (Note 5) 5.81%
Company Limited corporations
FEEE (BB ERBRAA REZEGNERE 2w (H$5ES)
China Cinda Asset Management Interest in controlled 93,292,000 (Note 5) 5.81%
Co., Ltd.* corporations
TREFEEETEROERAT RIESEE 2 ER (FF3ES)
Cinda Securities Co., Ltd Interest in controlled 81,432,000 (Note 5) 5.07%

EERBHFBRNDERRA

* For identification purpose only
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)
Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company
(continued)

Notes:

(1)

4)

%)

(6)

As at 31 December 2019, the total number of issued Shares of the Company was
1,605,152,291 Shares.

The 1,008,885,181 Shares were held by USUMHK, a company in which Mr. Tu was
indirectly interested in. USUMHK is directly wholly owned by USUM Group, a limited
liability company incorporated in the PRC. The single largest shareholder of USUM
Group is Loncin Holdings, with an equity interest in USUM Group of 49.055%.
The remaining equity interests in USUM Group are held by 16 individuals and 28
companies, all of whom are independent third parties of Loncin Holdings and Mr. Tu,
and they each hold between 0.29% to 10% equity interests in USUM Group. Loncin
Holdings is 98% owned by Loncin Group and 2% owned by Mr. Tu. Loncin Group
is 98% owned by Mr. Tu; 1% owned by Ms. Tu Jianmin and 1% owned by Ms. Tu
Jianrong, both being sisters of Mr. Tu. USUMHK held 1,008,885,181 Shares as at 31
December 2019. Therefore, Mr. Tu was deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
USUMHK pursuant to the SFO.

The 98,773,990 Shares were held by Tai Security Holding Limited (“Tai Security"”)
as beneficial owner and Tai Security was wholly-owned by Mr. Zhang Mingjie (“Mr.
Zhang") as at 31 December 2019. Therefore, Mr. Zhang was deemed to be interested
in the same number of Shares as held by Tai Security pursuant to the SFO.

The 44,700,000 Shares were held by Good Union Hong Kong Investment Limited
("Good Union") as beneficial owner and Good Union was wholly-owned by Mr. Zhang
as at 31 December 2019. Therefore, Mr. Zhang was deemed to be interested in the
same number of Shares as held by Good Union pursuant to the SFO.

The 93,292,000 Shares were held by Pengda Value Fund SPC (acting for and on
behalf of DTC SP) (“Pengda”) as beneficial owner and Pengda was wholly-owned
by Cinda Asset Management (Cayman) Limited (“Cinda Asset Management”). Cinda
Asset Management was wholly-owned by Cinda (BVI) Limited which was in turn
wholly-owned by Cinda International Holdings Limited (“Cinda International”). Cinda
International was held as to 63% by Sinoday Limited which was wholly-owned by
China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company Limited, which was in turn wholly-owned by
China Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd. Therefore, China Cinda Asset Management
Co., Ltd, China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company Limited, Sinoday Limited, Cinda
International, Cinda (BVI) Limited and Cinda Asset Management were deemed to be
interested in the same number of Shares as held by Pengda pursuant to the SFO.

The 81,432,000 Shares were held by Pengda Value Fund SPC (acting for and on
behalf of DTC SP) (“Pengda”) as beneficial owner and Pengda was wholly-owned
by Cinda Asset Management (Cayman) Limited (“Cinda Asset Management”). Cinda
Asset Management was wholly-owned by Cinda (BVI) Limited which was in turn
wholly-owned by Cinda International Holdings Limited (“Cinda International”). Cinda
International was held as to 63% by Cinda Securities Co., Ltd. (“Cinda Securities"”).
Therefore, Cinda Securities was deemed to be interested in the same number of
Shares as held by Pengda pursuant to the SFO.
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EFETHRS

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company
(continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the Company had
not been notified by any persons (other than the Directors and chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set by the
senior management of the Group based on their performance,
experience, and prevailing industry practices so as to retain competent
employees.

The emolument of the Directors is decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to the
Directors and eligible employees, details of which are set out on page
56 to 57 of this Annual Report.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION BY BAND

The remuneration of the Company'’s senior management by band for
the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out below:
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Number of
individuals
AE

Remuneration Band: FrENAa Bl
HK$0 to HK$1,000,000 078 7L 21,000,000/ T 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001% 7t £ 1,500,0007% 7T 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T 23,000,000 7T 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T £3,500,000/%8 7T 1
More than HK$3,500,001 3,500,001 T A £ 3
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report contained in this Annual
Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date
prior to the issue of this annual report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float under the Listing Rules throughout the financial
year ended 31 December 2019 and as at the date of this report.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 271 of the annual
report.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2019 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified Public
Accountants, who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

For and on behalf of the Board

Qin Yongming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 12 May 2020
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Corporate Governance Report
TEELBHRS

INTRODUCTION

The Company recognises the importance of maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance. The Company believes that an
effective corporate governance practice is fundamental to enhancing
shareholder value and safeguarding the interests of Shareholders and
other stakeholders. The Board sets appropriate policies and implements
corporate government practices appropriate to the conduct and growth
of the Group's business. The code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (the
"CG Code”) have been adopted to shape the Company’s corporate
governance structure. This corporate governance report describes how
the principles of the CG Code have been applied during the year ended
31 December 2019 under different aspects.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company recognises the importance of corporate transparency
and accountability and is committed to achieving a high standard of
corporate governance. Throughout the year ended 31 December 2019,
the Company has complied with all the applicable code provisions of
the CG code and Corporate Governance Report, contained in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules, with exceptions as explained below:

A.2.1

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. During the year ended 31 December
2019, Mr. Qin Yongming (“Mr. Qin”) held the offices of chairman of
the Board (“Chairman”) and chief executive officer (“CEQ") of the
Company. The Board believed that vesting the roles of both Chairman
and CEO in the same person provides the Company with strong and
consistent leadership and allows for effective and efficient planning
and implementation of business decisions and strategies. Accordingly,
the Directors considered that the deviation from provision A.2.1 of the
Code was appropriate in such circumstance.

66 Chiho Environmental Group Limited  Annual Report 2019

S
ARBRGBHFT SR FEEEAZER -
ARBREERZEEE AT RIRABRE
EBEERERREEMANSAEEER 2 E
AER - BFEHCEEBRRIEREAANE
BEBHRRERZEEERE R MR
AR+ A E AR EIA TR ([REERT
A1) 2 TR RRAERARR B 2B
ERRB - AREEAMEMABE—T N
Fr_A=T-BLEFEZFLEERTA
ZIRRVINMA AR AR TS E A E A o

W S BT A

RRBRACEFRENEEH 2E2 M
YHRNARERSFELEXER - BE_FT—N
FHoA=+—RHIFE2F ARRISET
LR RIS+ O EL CREEIRTRD K
(BEERME) WAEERARTRIRX  H
AT Bt Y IME SRR 9 -

A.2.1
RIBEZEERTRZ TG EA2 M5
FETBREZNACEERD A TEA—A
RE#T - RBE-_T-NAF+-A=+—
BIEFE RXBELE((RELEDEERR
AESEIR ([F]) RITRAaH ([11HRe
HDBB -EF9R5 - ARBEEEZRE
RATB#EE - ] AR R R AME BE
B WHEMMAMEMRE FATEBRER
REg - HiL EFRA/EUBER TREET RIS
A2 MEBRE -



COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE (continued)

Mr. Qin had tendered his resignation as the CEO of the Company with
effect from 1 March 2020 to focus on his other roles in the Group,
but remains as an executive Director of the Company and chairman
of the Board. Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan was appointed as CEO of
the Company with effect from 1 March 2020. Going forward, the
change of the CEO will allow the Company to better comply with the
requirement under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

A.5.5(2)

Pursuant to code provision A.5.5 (2) of the CG Code, where the Board
proposes to elect or re-elect an independent non-executive Director
(who will be holding their seventh (or more) directorship, the Board
should explain why such individual would still be able to devote
sufficient time to the board in the relevant Shareholders’ circular. Dr.
Loke Yu is an independent non-executive director of more than seven
public companies (including the Company) and was re-elected as an
independent non-executive Director at the Company’s annual general
meeting on 31 May 2019. The Company did not make the relevant
disclosure in its circular dated 18 April 2019 in relation to the re-
election of Directors (including Dr. Loke Yu), but subsequently included
the relevant explanation in its interim report for the six months ended
30 June 2019. The Nomination Committee and the Board focus
on the ability of a director to commit sufficient time to discharge
his responsibilities as a board member rather than the number of
directorships held, and as such they were of the view that Dr. Loke
Yu is able to devote sufficient time and attention to the Company’s
affairs having regard to his previous attendance at all Board and other
committee meetings held during the year.

DIRECTORS" SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the directors. All Directors have confirmed, following
specific enquiries made by the Company of all such Directors, that they
had complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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TEEBRS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition of the Board

As at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report,
the Board comprised three executive Directors (including the Chairman)
and three independent non-executive Directors, whose biographical
details are set out in the "Profile of Directors and Senior Management”
section on page 32 to 42 of this Annual Report, namely:

£
EEEmAR

RAFEHTNEMNKEERTTRE E5g
RER=FATER (BEIFE)R=2BT
FEMITESRAE - REZBEFFIFSHRANFR
ERNENE [BEFENERERBABEE]| —&

N BEFEENERE:

Date of first Date of last
appointment re-election
to the Board as Director
Name of Director HRXEZEMA F-REER
ESHE EEEg2HH AESCZHH
Executive Director BITES
Qin Yongming (Chairman) ZKBE (EE) 30 June 2016 31 May 2019
—T-RF —E-NF
NA=+H AA=+—H
Tu Jianhua Tu Jianhua 29 April 2015 12 June 2018
R —E-RF —E-)N\F
MA-+hH ~A+=H
Rafael Heinrich Suchan Rafael Heinrich Suchan 1 March 2020 N/A
(Chief Executive Officer) (TR BE)
—E-TF A3
=H—H
Independent Non-Executive Director BIYFHITES
Loke Yu e S A 23 June 2010 31 May 2019
—T-TF —E-NF
NAZ+=H AA=+—H
Qian Liping R 24 October 2016 24 May 2017
—E-RF —E—+F
+A=-+mA HFAZ-+mA
Ko Frankie Andrew = Iy o 19 February 2020 N/A
—TFTF i A
—A+hH
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Composition of the Board (continued)

None of the Directors has any personal relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationship) with any
other Director or chief executive.

Roles and responsibilities of the Board

The Board is collectively responsible for overseeing the management
of the business and affairs of the Group. The Board meets regularly
to discuss the overall strategies as well as operational and financial
performances of the Group. Certain matters are reserved for decisions
by the Board, including matters relating to: (i) the formulation of the
Group’s overall strategy and directions; (ii) any material conflict of
interest of substantial Shareholders of the Company or Directors; (iii)
approval of the Group’s annual results, annual budgets, interim results
and other significant operational and financial transactions; (iv) changes
to the Company’s capital structure; and (v) major appointments to
the Board. The Board has delegated the day-to-day management,
administration and operation of the Group and implementation and
execution of policies and strategies decided by the Board to the
executive Directors and management of the Company.

The Board is also responsible for performing corporate governance
duties including risk management, internal controls, those under D.3.1
of the Corporate Governance Code and relevant compliance issues
relating to the business operation of the Group.

The Board reviews and monitors the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior managers; develops,
reviews and monitors the code of conduct and compliance manual
applicable to employees and Directors.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director
having sound industry knowledge, extensive corporate and strategic
planning experience and/or expertise relevant to the business of the
Group. The Directors collectively bring a variety of experience and
expertise to the Company.
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EEXEBRS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board meetings and Board practices

All Directors have been given sufficient time and support to understand
the affairs of the Group and they have full and timely access to all
relevant information regarding the Group's affairs and have unrestricted
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary (“the
Company Secretary”). The Directors may seek independent professional
advice at the Company’s expenses in carrying out their duties and
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EREECHHRABEESS  BRAEE
2B CEHARKEBEAMASEEREZ
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responsibilities.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, 7 Board meetings and
one general meeting of the Company were held. The meetings are
structured to allow open discussion. At the Board meetings, the
Directors participated in discussing the strategies, operational and
financial performance, corporate governance policy and internal control

of the Group.

Set out below is the attendance of the Directors at the Board and

general meetings held during the year:
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No. of meeting attend/ Eligible to attend

BiHE/RERHEERAR

Regular General
Name of Director Board Meeting Meeting
Espg EHEZEER RRAE
Executive Director HTES
Qin Yongming FokH 717 1/1
Tu Jianhua REE 7 0/1
Rafael Heinrich Suchan (appointed with effect from Rafael Heinrich Suchan 0/0 0/0
1 March 2020) (B-Z-BF=f-AREZE)
Wong Wun Lam (resigned with effect from BERAR (BT -NF+tZAZTHRET) 6/7 11
20 December 2019)
Independent Non-Executive Director BUKBITES
Loke Yu FE 18 717 11
Qian Liping BEY 777 11
Ko Frankie Andrew (appointed with effect from Bhd (T TF_ATNAREZHE) 0/0 0/0
19 February 2020)
Zhu Hongchao (resigned with effect from KAB(H-T-TE-ATNAREE) 717 11

19 February 2020)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board meetings and Board practices (continued)

The Company Secretary or the staff of the company secretarial
department of the Company prepared and kept detailed minutes of
each Board meeting and, within a reasonable time after each meeting,
the draft minutes were circulated to all Directors for comment and the
final and approved version of the minutes were sent to all Directors
for their records. The same practices and procedures as used in the
Board meetings had also been adopted and followed for the Board
committees meetings. All the minutes of the meetings recorded
sufficient details of the matters considered and decision reached are
available for inspection by the Directors at anytime.

Notices of Board meetings were given to the Directors at least 14 days
prior to the date of the relevant meeting. Briefing papers were prepared
for all substantive agenda items and were circulated to the Directors at
least three days before each Board meeting. The company secretary is
responsible for providing accurate, timely and clear information to the
Directors prior to the Board meetings so as to ensure that the Directors
are able to make informed decisions regarding the matters to be
discussed in the meeting.

If any of the Directors has a potential conflict of interest in a matter
being considered in the Board meeting, such Director(s) shall abstain
from voting in relation to that particular matter. Independent non-
executive Directors with no conflict of interest in such matters would
be present at the Board meetings to deal with such conflict of interest
issues.

Access to sufficient information of the Group

The management is committed to providing the Board with appropriate
and sufficient explanation and information of the Group’s affairs
through financial reports, business and operational reports and budget
statements, in a timely manner, to enable them to make informed
decisions.

The Directors are also provided with access to the Group’s management
and Company Secretary at all times to obtain relevant information for
carrying out their duties as Directors of the Company.
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TEEELHRS

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

During the Reporting Period, Mr. Qin Yongming (“Mr. Qin”) took up the
role of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer simultaneously.

During the Reporting Period, Mr. Qin Yongming was responsible for
providing leadership of the Board and ensuring that all Directors are
properly informed on issues to be discussed at Board meetings. In
addition, he was responsible for ensuring that all Directors receive, in a
timely manner, adequate, complete and reliable information in relation
to the Group's affairs. The Chairman also encouraged Directors to
actively participate in and to make a full contribution to the Board so
that the Board functions effectively and acts in the best interest of the
Company.

During the Reporting Period, Mr. Qin Yongming was also responsible
for the strategic planning, administration and management of the
business of the Group. He was also responsible for the formulation
and successful implementation of Group policies and assuming full
accountability to the Board for all operations of the Group. Mr. Qin
Yongming oversaw the Group’s compliance and internal control matters
and maintains an ongoing dialogue with the Chairman and all Directors
to keep them fully informed of all major business developments and
issues. He had also been focusing on strategic planning and assessment
of mergers and acquisitions opportunities for the Company.

Mr. Qin had tendered his resignation as the CEO of the Company with
effect from 1 March 2020 to focus on his other roles in the Group,
but remains as an executive Director of the Company and chairman
of the Board. Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan was appointed as CEO of
the Company with effect from 1 March 2020. Going forward, the
change of the CEO will allow the Company to better comply with the
requirement under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All independent non-executive Directors were appointed for term of
three years. None of them hold any other offices in the Company or
any its subsidiaries or is interested in any Shares of the Company under
their respective letter of appointment. In the Board meetings and
Board committee meetings held during the year, constructive views and
comments are given by the independent non-executive Directors, who
have provided their independent judgement on the issues relating to
the strategy, performance, conflict of interest and management process
of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there were three
independent non-executive Directors, representing more than one-
third of the Board. Among the three independent non-executive
Directors, one of them has the appropriate professional qualifications
in accounting or related financial management expertise as required by
Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of its current independent non-
executive Directors a written confirmation of his/her independence and
the Board considers all of them, namely Dr. Loke Yu, Ms. Qian Liping
and Mr. Ko Frankie Andrew, to be independent pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules.
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EEXEBRS

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Yiu plays an important role in supporting the Board by ensuring
efficient and effective information flow within the Board and that the
Board's policy and procedures are followed.

The Company Secretary has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s
affairs. The Company Secretary reports to the Board through the
Chairman and CEO. All Directors may have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary who regularly updates the Board on
governance and regulatory matters and facilitates the induction and
professional development of the Directors.

The Company Secretary is also responsible for ensuring the procedures
of the Board meetings are observed and providing the Board with
opinions on matters in relation to the compliance with the procedures
of the Board meetings.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company Secretary
had received no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

The Board is fully involved in the selection and appointment of the
Company Secretary.
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EEEOWRS
BOARD COMMITTEES ETELET
To assist the Board in the execution of its duties, the Board has ZEFEBRAANEEFZEE (NITEEE BT
delegated specific functions to six Board committees, namely ZEE RERZE® FHEZEEE BKHERK
the Executive Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nomination ZBZEEKFEEBZE®)ZRIETHE U
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Strategy and Investment ~ BIE S & FITHS - sHBEE ST :
Committee and the Pricing Committee, details of which are as follows:
Strategy and
Executive Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration Investment Pricing
Name of Director Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee
B R 5
g #7%8g ENZEY REZEE FHZEE REZEE EEZEE
Executive Director YTES
Tu Jianhua REE M M
Qin Yongming E & C C C C
Rafael Heinrich Suchan Rafael Heinrich Suchan M M M
(appointed with effect from (RZZZZF
1 March 2020) ZR-BEEZM)
Wong Wun Lam AT (AZS-NF M M M
(resigned with effect from +ZA=t+AE
20 December 2019) BHE)
Independent BYFYTES
Non-Executive Director
Loke Yu e K C M M
Qian Liping BEY M M M
Ko Fankie Andrew Bhi (=S -TF M M C
(appointed with effect from ZRAThBR
19 February 2020) BZ{E)
Zhu Hongchao KEAB(RZTZTF M M C
(resigned with effect from ZAThBRET)
19 February 2020)
* C - Chairman * C—%JF
M — Member M—k 8
# Other members of the pricing committee are certain senior management of the # EEZEGHMKE RAARETEREERAE
Company.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Board established the Executive Committee in March 2011 with
written terms of reference, which is responsible for the management
and administration of the business of the Company and any matters
which are within the ordinary course of the Company's business under
the control and supervision of the Board and in accordance with the
provisions of the terms of reference of the Executive Committee for
ensuring a high standard of corporate governance and compliance
of the Company. The written terms of reference of the Executive
Committee are available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company's website.
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (continued)

The Board delegated certain corporate governance functions to the
Executive Committee, which develops and reviews the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance and makes
recommendations to the Board; reviews and monitors (i) the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management of the Company; (i) compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; and (iii) the code of conduct and Model Code applicable
to the Directors or employees.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Every newly appointed Director is provided with information and
a comprehensive induction to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as well
as his/her responsibilities under the relevant statutes, laws, rules and
regulations.

Development and training of Directors is an ongoing process to ensure
that they can perform their duties appropriately. During the year ended
31 December 2019, all Directors were provided with regular updates
on the Company’s performance, position and prospects to enable
the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties. In
addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that they continue to make contribution to the Board in
an informed and relevant manner. The Company updates Directors on
the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (continued)

Directors’ Training and Professional Development
(continued)

The training received by the Directors during the year ended 31
December 2019 is summarized as follows:
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HITERES (8)
EERIREXRER (H)

—hFE+ZA=+—RHLF
aJIHE%zzZZDT-

BEER#EC
BT 215

Directors Types of training
2= 138 Bl
Tu Jianhua R B
Qin Yongming Z= KA B
Rafael Heinrich Suchan Rafael Heinrich Suchan

(appointed with effect from 1 March 2020) (AZZ_ZF=A—HAREZE) -
Wong Wun Lam (resigned with effect from FEHR (BT - NFTZAZ+HRBET)

20 December 2019) A, B
Loke Yu Fa g R A, B
Qian Liping BB A, B
Ko Frankie Andrew = o o

(appointed with effect from 19 February 2020) (AZZE_ZEF_ATAhBRERE) -
Zhu Hongchao (resigned with effect from KAB(BZTEZFTF_A+NAEET)

19 February 2020) A, B
A — attending seminars/conferences/forums/briefings/workshops relevant to the business A - EAAEEEGRESREAB WG

of the Group or Director’s duties weg / wmE/wmne,/ TEs
B - reading articles relevant to corporate governance, regulatory updates and Directors’ B -MEERCEER BRNMEERELEERERE

duties and responsibilities

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in June 2010 with written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules. The Company has adopted a set of the revised
terms of reference of the Audit Committee on 15 December 2015,
which has included changes in line with the amendments to the Main
Board Listing Rules relating to the risk management and internal
control section of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report which has come into effect for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The written terms of reference
of the Audit Committee are available on the Stock Exchange's website
and the Company’s website. The Audit Committee has established a
whistleblowing policy of the Company in December 2012 and set out
the procedures on reporting possible improprieties in financial reporting
matters of the Company.
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EEXEBRS

AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include monitoring the
integrity of the financial statements of the Company, reviewing the
effectiveness of Company’s internal control (including the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company's
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training programs
and budget) and risk management systems as delegated by the Board,
and making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and engagement of the external auditor for the audit and non-audit
services. The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
enabling it to discharge its duties.

wzzBg (A)

BRZEEZE g%%a%#ﬂ$ﬂﬂm%
BRETRERE &é%A#@ﬁ#K

2 REEE (BEERARYE A2 #&
M%$ﬁ%a§12§ﬁ&wmu&ﬁﬁm
AHERTEH) RERERHE 2R SRE

BN BEMETTER LIFRRRBAES
SELHEBER - BRZBeREHARER
AEITHRE

Members of the Audit Committee and the attendance of each member BEZZEEXKEREKE 2 HEBERAT :
are as follows:
Role in Meetings Attended/
Name of Director Position Audit Committee  Eligible to Attend
gt/
Ex=pg B EERZEECHE FERLESERY
Loke Yu Independent non-executive Director Chairman 2/2
e g At BUFRITESR £
Qian Liping Independent non-executive Director Member 212
BEEY BUFNTES &
Ko Frankie Andrew (appointed with effect from Independent non-executive Director
19 February 2020) Member 0/0
Bk (R-Z_2F_ATNEREZE) BUFRTESR &
Zhu Hongchao (resigned with effect from Independent non-executive Director
19 February 2020) Member 212
Fi#(B_T_SF_AtNBREE) BUFRTES 8

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Audit Committee
reviewed, together with the management, the annual results, interim
results and related announcements including the disclosures, financial
reporting and the accounting policies adopted by the Group prior to
the submission to the Board’'s approval; discussed with management
on significant judgements affecting Group’s consolidated financial
statements and approved the appointment of auditor; reviewed and
discussed the internal control report;
adequacy and effectiveness of the Company” internal control and risk
management; and reviewed and monitored the external auditor’s

reviewed and assessed the

independence and objectivity and the effectiveness during the audit
process.

78  Chiho Environmental Group Limited  Annual Report 2019

BHE_T-NFT-_A=1t—HLFE FX
ZEgERERECNEZEE ST HERE
MeFEE hHXELEREAS  BEA
SERMNBE FBRRRGEBOR  BE
BEMNWYEAEEGAUBRRNEEH
%&m&%%%%% &0 MR M AR ES TR 3R
& et RAHE A AR N ERERE R R R B I A
Eiﬁ&ﬁa&,u& ] M ER PR SN AZ B
B8 S M S A AR R BB B AR



AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The Board is responsible for preparing the financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group on a
going concern basis. The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company'’s
annual results and consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2019. The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment in annual/
interim reports, price-sensitive announcements and other financial
disclosures. The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had engaged the
Group’s external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC"), to provide
the following services and their respective fees charged are set out as
below:
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Type of services PR #5355l
Audit services EE IR 26.1
Non-audit services e ET AR TS 6.6
Total 4aEt 32.7

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had also engaged
other auditors to provide audit services and non-audit services to
certain subsidiaries of the Group and the aggregated fees charged were
HK$ 1.4 million and HK$0.7 million respectively.
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EEXEBRS

AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)
Board’s Responsibilities for the Accounts

The Board is responsible for the preparation of accounts for each
financial period, which gives a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows for that period.
In preparing these accounts for the year ended 31 December 2019,
the Board has selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgements and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable, and has prepared the accounts on a going concern basis.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing all
information and representations contained in the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019 which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results
and cash flow for that period. The Directors consider that the financial
statements have been prepared in conformity with all appropriate
accounting standards and requirements and reflect amounts that are
based on the best estimates and reasonable, informed and prudent
judgement of the Board and the management. The Directors are not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared
the financial statements of the Company on a going concern basis.

The statements of the auditor of the Group about its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” on page 108 of this

Annual Report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing and
supervising the financial reporting process,
internal control procedures of the Group and nominating and
monitoring external auditors. In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the

risk management and

Listing Rules, the chairman of the Audit Committee possesses the
appropriate professional and accounting qualifications.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established in June 2010 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Company has adopted a set
of the revised terms of reference of the Nomination Committee on
15 August 2013. The written terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company's website.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include:

1. formulating the nomination policy for consideration by the Board
and implement the nomination policy laid down by the Board;

2. reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy; and

3. identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises Mr. Qin Yongming,
Executive Director, and Dr. Loke Yu, Ms. Qian Liping and Mr. Ko Frankie
Andrew, Independent Non-Executive Directors, and is chaired by Mr. Qin
Yongming.
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TEEELHRS

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The Nomination Committee convened one meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2019 with the attendance of each member as

follows: I
Role in Meetings
Nomination Attended/
Name of Directors Position Committee  Eligible to Attend
Bt/
EEpg B EREZEEZHE FERLESERY
Qin Yongming Executive Director Chairman 171
FokH HTES £
Loke Yu Independent non-executive Director Member "
Fe g BUFRITESR %8
Qian Liping Independent non-executive Director Member "
BEEY BUFNTES &
Ko Frankie Andrew (appointed with effect from Independent non-executive Director
19 February 2020) Member 0/0
Bhid (B-F-SF_AThBRERT) BAUFSTES 8
Zhu Hongchao (resigned with effect from Independent non-executive Director
19 February 2020) Member "
KB (B-Z-FFE_ATNARET) BUFNTES &

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2019, the Nomination
Committee has reviewed and discussed the composition, size and
structure of the Board, the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors and re-election of Directors.

In considering the nomination of new directors, the Company will
propose the candidates to the Nomination Committee, which will
review and make recommendation to the Board on the expertise, skills
and experience of the candidates appropriate to the requirements of
the business of the Company.

The composition of the Board has a significant element of diversity,

in terms of skills, regional and industry experience, background and
gender.

Chiho Environmental Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2019
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)
Board Diversity Policy

The Company has established a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) on 15 August 2013 which sets out the approach to
achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance the
effectiveness of the Board.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and education background, ethnicity, professional

experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

The Board sets measurable objectives to implement the Board Diversity
Policy and reviews such objectives from time to time to ensure their
appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards achieving
those objectives. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Nomination Committee considered the age, education background and
working experience of the candidates when selecting the executive
Directors.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness from time to time.
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EEXEBRS

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established in June 2010 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The written terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are available on the Stock Exchange’s website
and the Company’s website.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on, among other things, the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all directors and senior
management of the Company, and the remuneration packages for all
executive Directors and senior management of the Company.

The remuneration for the executive Directors comprises basic salary,
allowance and discretionary bonus.

Salary adjustments are made where the Remuneration Committee
takes into account performance, contribution and responsibilities of the

,D]]D
m!>

HaE
$ATE£§;E\tmiﬁﬁllﬂﬁﬁ‘ﬂ—@ﬁﬁﬁmikﬁ
BTN -EFERAKLFNEE S
I TRERBESE FHEEenEHBE

B PO B A2 P A e AR X B A8 uh T B B -

FEZseain (EheE) ARrR @A
FTEEE RS REEE T INEEE REE - ARk
RARZEATESRAAETIERE 2 F e
MmEFTREHEEER-

HITEENHFMERERT S R RBBTE
ATHE

HMEZ B EMREARER BERIRBE ML
AR - EEBRAFREZTRARBER

individual. Apart from basic salary, executive Directors and employees  AAXKIR - HITEFEREERELRFLIMNTE
are eligible to receive a discretionary bonus taking into account ~ EARUEREYIETEAL
factors such as market conditions as well as corporate and individual's
performance during the year.
The following table illustrates the elements of remuneration of TREEHRTEFLSHERBNFNEE -
executive Directors and senior management.
Remuneration Purpose Reward Policy details
e B 5 BRFEE
Basic salary To reflect the market value of Cash payment monthly Reviewed annually

each individual with market trend
EX%e REREBEAZTISEE BARSNR BFETSBYELRE
Allowance To attract and retain employees Reimbursement Market conditions
==Bh a5 KB EEE i [REACP

Discretionary
performance bonus

To motivate employees to deliver
high levels of performance of
the Company and individual
performance goals

HENE B RAREMEL®KER
RIAREREARIR B IR

BRI RE2R
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EEELBRS
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued) YMEE= (8)
The following table shows the breakdown of the Directors’ TRIIFEBFHE-ZT-NF+-_A="+—
remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2019: BIEFE &M BED T :
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and  Performance scheme Other
Fees  allowances bonus  contributions benefits Total
BIRER
Be  HeRER RERAL AR 2 EF @it
(Note (a))
(BizE@)
Year Ended 31 December 2019: BE-E-AE+t-A=t-HLEE:
Executive Directors BES
Mr. Tu Jianhua RBERE - 26 35 - - 6.1
Mr. Qin Yongming FABEE - 5.2 40 - 07 99
Rafael Heinrich Suchan Rafael Heinrich Suchan
(appointed with effect from 1 March 2020) (H-Z-ZEF=f-BHEZA) - - - - - -
Mr. Wong Wun Lam (resigned with ERRAAE(RZE-NF
effect from 20 December 2019) +-A-t+BEHT) - 30 - - - 30
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUFYTES
Dr. Loke Yu EEMEL 03 - - - - 03
Ms. Qian Liping BESLT 03 - - - - 03
Mr. Ko Frankie Andrew (appointed with BhdkE (B-52%F
effect from 19 February 2020) ZRThBRERA) - - - - - -
Mr. Zhu Hongchao (resigned with FEREE(B-F-FF
effect from (19 February 2020) ZATNBRESET) 03 - - - - 03

Note a: During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company made contributions to ~ fiita: HEZZ-AF+-A=+—HLFE ARA

the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for Mr. Tu Jianhua, Mr. Qin DRIAREESE RKAXERERREER
Yongming and Mr. Wong Wun Lam of HK$18,000, HK$18,000 and HK$18,000 AR I AT E 5T EIE B #153%18,0007 7T
respectively (2018:HK$18,000, HK$18,000 and HK$18,000 respectively). 18,0007 7T 2 18,0008 T (=T — NF: 95l A

18,0007 7T * 18,0007 7T }.18,00078 7T )

BEBRERERAT —E-hEg£®R 85



Corporate Governance Report

EEXEBRS

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Remuneration
Committee held two meetings. The Remuneration Committee
determined the policy for the remuneration of executive Directors,
made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of directors
and assessed the performance of the executive Directors. Members of
the Remuneration Committee and the attendance of each member are

as follows:
Name of Director Position
EEpE Bz

ZE8& (&)

,HJ]D

Zr

H

RBE-Z h¢+*ﬁi+—5¢¢§W'

FHMEZBREHBRMAGH FTHEERER

%ﬂﬁé%Z @NB{ CHEEFMEENE

E

S

GIEHHEBE R RTZHITESMRIE - Frol
ZEE s KNERERENELRERAENT :
Role in Meetings

Remuneration Attended/

Committee  Eligible to Attend
EFHZEES BHE/
ZHE SEBRHEEERE

Mr. Ko Frankie Andrew (appointed with effect from Independent non-executive Director
19 February 2020)
BhEEE (B-T-SF_ATNBREZE) BUFNITES

Dr. Loke Yu Independent non-executive Director
BEEmE L BUFSTES
Ms. Qian Liping Independent non-executive Director
ERSLL BUFRITESR
Mr. Zhu Hongchao (resigned with effect from Independent non-executive Director

19 February 2020)
SEREE (B-Z-ZF - A+ARRET) BUFNTES

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2019, the Remuneration
Committee has discussed and recommended to the Board for approval
of the Directors’ and senior managements’ remuneration of the Group
for the year of 2019, and the bonus payments to the Directors and
senior management.
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STRATEGY AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

In order to cope with the Group’s development needs, enhance
scientific planning and decision-making, promote the effectiveness
of material investment decision-makings and improve the corporate
governance structure of the Group, the Company established the
Strategy and Investment Committee in December 2015. The written
terms of reference of the Strategy and Investment Committee have
been subsequently adopted on 2 February 2016 and are available on
the Company's website.

The principal functions and responsibilities of the Strategy and
Investment Committee are to (i) study on the development strategies
and planning; and (ii) advise on the decision-makings on material
investments and capital operation of the Company.

The duties of the Strategy and Investment Committee include the
following aspects:

(i) to act as a delegate for the Board generally;

(i) to make decisions and pass resolutions, and to exercise all powers
of the Board on all matters of the Company in relation to its daily
operations and investment activities, including any non-connected
transaction if the applicable percentage ratios calculated under
Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules less than 5%; and

(i) to make recommendations to the Board concerning matters
of corporate significance not otherwise dealt by any other
committees of the Board, recommendations must be submitted
to the Board for approval in respect of all transactions if the
applicable percentage ratios calculated under Rule 14.07 of the
Listing Rules equal to or are more than 5%.
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EXEBRS
STRATEGY AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE BEERELZEE (F)

(continued)

Notwithstanding that the Strategy and Investment Committee is 1§§$W’z§5ﬁx§§,\ BERRARANEE
entitled to exercise all powers of the Board on all matters of the T’F&&ﬁ/ﬁ@ﬁﬁ’]?ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ@i*ﬁ]%%@
Company in relation to its daily operations and investment activities, 1 /1 - {BARIREE S P ey Al 4% DEEERE
recommendations must be submitted to the Board for approval for R EMR5%HIMERS E\'Jbéﬁﬁx #T
all transactions with a percentage ratio equal to or higher than 5% EEE&FEH -

according to the testing result of the Stock Exchange.

The Strategy and Investment Committee currently consists of Mr. Qin  BEEREZ S8 FREARKBEE RE
Yongming, Mr. Tu Jianhua, Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan, and Mr. Goh  ZEJE4 - Rafael Heinrich Suchanft 4 & R 2R
Kian Guan and is chaired by Mr. Qin Yongming. Mr. Rafael Heinrich — FEA4E#HAK - ZRoKBASEAE B LN © Rafael Heinrich
Suchan was appointed as a member of the Strategy and Investment ~ SuchanfEER—ZE-_TF=A - HEZHER

Committee on 1 March 2020. HERRKRELEEKE -
STRATEGY AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE —E— ﬂi@k B ELZEEeR
MEETINGS ATTENDANCE 2019 2 BEE
Role in
Strategy and Meetings
Investment Attended/
Name of Committee members Position Committee  Eligible to Attend
EEKERE Bt/
ZEBREHRE B ZEEBZHE RERLEERRY
Qin Yongming Executive Director Chairman 0/0
ZKH HTES £
Tu Jianhua Executive Director Member 0/0
REE HOTES &
Goh Kian Guan Chief Investment Officer Member 0/0
RER BRRET B8
Rafael Heinrich Suchan (appointed with Executive Director Member 0/0
effect from 1 March 2020)
Rafael Heinrich Suchan (=S -Z 5= —BREZE) H11EZ 2g=!
Wong Wun Lam (resigned with Executive Director Member 0/0
effect from 20 December 2019)
BEAR(A-Z-NE+AZTHERE) HTES B8
William Thomas Bird (resigned with Chief Operating Officer Member 0/0
effect from 24 October 2019)
William Thomas Bird (E=Z—NFT+AZTHARLET) HFEEER &
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PRICING COMMITTEE

The Pricing Committee, which currently comprises Mr. Qin Yongming,
Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan and Mr. Udo Langhans and is chaired
by Mr. Qin Yongming, has been established and delegated with the
operations of the Group’s policy regarding dealings in metal futures
contracts (the “Policy”). It determines the range of metal futures
contracts that the Group may enter into during the month. On a daily
basis, the Pricing Committee reviews the open positions of the Group
and determines (i) the offer and sell price of our physical stock and
our hedging requirements; (ii) the quantity and the price of the metal
futures contracts that the Group is going to buy or sell; (iii) enhance
the risk management of commodity price fluctuations and to ensure an
effective risk monitoring system.

The Board receives a report from the Pricing Committee on the Group's
metal futures activities carried out. Should the Pricing Committee
determine that any positions are to be taken, it must inform the Board
and provide supporting reasons in its report. In addition, the Company's
finance department assesses and reports to the Board on the open
positions of the Group based on the Group's cash position.

In the event the report from the Company's finance department
demonstrates that the Group is not in strict compliance with the
hedging limit and the daily limit, the Group will put in place and
implement a plan to decrease the open positions of the Group within a
reasonable time in order to comply with the limits.

Following a review of the current business operations, internal controls,
risk management and policies and practices regarding dealings in metal
futures contracts of the Group, on 7 March 2018, the Board adopted a
commodity price risk hedging policy which the Board believes is more
suitable for the current operating conditions of the Group.
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EEXEBRS

PRICING COMMITTEE (continued)

The Pricing Committee convened eight meetings during the year ended
31 December 2019 with the attendance of each member as follows:

EEZEE (F)
RBE-F-NAF+-A=+— Eﬁiﬁ'
EEZBEHBM/ KRG FHKEHEE
M

Role in Meetings Attended/

Pricing Committee  Eligible to Attend
EEBERE g,/
ZBE RERLREEERY

Name of Committee members Position
ZEBHERS B

Qin Yongming Executive Director
FKH HITEZ

Wong Wun Lam (resigned with effect from Executive Director
20 December 2019

ERR(B-E-NF TR THREE)

William Thomas Bird (resigned with effect from
24 October 2019)

William Thomas Bird (FF =% —

Udo Langhans

Udo Langhans

RITEF
Chief Operating Officer

NETAZTHRERE) EREER

EREREELE

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2019, the Pricing Committee
has reviewed the Group’s monthly physical stock price and commodities
transactions. The Pricing Committee held review meetings with the
Board of Directors in 2019 to review and discuss the Pricing Committee
Report. In the review meetings, the Pricing Committee and the Board
of Directors reviewed and discussed the Group’s commodity future
contracts’ exposure level, the corresponding procurement and inventory
management strategy of each quarter in 2019, and reviewed the
Group'’s Policy regarding dealings in metal futures contracts.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Responsibility of the Board and management

The Board is responsible for overseeing and ensuring the Group
has established and maintained an appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems, including reviewing their
effectiveness where as management is responsible for the design and
implementation of the risk management and internal control systems.

The Company leverages on the expertise offered by internal and
external professionals to develop its internal control system, which
includes a well-established corporate structure and an organisation with
clearly defined lines of responsibility and authority.

The Group's risk management and internal control systems are designed
to assist the Group in meeting its strategic objectives. These systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Risk Management Framework

The Group has established an Enterprise Risk Management (“ERM")
framework to assist the Group in managing its risks. The Group’s ERM
framework includes the following key elements:

(1) Risk Identification — A Risk Universe fits for the Group's business
model has been established. Relevant risks faced by the Group
have been identified and the risks are classified into four types,
namely, strategic, operational, financial reporting and compliance
Risk;

(2)  Risk Assessment — A Risk Workshop amongst key management
members was conducted to assess and priorities the risks of
the Group. The risks are assessed in terms of the likelihood of
their occurrence and the significance of their impact by the key
management of the Group;

(3) Risk Mitigation — A Risk Owner is assigned to each key risk
identified. Each Risk Owner is responsible for the risk assigned.
Risk mitigation actions are tailored and established to address the
risks; and
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EEXEBRS

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Risk Management Framework (continued)

(4)  Risk Monitoring and Reporting — Risk Owner is responsible for
ensuring the risk mitigation plan is executed and implemented
properly by appropriate parties (e.g. with appropriate measures/
adequate policies and procedures in place).
has a role to evaluate and assess if the risk mitigation plans

Internal Audit

are designed and operated effectively by management. The
development and the status of the ERM program is reported to
the Audit Committee on a regularly basis.

The implementation of the Group’s ERM framework was assisted by
management, the Group’s Pricing Committee, Strategy and Investment
Committee and Internal Audit Department. These framework and setup
enables the Group to ensure any new and emerging risk relevant to the
Group’s operation is promptly identified and managed.

Internal Audit

The Group’s Internal Audit Department is to provide independent
assurance to the Board and executive management on the adequacy
and effectiveness of risk management and internal controls for the
Group. The Group's Internal Audit Department adopts a risk-and-
control based audit approach. The annual work plan of the Group's
Internal Audit Department covers major activities and processes of
the Group's business units whilst audit plan is reviewed and agreed
by the Audit Committee.
work, the Group's Internal Audit Department conducts other review
and investigative work as may be required. All audit reports are
communicated to the Audit Committee and key members of executive
and senior management. Audit issues are tracked and followed up for
proper implementation, with progress reported to the Audit Committee,

In addition to the agreed schedule of

executive and senior management periodically. The risk management
and internal control system of the Group is reviewed and assessed
on an on-going basis by the Executive Directors, and will be further
reviewed and assessed at least once each year by the Audit Committee
and the Board.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Review of Risk Management and Internal Control
Effectiveness

Through the Audit Committee, the Board has conducted an annual
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems for the year ended 31 December 2019,
covering the material financial, operational and compliance controls,
and considered the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems effective and adequate.

The Audit Committee has also conducted an annual review of the
adequacy of resources, qualifications, experience and training programs
of the Group's internal audit staff and accounting and financial
reporting staff and considered that the staffing is adequate and the
staffs are competent to carry out their roles and responsibilities.

(@) The Board shall be ultimately responsible for ensuring that
adequate and effective systems are present to maintain
compliance with the continuous disclosure obligations of the
Company.

(b)  The Board shall delegate the routine oversight of the Company’s
disclosure obligations to the Disclosure Team, which is responsible
for:

(i) ensuring proper systems and controls are in place to collect,
review and verify potential Inside Information;

(i) reviewing potential Inside Information and deciding which
information must be disclosed;

(i)  deciding whether the Company may delay publication of
Inside Information;

(iv) vetting and clearing announcements or other public
disclosures (such as presentation materials for analysts’
meetings);
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TEEELHRS

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Review of Risk Management and Internal Control
Effectiveness (continued)

(b)  (continued)

(v)  deciding whether other action, such as the seeking of
suspension of trading pending clarification of uncertainties,
as may be necessary;

(vi)  keeping proper records of all the information received and
decisions made;

(vii)  where necessary, engaging financial, legal or other advisers
to assist the Disclosure Team to carry out its duties;

(viii)

ensuring that employees are educated on the policy and
internal reporting process;

(ix)  supervising the Company’s compliance with continuous
disclosure obligations; and

(x)  establishing periodic financial reporting procedures so that
key financial and operating data is identified and escalated

in a structured and timely manner.

(c)  The Disclosure Team comprises the following members or their
delegates:

(i) Executive Directors;
(i) Chief Financial Officer; and

(iii)  Other members as the Board may designate from time to
time.

94 Chiho Environmental Group Limited  Annual Report 2019

£

A,
=]

EIE R NERELYE (4B)

ENEREERABEZNERME (B

(b)

(%)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

()

REEEHTERNEMITE) - 1
ABEFEBEHTHERZmZK
TERHEE(WEFTE)

REFFTA B &R AE LR TE H)H
BRERH TR

NBER BRAME ERIEM
BRNGYREARITERE:

TR 1 B A BUR K A BPEE 3R 7
2

ﬁb'FXZ'K ﬂ ﬁ_

K

TRHEREEE:

RLTE M TS E SRAZ /T 0 AfE RE
B RG NER R N RS
BB 7% R B BUR -

WEARIATREREENRKRAMN :

0

(ii)

(iii)

HITEE

B HREL

EESA R TREZIR 2 HAMAK

g5 o



Corporate Governance Report

EEELBRS
RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL e i 1R N (N EBBEYE (48)
(continued)
Review of Risk Management and Internal Control EHEBEERABEZNERY ()
Effectiveness (continued)
As soon as the staff become aware of the potential inside information, ~—B B LA REEKHIARIES  KEEY

they must immediately report to their respective disclosure officers. The ~ BRI ZH)IEE B 52 A B i - B R R A
respective disclosure officers will report to Responsible Director of the ERAEEFAMHEEANEEEFTHRE -
Disclosure Team in writing. The report (the “Report”) must be sent to  ##E ([ZWE ) BARFHUBEHLARZ
the Responsible Director by hand or email and marked “Private and % B EZEF WAL E F108 [HE XM 5%
Confidential” on the cover. The Report should set out details of the  EEEHIIAEHEHNFE 21

inside information including:

(@)  a general description of the matter; (@) ZEHEM ML
(b)  the name(s) of the party(ies) involved; () BEFEE:
() the relevant date(s) of the event(s) or transaction(s); (0 ZEHIXHHEEEE:

(d) the status of the matter (e.g. negotiations still in progress/ (d) FZFIEARR (FIa0: DIEREZE/AFE

preliminary negotiations/final stage) HIIEPEER)
(e)  the amount and other major term(s) involved; and () WhEBREMFBKN: K

(f)  if applicable, the Report should also attach the draft agreement () W& TFEREN EAREEAKER

to be entered into by any member of the Group as well as any BRI 2 e B AR A SR (E AT T A AR 8
other document which may be of relevance. B E At S (anE A ) o
Upon receipt of the Report, the Responsible Director shall, forward the ~ —BUEIHE  BEEEFREHZRSERE

Report with relevant materials to the Disclosure Team. The Disclosure — BAE R T ER4H - R AR A EEERE
Team shall then conduct preliminary assessment of the information — FBEFTHIZFRIE - NFEAAR R FEHEEREM
received, and after consultation with the relevant professional advisers & FE =& W °

of the Company and then report to the Board of Directors.
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TEEELHRS

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has established a shareholders’ communication policy
(the "Shareholders’” Communication Policy”) in March 2012 for
setting out the policies, communication strategies and practices
of the Company for communication with its shareholders. The
Shareholders" Communication Policy enables the Shareholders to obtain
comprehensive and plain information of the Company, to exercise their
powers on an informed basis and to strengthen their communication
with the Company.

The Company has established and maintained a dialogue with
Shareholders by conveying information to the Shareholders and
investors through the Company’s financial reports (interim and annual
reports); annual general meeting and other meetings that may be held;
and all the information submitted to the Stock Exchange for disclosure,
as well as corporate communications and other publications which shall
be posted on the website of the Company.

The Company undertakes to convey information to the Shareholders
and investors in a timely and effective manner at all times. If there are
any questions about the Shareholders’ Communication Policy, it shall be
delivered to the Company Secretary or the Head of Investor Relations
Department of the Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(continued)

Dividend Policy

The Company may declare and pay dividends to the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) by way of cash or by other means
that the Board considers appropriate. It is the policy of the Board, in
recommending dividends, to allow the Shareholders to participate in
the Company’s profits, and at the same time, to ensure the Company
to retain adequate reserves for future growth. The Company’s decision
to declare or to pay any dividends in the future, and the amount of
such dividends will depend upon, among other things, the current and
future operations, financial condition, liquidity position and capital
requirements of the Group, as well as dividends received from the
Company's subsidiaries and associates, which in turn will depend
on the ability of those subsidiaries and associates to pay a dividend.
In addition, any final dividends for a financial year will be subject to
the approval of the Shareholders. The declaration and payment of
dividends by the Company is also subject to any restrictions under the
laws of Bermuda, the laws of Hong Kong, the Company’s articles of
association, bye-laws and any applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Whilst this Dividend Policy reflects the Board’s current views on the
financial and cash-flow position of the Group, the Board will continue
to review this Dividend Policy from time to time and the Board may
exercise its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify this Dividend Policy at any time as it deems fit and necessary.
There is no assurance that dividends will be declared or paid in any
particular amount for any given period. The Dividend Policy shall in no
way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company that any
dividend will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way obligate
the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
Shareholders general enquiries

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to
the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited.

Shareholders and the investment community may at any time make a
request for the Company’s information to the extent such information is
publicly available.
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TEEELHRS

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)
Procedures for putting forward enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time forward enquires to the Board in writing
through the Company Secretary who will direct the enquiries to the
Board for handling. The contact details of the Company Secretary are as
follows:

The Company Secretary

48 Wang Lok Street

Yuen Long Industrial Estate
Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2587 7799
Email Address: ComSec@chihogroup.com

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General
Meetings

Subject to the provisions of the articles of association of the Company
("Articles of Association”), the Listing Rules and the applicable laws
and regulations, Shareholders may convene general meetings of the
Company in accordance with the following procedures:

1. One or more Shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company (the Requisitionist(s)”) may require the Board to
convene an extraordinary general meeting of the Company (an
"EGM") by depositing a written requisition (the “Requisition”) at
the registered office of the Company at Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands
and a copy thereof at the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong at 48 Wang Lok Street, Yuen Long
Industrial Estate, Hong Kong, for the attention of the Board or
the Company Secretary.

2. The Requisition must clearly state the name(s) and shareholding in
the Company of the Requisitionist(s), specify the purposes of the
EGM and the details of the business proposed to be transacted in
the EGM and be signed by the Requisitionist(s) and may consist
of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of
the Requisitionists.
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TEEBRS
SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued) AR SRAER (48)
Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General BRRBEARRAS2Z2ERF (#)

Meetings (continued)

3. Upon receipt of the Requisition, the Directors shall verify the WEIFkE% EFAEERQNRZRNG
Requisition with the Company’s branch share registrar and upon B BREZBRE URERZHA
this confirmation that the Requisition is proper and in order, shall KERLERBEER EIANEXEHA
forthwith proceed duly to convene the EGM, and such EGM PRERFRIAS  ZIRERERASHRE
shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of the KEXRZEMQ)ERRNETT-
Requisition.

4. If the Directors do not within twenty-one (21) days from the date MERLHEREE -_+—QNERKN - EF
of the deposit of the Requisition proceed duly to convene the RERXBHRKERERIAE - AIFERKAT
EGM, the Requisitionist(s), may himself or themselves convene the BENAREAFANBRABREFNAS M
EGM in the same manner and all reasonable expenses incurred by ERAREFEREARARRGIAS
the Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be MEREE ZFBRSBRARNTME
reimbursed to the Requisitionist(s) by the Company. SRAVEHER

5. Under the Articles of Association and pursuant to the BEEBERMA N EHARRZRE

requirements of the Listing Rules, a notice specifying the time
and place and the general nature of the proposed business to be
transacted at the EGM shall be given to all Shareholders entitled
to attend the EGM for consideration in the following manner:

(i) notice of not less than 21 clear days or 10 clear business
days, whichever is the longer, if a special resolution is to be
passed at the EGM; and

(i) notice of not less than 14 clear days or 10 clear business
days, whichever is the longer, in all other cases, provided
that a EGM may be called by a shorter notice if it is so
agreed by a majority in number of the Shareholders having
the right to attend and vote at the EGM, being a majority
together holding not less than 95% in nominal value of the
issued shares of the Company giving such right.

The notice period is exclusive of (i) the day on which the notice
is served or deemed to be served; and (i) the day on which the
EGM is to be held.
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TEEELHRS

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for Shareholders to Make Proposals at
General Meetings

Subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association, the Listing
Rules and the applicable laws and regulations, Shareholders may
propose a resolution at general meetings of the Company by following
the "“Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General Meetings” to
convene an extraordinary general meeting and propose a resolution
to be resolved at that extraordinary general meeting. Please refer to
the document titled “Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General
Meetings” on the Company’s website.

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director

Subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association, the Listing Rules
and the applicable laws and regulations, the Company may from time
to time in general meeting by ordinary resolution elect any person to be
a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional Director.

1. Shareholder(s) may propose a person (the “Candidate”) for
election as a Director at general meeting in accordance with the
following procedures:

(@) a Shareholder or a group of Shareholders holding not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company may requisition an extraordinary general meeting
to propose the Candidate to be elected as a Director in
the manner provided in “Procedures for Shareholders to
Convene General Meetings”; or

(b)  Election of directors whether by rotation or otherwise in
the place of those retiring would be considered ordinary
business at an annual general meeting of the Company (the
“AGM") and if the notice of an AGM includes the election
of Directors, any Shareholder may propose the election of
any person as a Director at the AGM;
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A RAEF (48)
BRREEER-SALRESZRF (H)

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)
Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for

Election as a Director (continued)

1.

(continued)

Provided that, in each case, no Candidate other than a Director
retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by the
Directors for election, be eligible for election as a Director at any
general meeting unless:

(i) a notice signed by a Shareholder (other than the person
to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the
meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to
propose such Candidate for election; and

(i) a notice signed by the Candidate of his willingness to be
elected,

shall have been lodged to the Company at its principal place
of business in Hong Kong at 48 Wang Lok Street, Yuen Long
Industrial Estate, Hong Kong within the period of at least seven
(7) days commencing on the day after the despatch of the notice
of the general meeting and ending no later than seven (7) days
prior to the date appointed for such general meeting.

In addition, the notice must contain the information as specified
in Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules about the Candidate,
including but not limited to the following:

(i) full name;

(i) age;

(iii)  business and residence addresses;

(iv)  principal occupation or employment;

(v)  experience including (a) other directorships held in the
last three years in public companies the securities of
which are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or
overseas, and (b) the major appointments and professional
qualifications; and

(vi) interests in shares of the Company within the meaning of

Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 576
of the Laws of Hong Kong).
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EEXEBRS

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there was no change in the
Company's constitutional documents.

CONVENING OF GENERAL MEETINGS

The Board strives to maintain an on-going dialogue with the
Shareholders of the Company. Shareholders are encouraged to
participate in general meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and
vote at meetings for and on their behalf if they are unable to attend
the meetings. The process of the Company’s general meetings are
monitored and reviewed on a regular basis, and, if necessary, changes
will be made to ensure that Shareholders’ needs are best served. The
Company uses the annual general meeting as one of the principal
channels for communicating with the Shareholders. The Company
ensures that Shareholders’ views are communicated to the Board.

At the annual general meeting, each substantially separate issue has
been considered by a separate resolution, including the election of
individual Directors. The Chairman of the Board, chairmen of the
respective Board committees and the external auditor usually attend
annual general meetings to communicate with and answer questions
from the Shareholders.

The last annual general meeting of the Company was the 2018 annual
general meeting (the “2018 AGM") which was held at 23/F, Infinitus
Plaza, 199 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong on Friday, 31 May 2019
at 11:00 a.m.

All resolutions put to Shareholders at the 2018 AGM were passed.
The Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar were appointed as
scrutineers to monitor and count the poll votes cast at that meeting.
The results of the voting by poll were published on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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CONVENING OF GENERAL MEETINGS (continued) AFRKRRRE (&)

Percentage of

Resolutions proposed at the 2018 AGM votes in favor
REB-NFREBFAGRENRBR RERENBED L

1.

To review and approve the audited consolidated financial statements, the report of the

Directors and the report of the independent auditor of the Company for the year ended 31

December 2018. 100%
BERERRABE_T— N\FT_A=T—HLEFENLCEZGESUB®RE A2 7
EEEMERB U REA®RE -

To re-elect Mr. Qin Yongming as an executive Director of the Company 100%
R KARERETDANTES

To re-elect Dr. Loke Yu as an independent nonexecutive Director of the Company. 100%
BEESME T RERARBIBIIFRITES

To authorise the Board to fix the Directors’ remuneration 100%

REEEGETEFHH
To re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company and to authorise the

Board to fix its remuneration. 100%

BRESAKBEHAMEBARARATZYM UREEESBETHEHM-

To grant a general mandate to the Directors to allot, issue and deal with any additional

shares in the Company which shall not in aggregate exceed 20% of the total number of

shares of the Company in issue as at the date of passing this resolution.** 98.812%
BRYEERE FTREERRABEMEIMNMIGO 2 —REE EROEE XK EHEBER
ARRBBEBARRAEEITRNDAEZ20% © **

e

To grant a general mandate to the Directors to exercise all the powers of the Company

to repurchase its own shares not exceeding 10% of the total number of shares of the

Company in issue as at the date of passing this resolution.* 100%
BRYERTEARRMERN  BROARARG 2 —REE ERHOEE TEBBIRE
REBBEARRFDBEITROAE210% © *

To approve the extension of the general mandate granted to the Directors to allot new
shares by adding to it the number of shares repurchased, if any, pursuant to the share

repurchase mandate. 98.800%
HAEZBEMBERMEBELEEBL 2 RHEBE (NE)MBEAR TESFEENRN 2 —
AR
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The management of the Company believes that effective and proper
investor relations play a vital role in creating shareholders’ value,
enhancing the corporate transparency as well as establishing market
confidence. As such, the Company has adopted a stringent internal
control system to ensure true, accurate, complete and timely disclosure
of relevant information pursuant to requirements of relevant laws
and regulations in order to ensure all shareholders equal access to
information. To strive for effective communication and transparency
of the Company, the personnel in charge have frequent contact with
Shareholders and investors through various channels such as via
interviews, presentations, internet, telephone and email.

In addition, the Company has during the year ended 31 December
2019 organised numerous site visits to the Group’s facilities with several
fund managers and equity market analysts. Through the site visits,
the visitors managed to have a better understanding of the Group's
operations and an opportunity to know more about the Group's
development strategy.

We will continue to establish communication opportunities in order to
enhance investors’ understanding of and confidence in the Company.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

To deter wrongdoing and to promote standards of good corporate
practices, the Company adopted a whistleblowing policy in December
2012. This policy aims at encouraging and enabling employees of the
Group at all levels and others to report violations or suspected violations
and to raise serious concerns about possible improprieties in matters of
financial reporting or other matters of the Group.

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company discloses information in compliance with the securities
regulations of the Stock Exchange and the Securities and Futures
Commission, and publishes periodic reports and announcements to the
public in accordance with relevant laws and regulations. Our primary
focus is to ensure information disclosure is timely, fair, accurate, truthful
and complete, thereby enabling Shareholders, investors as well as the
public, to make rational and informed decisions.
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Major Events of CEG In 2019
BERR_F—NFKSE5C

JANUARY —A

Commercial production of FMA processing line for RESEEKRFMARBREELEE
ELV recycling

The Group’s FMA (fine-grained metal containing waste) Z~% BEREE BFMA (fine-grained metal
processing line in Germany commenced operation. This  containing waste ) Bz 32 &2 3% A\ A& % i 12
processing line mainly processes shredded wastes and waste %% F ZERIEIEIEH M/ NERI A EERER
circuit boards, and recycles the copper and precious metals I EIWCE AR B9 iR ANH & £ 8 - FIMAR IR 4R
therefrom. The FMA processing line further reduced the residual ~ — [ I1E 7T & BB R ERRERL 30
wastes which would have been landfilled or incinerated and 1™ 7 MEETHHERS EREUWE - FMALR
enhanced the recovery rate of ELV. The processing technique in EARNEE TEHANEE I ZEEG S L
the FMA processing line was researched and developed internally 2 B RF %2 - ZERIBRNIRAEE
over a two year time frame, upholding our leading position in the — BIZEF T 4B (R F5 R £ B UL o
industry in terms of technological advancement.

MARCH

Completion of upgrade of
shredder in Kladno, Czech
Republic

The Group’s operations in Czech
Republic is boosted with the
completion of an upgrade of the
shredder in Kladno, to better serve the
greater Prague region. Thanks to the
dedication of the team, the project
is completed on time and within ==

budget. The shredder operation has .

sinceg resumed commerciaﬁ) production, 52 R ALt 52 52 H A Bl Kladno S 3 7 7+ 4% .

oroductivity has since increased from AN S B R 5 AL AN ) 2 58 PR L B Kladno Y 1 HE i FE Ak 4R i JE IR 7> AT .
FERB A MAR U R - BRIEBAX TS ) ZIBE RN TEE AT - B

& M HEIRERmFEAERE  EfB UL R2008, /NG N Z=3508, /N o

20 tonnes/hour to 35 tonnes/hour.
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APRIL

Commencement of operation of joint venture with Heng Hup Group in
Malaysia

The joint venture between the Group and Heng Hup Group has commenced operation.
This joint venture is primarily engaged in the dismantling of scrap motors and other mixed
metals scrap. The recycled metals are then sold both locally to feed the industrial demands
as well as exported to China.

A

RERACHESEES
ERINEELHERAE
B

AEEE WIS B A ER L
MEELXERAZE %
RELETBUEEEEK
REMBERA S BHYER
X7 o TR & B E R R
BEHHEABNTERR

AR OERE-
AUGUST A

Commencement of e-motor MREBEBES EZEEMEricRHEHERBBREERES

shredding operations in Erie, AEENERNERBREEGHRALBE - EBEERERBRERR
Pennsylvania, USA EMAEANBNEEEK CRTEEENEE AEBBEETSA

The Group’s shredded motor line in  TEEMEEL KRTEEEEEW ZEBEOAIAREEESR-

the US commenced operation. This
processing line collects and processes
scrap motors in the East Coast and
around the Great Lakes region in the
US. In designing this processing line,
the Group preserved its flexibility to
the maximum extent, as not only
can it shred scrap motors, but it also
processes scrap cables.
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Major Events of CEG In 2019
BRARCE—NFARSE

NOVEMBER +—A

Commencement of operation of RENEECMREER LK

joint venture with CMR in India BELERANEE
RNEBEECMRAE ER LY

The joint venture between the Group
and CMR has commenced operation.
Located in the state of Gujrat, India, this

BELEBRALB -Z
AEEMIEGujratF

joint venture is primarily engaged in the FRUEREER/ERALML
dismantling of scrap motors and other BERSSBHOFMRE
mixed metals scrap. Currently, all products %o BAAMBEMINE
are sold domestically to feed domestic iﬁﬁfguﬁgﬁémlﬁﬁﬁ
industrial demands. He

Establishment of joint venture with Hidaka E2Hidaka Yookoo Enterprises Co. Limited &2
Yookoo Enterprises Co. Limited and Suzuki Suzuki Shokai Co. Limitedf{ I & & %

Shokai Co. Limited

A cooperation agreement was signed among the Group,  Z<%:[E E2Hidaka Yookoo Enterprises Co. Limited
Hidaka Yookoo Enterprises Co. Limited and Suzuki Shokai  Suzuki Shokai Co. Limited% & & 1E 1 - LARKILA
Co. Limited to establish a joint venture to set up a metal EBEXX FEE-_T - TFAREFBIEENE
recycling business in Thailand in 2020, focusing on the EBEERERHEMEBEERSCENFERENSED

dismantling of scrap motors and other mixed metals scrap. W7 -

DECEMBER
New yard opening in Fredericia, Denmark

The Group's wholly owned subsidiary in Denmark,
Uniscrap A/S (“Uniscrap”), has opened one of the most
modern operating facilities at Taulov Dry Port, Denmark.
The 20,000 square meter yard is linked to a nearby deep
sea terminal in Frederica Port. Taulov is now one of the
most modern scrap yards in Denmark, equipped with
the latest technology and maximum consideration for
the environment. Together with the new port facility in
Fredericia, Uniscrap has strengthened its position for the
future as a major player in the Danish recycling industry.

+—A

A F ZFredericiafi :R#F L5

REBRFE 2 2 & F 2 aUniscrap A/S ([Uniscrap ) 2 7 /25 Taulov Dry PortBi & &R AL
KB 2 — © 7% L5 5#220,000 752K + 2L Ay Frederica Port)4 7K 85 58 #H 2 © Taulovii
BARESRARCNENE, — EESTBRITAREARE LREYRENTE - ERE
Fredericiaf®) 778 O 5% * UniscrapE B EHIEA S ZERIRITE T E L2 HE K R LML
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B EHRS

_E
pwc BEAAE

To the Shareholders of Chiho Environmental Group Limited BECRAREEERATRRK
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability) (REESFSTMA 78 ER 2 E])
OPINION =33

What we have audited BMEEAHNRE

The consolidated financial statements of Chiho Environmental Group ZEARREBAR AT (U TEEIEAQF])
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on ~ REMB AT (A T&HE[E£E ) 5IHNE

pages 116 to 270, which comprise: 116E270B MR & Tk - BiE:
e the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2019; . RZE-NF+ZA=+—HBNEREE
EBEX:
. the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then e HEZAILFEMGEERE:
ended;
. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year HEZAILFENGE2ARKER
then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then o HEZBIEFENGERERZEHR
ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; o HEZALFENHRERERER K&
and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include HREPBRENT  BREEELBUR
a summary of significant accounting policies. 2o

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

BRI G T BT » B IRR A
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
AP : +852 2289 8888 » fHE : +852 2810 9888 * www.pwchk.com
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to impairment
assessment of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Key Audit Matter
HREGFEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMHNEBESTNAEEBEREITSE

Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives

BAERAERUEAFHZELEE ZRBENG

Refer to notes 2.9 and 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.
BELHYBmERMT2.9K%18

The carrying value of goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives of the Group as at 31 December 2019
was HK$745.3 million and HK$185.4 million, respectively.
Majority of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives arose from the acquisition of Scholz Group in
December 2016.

EEER - NF+_A=T—HRERAERIFEAR
FHIz B EENREED RI/R7184,5308 7% 7T & 1188,540
B BHhRBONFENAERAGCRFH BT EES
BRER T —RF+ - ARBIERAER 225 -

Management performed an assessment on impairment of
goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives as
at 31 December 2019 to determine the recoverable amount
using value-in-use calculations. These calculations used
pre-tax cash flow forecast based on the financial budget
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five year
period were extrapolated using an estimated long term
growth rate.

ERERACAEEFER - NFT_RA=+—H<
EEREBERACAFHBEEEETREN G UNET
e e - Z EFERAARELFHR BB EELRER Y
AR RIEA - AFHR 2R RKA R RAEREE

Ho
o
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In assessing the appropriateness of the goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives impairment
assessment performed by management, the following
audit procedures have been performed by us:
REHEERE 2 E Nk AERAMERFH BT EER
EfffhzaEl HMSETATERRER:

Compared the current year actual cash flows with the
prior year cash flow forecast to assess the reliability of
management’s forecast;

HAFEERBEeREE FTFEREMNETAAETY
B AP E R E AR A

Evaluated management’s financial budget and
discounted cash flow forecast by understanding the
process by which they were drawn up, and testing
mathematical accuracy of the underlying calculations;
IZEREUBEERBRESRETRN - THEEF
REIRF RSB E 2 Elr £

Assessed the appropriateness of key assumptions used
in the discounted cash flow forecast for the projected
5 years by comparing (i) projected sales volume to
available production capacity and historical sales volume,
(i) metal commodity price forecast to market research
and analyst reports, and (iii) projected gross profit
margin to historical profit margin. We also checked
these key assumptions against actual results in the
period subsequent to the year end;

BB ()RR S MR B BAERTIAEHESE (DB
7 B R TR B B TS 5T R D AT AR K (i) FERIEFI
REFLEFNE FERKEFRRRRRETHAS PRI
BArzXrER{Fsa@t BATHRFEFEAE AR

EREE REZFIEZRKR:



Independent Auditor’s Report
BIEEHRS

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
HREGFEE EMHNE A EERREETSH

The assessment required the use of significant Evaluated the discount rate by assessing the cost of

management’s judgements and estimates about future  capital of the Group and referencing the cost of capital

business performance including revenue growth (sales  of other comparable companies in the industry; and

volume and metal commodity price forecast), gross profit F@EFTH BEBZEAKA R2EZTAREMAHL

margin and discount rate and accordingly, this was an area B QA RIH)E AR A - ;FZBHIE R |

of our audit focus.

ZAETEEEBMARESRBIEREAHE NG5t Evaluated the sensitivity of the Group’s discounted cash

BIERAEEE (HERSBREMENRTEA) TR X XIIR  flow forecast by considering downside scenarios against

o -EitEARMERELEB S —- reasonable possible changes to the key assumptions.
ERTEBRZCABAREDH s TTER i BE
ERIRIR SR BTN BURE -

Based on the procedures performed, we found that
the judgements and estimates made by management
in respect of the goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives impairment assessment were
supportable by available evidence.

BIE LB ETREF RMARREEEERELAER
FIEAF A BB ERER P A e 2 2B k5t R
AERBREIF-
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group'’s financial reporting process.

Chiho Environmental Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2019

HAE R

EARESAHHMELAE - KbERRHE
FHANFMBREES BTREFARHERER
R L AR -

BRHGAMBREANBERL TREEMBE
B BRI E AR B ER TR

T GE =
guhlunﬁ °

{:>

% BAEEREMBHRERNTS RIONEE
TEEMES  ELBRET  ZEEMES
BHEAMBERRARMERBEFA
%m%&@&@%%%&%@%@&@%

AR B A1)

ﬁm

%Hm

REMEAITH I MRRFABSEME
TEEK%&@LJ&WHE#%%$E°
Eﬁﬁﬁ“ﬁﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%°

S ORI BRI HR AR
EONET

BERREFARRREBEE S AGRESD
B (BAEMBREER) REE (QAREH)
MHﬁﬁiﬁ%E§ﬁ¢%mFAﬁﬁﬁﬁ'
THERBRESEVBEREOEEBEIFE
MR EEF R AR T G B B KRBT T
HWABEHaE -

ERBGREVBRRE EXREN B8
B AL wﬁ'ﬂﬁm%MﬁT&%ﬁ%
BREEMNER UREAFELERS
At BRIFESHER ﬁ%@ﬁﬁ&%iﬁ
B RREEMERNERTR

BEEENPBERERRE-



AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Independent Auditor’s Report
BIEEHRS
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B EIRS

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group'’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIEEHRS

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, MEDAIEE BB ZIES L FIFET WL E1E
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the HARHIGAMBRRNBHHAEE  HimiE
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period  FREASEEFEE - ROVEZBAHE P HME
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters — L63EIE - BRIEERER T AT AHBEE LS
in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public ' s(EMHERNBERT WREETEHE
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, IR ETREBREEBEERNE@MERBEB
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report ~ EAMRRFIE  RIVRE NEEREPBR
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably  FZETH-

be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent HEAB I ZEMREMNETEEABAR
auditor’s report is Chan Kam Chiu, Raymond. fREB & o

PricewaterhouseCoopers EERKESTME®A

Certified Public Accountants HESE A

Hong Kong, 12 May 2020 BB ZEEFRHATZH

moEREEERAR —Z2-hEgHR 115



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

MG RER

For the Year Ended 31 December 2019 HE—_T—NF+_A=+—HIFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
Notes HK$M HK$M
ii=s BEBT BEBT
Revenue g 5 15,363.4 20,912.8
Cost of sales $HE AR 8 (14,485.5) (19,228.7)
Gross profit EH 877.9 1,684.1
Other income EH U A 6 127.0 99.2
Other gains, net H iz 558 7 43.1 232.6
Net reversal of impairment CREEMBERERFE
on financial assets 39.4 36.4
Distribution and selling expenses DM EER X 8 (51.5) (49.0)
Administrative expenses TR 8 (970.1) (1,283.3)
65.8 720.0
Finance income iR TN 10 23.6 36.6
Finance costs B 75 A AR 10 (236.2) (412.7)
Finance costs, net B RS R AN R 58 (212.6) (376.1)
Share of post-tax loss of an associate B ‘& A B R T 14 55 18 19 (0.3) (0.7)
Share of post-tax profit of joint ventures &1l & % > 2k B 1% 4% FI 19 47.6 126.2
(Loss)/Profit before income tax BATSE AT (BB, &5 (99.5) 469.4
Income tax expense Fris i X 11 (34.3) (70.4)
(Loss)/Profit for the year FR(EER), SR (133.8) 399.0
(Loss)/Profit attributable to: AT &7 MG (B518) &5 F)
Shareholders of the Company R E PR (128.7) 401.2
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR = (5.1) (2.2)
(133.8) 399.0
(Loss)/Earnings per share attributable to 7N 2 &) B% 5 fE 15 F A
shareholders of the Company for the &A% (E18), & F
year (expressed in HK$ per share) (AEZRRABTIIR)
Basic (loss)/earnings per share BREX (EE) BF 13 (0.08) 0.25
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share SRES (B18) &7 13 (0.08) 0.25

F124Z270E MM ERAZEFHAM T HRERD

—#5 -

The notes on pages 124 to 270 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

= E e S

For the Year Ended 31 December 2019 HZE=E—ZFT—hF+_A=+—HIFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
Notes HK$M HK$M
=g BEER BEBT
(Loss)/Profit for the year ER(FR) ER (133.8) 399.0
Other comprehensive (loss)/income HttZ2mE (&E) IS
Item that may be reclassified to B D E B 2 HE -
profit or loss:
Currency translation differences on TFONEETS 2 BB AR
foreign operations (92.4) (302.2)
Items that will not be reclassified to ~ TEBE#H 7 HEEmHE -
profit or loss:
Change in fair value of financial ROV EFAHMEE
assets at fair value through other Wz eMmEEZ
comprehensive income NSHER- ) (7.5) -
Remeasurements of post- EMTEREAERRBEZ
employment benefit obligations BHEE (4.6) 1.6
Share of other comprehensive loss BlEEEbEL
of joint ventures Hih 2 HEEE (4.4) -
Income tax relating to these items B2 EIEB AERER 1.9 0.4
Other comprehensive loss FAEMEEESE  RHIE
for the year, net of tax (107.0) (300.2)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FANEE (E18) W85
for the year (240.8) 98.8
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for AT & HEEFERNEE
the year attributable to: (BB WamiesE:
Shareholders of the Company A E R (234.0) 102.2
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR (6.8) (3.4)
(240.8) 98.8

The notes on pages 124 to 270 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

F124E270E WM I AR FHRA M BERERN
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

moEERE

As at 31 December 2019 R-ZT—NFE+-_F=+—8

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Notes HK$M HK$M
=g BEER BEAT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y- BB MEE 14 2,982.9 3,603.5
Leasehold land and land use rights THE L3t 2+ (h P4 15 - 387.9
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16 1,185.8 -
Investment properties wEYE 17 9.1 3.2
Intangible assets BVEE 18 1,115.0 1,183.9
Investments accounted for using FRAEREARZIRE
the equity method 19 630.9 613.2
Financial assets at fair value through 3R A F{EF AEBZF 2
profit or loss TREE 20 1.9 0.8
Financial assets at fair value through  ZAFEFAHMBEM
other comprehensive income Wz emEE 21 98.7 111.0
Other non-current assets HM3ERSEE 22 17.0 5.8
Deferred income tax assets BEEMSHEE 23 109.3 148.7
6,150.6 6,058.0
Current assets REBEE
Inventories (EA Sy 24 1,495.9 2,105.7
Trade, bills and other receivables B 5 - ¥R I E b E Y R IE 25 1,375.8 1,882.1
Fixed return investment EE B E 26 88.4 211.3
Amounts due from related parties JFE W FA B 5 SR 39 47.9 68.2
Derivative financial instruments TESRTA 27 25.0 36.1
Tax recoverable A 3R [B1 7% 18 29.9 15.4
Pledged bank deposits BRIFRITF R 28 191.7 313.6
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFHER 28 784.8 697.1
4,039.4 5,329.5
Total assets EEHRE 10,190.0 11,387.5
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Equity attributable to shareholders Zx7A B IR 3R fE {5 #E %5
of the Company
Share capital [ 29 16.1 16.1
Other reserves HuhFE 30 6,614.9 6,720.2
Accumulated losses Ea (1,689.7) (1,561.0)
4,941.3 5,175.3
Non-controlling interests IR = 31 (10.3) (29.4)
Total equity s 4,931.0 5,145.9
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

moOBERER

As at 31 December 2019 R-ZE—AF+-HF=+—8H

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Notes HKSM HK$M
B 5 BEBT BEET

Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Borrowings B 32 226.4 2,429.1
Lease liabilities HEAE 33 569.4 -
Retirement benefit obligations RIKEREE 34 27.3 23.4
Other payables b FE T RUA 35 96.6 110.7
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTSHBE 23 342.8 380.4
1,262.5 2,943.6

Current liabilities REBAEE

Trade, bills and other payables B EERHEMEMNKIE 35 1,066.9 1,732.2
Current income tax liabilities BNERRTS B B (& 101.2 120.5
Borrowings R 32 2,569.0 1,358.5
Lease liabilities HESaE 33 191.7 -
Amounts due to related parties FETEAESE 5 A 39 37.5 66.3
Derivative financial instruments TESHRITE 27 30.2 20.5
3,996.5 3,298.0
Total liabilities EEH8E 5,259.0 6,241.6
Total equity and liabilities ERREEAR 10,190.0 11,387.5

The consolidated financial statements on pages 116 to 270 were HEHRFE116E270EMEFEEM BMEN =S
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 12 May ZTHERAA+-_AEEZSHERREQM
2020 and are signed on its behalf by: WHTINESRERES:

Mr. Tu Jianhua Mr. Qin Yongming

REEEE BXKPXE
Director Director
EFE 3

The notes on pages 124 to 270 are an integral part of these 1242 270BE MM RZSHEEMBE@EKA
consolidated financial statements. —&B e
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RO EmEER

For the Year Ended 31 December 2019 HE—_T—NF+_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

RRARIRRER
Other Non-
Share reserves  Accumulated controlling Total
capital (Note 30) losses Total interests equity
Hi el
Bx (WEE30) RitE#B @i JEEiER afkn
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M

BEET ABRT BEER  AERET  BAEERT BEER

At 1 January 2018 RZE-\E—FA—H 16.1 7,018.9 (1,961.9) 5,073.1 (26.0) 5,047.1
Comprehensive income 2EMNE
Profit for the year FREF - - 4012 4012 2.2) 399.0

Other comprehensive (loss)/income E 2/ (E18) /W
Currency translation differences AEBHNEBHMEELZ

on translation of foreign ERER
operations - (301.0) - (301.0) (1.2) (302.2)
Remeasurement of post- EERELER
employment benefit PRz BMER
obligations, net of tax MEHE - 2.0 - 2.0 - 2.0
Total other comprehensive ENEMZEBELE
loss for the year, net of tax MEEE - (299.0) - (299.0) (12) (300.2)
Total comprehensive income ERNPANEEE
for the year, net of tax il Ar - (299.0) 401.2 102.2 (34) 98.8

Transactions with shareholders in  E2RE & (LR 517)
their capacity as shareholders 772 5

Transfer of reserves EREE - 03 (03) - - -
Total transactions with HER (URESH)
shareholders in their capacity as #1758
shareholders - 03 (0.3) - - -
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E
+-A=+—H 16.1 6,720.2 (1,561.0) 5,175.3 (29.4) 5,145.9
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
ROEME IR

For the Year Ended 31 December 2019 EHE—-Z—HhFE+_-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

KARRRES
Other Non-
Share reserves Accumulated controlling Total
capital (Note 30) losses Total interests equity
HitftB
RA& (ME30) S 1] At FERER HEs
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
ABER ABER ABER ABERT ABERT ABET
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NF—F—H 16.1 6,720.2 (1,561.0) 5,175.3 (29.4) 5,145.9
Comprehensive loss 2EEE
Loss for the year FHEE - - (128.7) (128.7) (5.1) (133.8)
Other comprehensive loss ,H1 2EBE
Currency translation differences  NEK 2 EHME £
on foreign operations - (90.7) - (90.7) (1.7) (92.4)

Change in the fair value of BATHE ﬁ/\ﬁﬂﬁiﬁuﬁ
financial assets at fair value fEZﬂﬂﬁFZ A
through other comprehensive 2 &) M FIE

income, net of tax » - (6.1) - (6.1) - (6.1)
Remeasurement of post- BN EEEAR
employment benefit ke s BAEE
obligations, net of tax MR A - (4.1) - (4.9) - (4.9)
Share of other comprehensive ~ EGAE(EY
loss of joint ventures EmrmEES - (4.4) - (4.4) - (4.4)
Total other comprehensive loss ~ FRE M2 HEEERE
for the year, net of tax nxwmE - (105.3) - (105.3) (1.7) (107.0)
Total comprehensive loss EREEHRER
for the year, net of tax MBHE - (105.3) (128.7) (234.0) (6.8) (240.8)
Transactions with shareholders in  EJR R (LR 5H17)
their capacity as shareholders ETRS
Contributions from non- FERERTE
controlling interests . b - - - - 21.7 21.7
Deregistration of a subsidiary & #%i 8 IR E %
with non-controlling interests 2 F/A 7] - - - - 42 4.2
Total transactions with BER (ARRF7)
shareholders in their capacity as  #1TR 5 #%
shareholders - - - - 25.9 25.9
At 31 December 2019 “TNEF
+:H =+-H 16.1 6,614.9 (1,689.7) 4,9413 (10.3) 4,931.0

The notes on pages 124 to 270 are an integral part of these 25124Z2708 KT A& F4RE M B MK
consolidated financial statements. — &5 -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
IFeRERE

For the Year Ended 31 December 2019 HE—-Z—AF+_-_A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
Notes HKS$M HK$M
P 5E BEAR AEBT
Cash flows from operating activities & & ZE ISR &R
Cash generated from operations KEMERE 42 803.6 627.6
Interest paid BEFE (214.8) (242.4)
Tax paid, net BAHIE S8 (60.0) (67.9)
Net cash generated from RETHMERLFE
operating activities 528.8 317.3
Cash flows from investing activities R & ;ZE B RER
Purchases of property, BEWE BELXE
plant and equipment (336.5) (281.1)
Purchases of intangible assets BEREAE (5.6) (2.5)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE BER&E
plant and equipment and IAREREEEZ
right-of-use assets Fr8 3k 18 42 267.9 103.1
Placement of pledged bank deposits T?)\E?Eﬁﬁfﬂﬁﬁ?x (180.1) (534.7)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits E B2 KR IR 1T 1F 3K 300.5 303.5
Decrease in fixed return investment & B [E E Bl RI& & 135.5 150.0
Proceeds from disposals of financial HEFAERZeREE
assets through profit or loss FriS50R - 24.5
Proceeds from disposal of assets Hj%ﬁiéﬁ%—rf’ﬁfdﬁﬁﬁ
classified as held for sale ZFTSRIA - 152.6
Proceeds from disposal of Hj’%?xﬁ%%%ZFﬁ{E 78!
investment properties - 195.2
Investments in joint ventures KREAEDHE 4.1) -
Dividend received from joint ventures WELA &S 37.4 81.0
Other dividends received B E A AR B 4.8 3.5
Acquisition of business, net of cash W BE %7
acquired MBREEERS 41 4.7) (8.1)
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash ~ H&EF A KD HE
disposed of Re 25.5
Interest received 2 U B 6.8 8.8
Net cash generated from RETHFRE
investing activities REFHE 247.4 195.8
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended 31 December 2019 #HZE—-Z

moRERER
—hE+-A=t—ALFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
Notes HKS$M HK$M
BT BEAR AEBT
Cash flows from financing activities @& EE I3 R &R
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITIE R Z A5 IE 731.3 1,015.1
Repayments of bank borrowings EERITER (1,287.0) (1,264.9)
Proceeds from other borrowings H MRz s IE 53.1 1,691.5
Repayments of other borrowings f%f%&ﬁ?@ﬁ?ﬂ&ﬁgﬁm%i
and note payable - (2,115.1)
Repayment of lease liabilities HEHERRE
(2018: Repayment of finance (ZZE—N\#F
lease liabilities) BEREMEEAR) (198.7) (92.6)
Contributions from non-controlling R ERIT A
interests 21.7 -
Net cash used in financing activities & EE T A & F 8 (679.6) (766.0)
Cash and cash equivalents at FYzReRBEEEER
beginning of the year 697.1 976.4
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BeRBReEEBBEEN
cash equivalents CRA) F58 96.6 (252.9)
Exchange differences on cash and RekBFeFEBEEZ
cash equivalents VEH =% (8.9) (26.4)
Cash and cash equivalents FRZEERESEHEER
at end of the year 28 784.8 697.1
The notes on pages 124 to 270 are an integral part of these £124ZE270B KT A FiRE ME MK

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e f F R IR MY 5L

1

GENERAL INFORMATION

Chiho Environmental Group Limited (‘the Company’) is an
investment holding company. The Company and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) are mainly engaged in the principal
business of resources recycling, involving recycling of mixed
metal, end-of-life vehicle (ELV), waste electrical and electronic
equipment (WEEE), wasted oil and production of aluminum ingots
from zorba in Asia, Europe and North America. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 44.

The Company is incorporated and registered as an exempted
company in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands with limited liability. The address of its registered
office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company's ultimate holding company is Loncin Group Co.,
Ltd. (“Loncin Group”), a limited liability company incorporated in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), and the Company’s
immediate holding company is USUM Investment Group Hong
Kong Limited (“USUMHK"), a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability. Loncin Group is 98% owned by Mr. Tu
Jianhua (“Mr. Tu”), an executive director of the Company.

The Company has its primary listing on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollar
("HK$"), unless otherwise stated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS") and the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange and the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income, and financial assets
and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at
fair value through profit or loss, which are carried at fair
value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies.

2.1.1 Going concern basis

The Group reported a net loss of HK$133.8 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019. As at
31 December 2019, the Group’s current assets
exceed its current liabilities by HK$42.9 million. It
had borrowings of HK$2,795.4 million, of which
HK$2,569.0 million are current borrowings due
within twelve months from 31 December 2019. As
at the same date, it had cash and cash equivalents
amounted to HK$784.8 million.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB HRRMEE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BERETHEWME (8)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 wEEEXE(E)

2.1.1 Going concern basis (continued) 211 HESEHEE (B

Included in current borrowings as at 31 December
2019 was a syndicated term loan (the “Syndicated
Term Loan"”) with an outstanding principal amount of
US$220.0 million scheduled to be fully repayable in
June 2020.

In view of such circumstances, the Directors have
given careful consideration to the future liquidity and
performance of the Group, taking into account the
impact arising from the COVID-19 outbreak if any,
and its available sources of financing in assessing
whether the Group will have sufficient financial
resources to continue as a going concern. Certain
plans and measures have been taken to mitigate the
liquidity pressure and to improve its financial position
which include, but not limited to, the following:

° Subsequent to 31 December 2019, the Group
has successfully entered into an agreement
with the lenders of the Syndicated Term Loan
to extend the maturity date to March 2021,
and that certain undertakings of the Company,
guarantor and obligor were revised (Note
32). The Group will continue to monitor its
compliance with the restrictive financial and
non-financial undertaking requirements and
the Directors expect the Group would be
in compliance continuously throughout the
remaining term of the Syndicated Term Loan;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= LUE T eI

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Going concern basis (continued)

The Group continues its efforts to ramp up
the production capability of the new recycling
facilities in Asia, implement measures in Europe
and North America to generate cash flow from
operations, and further control capital and
operating expenditures to strength its working
capital; and

The Group is actively looking for other sources
of financing including other debt or equity
financing to enhance the capital structure and
reduce the overall financing expenses.

The Directors have assessed the Group’s cash flow
projection covering a period of twelve months from
31 December 2019. They are of the opinion that the
Group will have sufficient working capital to finance

its operations and to meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due within the next twelve
months from the date of the consolidated balance
sheet. Accordingly, the Directors are satisfied that it
is appropriate to prepare the Group’s consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis.

2

EXSHBRBE (8)

2.1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB HRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

EXSHBRBE (8)

21 REEE(E)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(a)

New and amended standards and
interpretations adopted by the Group

The following new and amended standards
and interpretations have been adopted by the
Group for the first time for the financial year
beginning on or after 1 January 2019:

212 SRS RHE

(a)

R [EIRAAIFTET R
AIEETER R 2 FE

EEBEER=ZZ—N
F—H—R®z&H
1R 0 B IR R R
T BIFTRT RARIERT

Annual Improvements Project
(Amendments)

FEMGEEE (BRI X)

HKAS 19 (Amendments)

BB ERZE 195 (BT A)

HKAS 28 (Amendments)

BB G ERFE285 (BF]A)

HKFRS 9 (Amendments)

EB Y E LRI B9
(BETA)

HKFRS 16

BV G ELERE 165

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

8 (AR HHRERE

RSP &=

Annual Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle

—E-hEER - EFRBAFEUE

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement
FTENERT - BRI AS

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
BENAkagrENRPER

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

ARAmMENERSER SN

Leases

HE

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
FRSBiEE IR ) T HEE 1t

%ZB8g) —Z2BFE23%R

Except for HKFRS 16, the other new and
amended standards and interpretation listed
above did not have any significant impact on
the amounts recognised in prior years and are
not expected to significantly affect the current
or future years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= LUE T eI

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(a)

New and amended standards and
interpretations adopted by the Group
(continued)

The following explains the impact of the
adoption of HKFRS 16 on the Group’s financial
statements.

The Group elected to adopt HKFRS 16 without
restating comparatives. The reclassifications
and the adjustments are therefore not
reflected in the consolidated balance sheet
as at 31 December 2018, but are recognised
in the opening consolidated balance sheet
on 1 January 2019 as appropriate. The new
accounting policies are disclosed in Note 2.28.

The adoption of HKRFS 16 will result in almost
all leases being recognised on the consolidated
balance sheet, as the distinction between
operating and finance leases is removed. Under
the new standard, an asset (the right to use
the leased item) and a financial liability to pay
rentals are recognised. The only exceptions
are short-term and low-value leases. The
accounting for lessors will not significantly
change.

2

EXSHBRBE (8)

2.1

EeRREBERAT

mBERE (&)
212 SRS RHE

(%)

(a)

A IR FTET K
ANEETER R 2 FE
(%)

TXEERANE B
B s 2R H 1658 4
AEBEMBERROF
@,

REEEELWESE
PR ERBIER T
KBSV BRE
B 5165 o [ It -
BMOBERARLKR
R=ZZE—N\F+=A
=t+—HHEEEE
BERARE ER
—E-hF—HA—H
KB EEERE
= (WiEA) RiER -
T BER B ER W
£2.28 ¢

HRBUE R 7 48 2 i
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB HRRMEE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(a)

New and amended standards and
interpretations adopted by the Group
(continued)

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group
recognised lease liabilities in relation to
leases which had previously been classified as
‘operating leases’ under the principles of HKAS
17 Leases. These liabilities were measured
at the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate as at 1 January
2019 (date of initial application). The weighted
average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
applied to the lease liabilities on 1 January
2019 was 2.7%.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= LUE T eI

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(a)

New and amended standards and
interpretations adopted by the Group
(continued)

The right-of-use assets associated to leases
which had previously been classified as
‘operating leases’ were measured at the
amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by
the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to that lease recognised in
the balance sheet as at 31 December 2018.

For leases previously classified as ‘finance
leases’, the Group recognised the carrying
amounts of these leased assets and lease
liabilities immediately before transition as the
carrying amounts of the right-of-use assets and
the lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 (date of
initial application). The measurement principles
of HKFRS 16 are only applied after that date.

For leasehold land and land use right which
previously presented as a separate line on the
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December
2018 was reclassified to right-of-use assets as
at 1 January 2019.

2 BASHBEMEZ (&)

21 REEE(E)
212 ENBEEHREE

(%)

(a)

EeRREBERAT

KB B R F AT K
ACIEET BB R 2 FE
(%)

BRI DAL
EHRE| 2HERE
ZERAEEERM
ERHEaErsHE
AFEWEBRR-F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB HRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2

EAREHRE

B2 (%)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 wEEEXE(E)
2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 212 ST BREHRKE

(continued) (#&)

(a)  New and amended standards and (a) AEFZRAEFET R
interpretations adopted by the Group AENEETER R 22 7
(continued) (%)

The following tables show the adjustments TRINREDEHER
recognised for each individual line item. Line M ETEREL
items that were not affected by the changes EXZEEHTEN
have not been included. The adjustments are BHE ZEFRENE
explained in more detail below. ZEBRRTXEH
BH o
Consolidated balance sheet (extract) REEEAER
(WmE)
2018 Effect of 2019
31 December HKFRS 16 1 January
—E-N\§ EEUBRE
+=A R BIE165 —E-h§
=+-8 e -A-A
HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEAT HEBT BEET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE BERLE 3,603.5 (456.2) 3,147.3
Leasehold land and land use rights AE Tt R i A 387.9 (387.9) -
Right-of-use assets RREEE - 977.9 977.9
Non-current liabilities kREBEE
Borrowings & 2,429.1 (302.3) 2,126.8
Lease liabilities HEEE - 407.4 407.4
Current liabilities REEE
Borrowings T 1,358.5 (136.5) 1,222.0
Lease liabilities HEAE - 165.2 165.2

The following table shows the reconciliation of
operating lease commitments and finance lease
liabilities disclosed as at 31 December 2018 to
the lease liabilities recognised as at 1 January
2019:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TmE M PR aRMEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

New and amended standards and
interpretations adopted by the Group
(continued)

EASHEERBE (8)
21 REEE(E)
212 ENBEEHREE
(&)
(a) REBFASIFTET R

ABEETER R it FE

(%)

At 1 January

2019
RZE—NF
—H—H
HK$M
BAEBTT
Operating lease commitments disclosed RZE— N\F+ZA=+—HHEEDH
as at 31 December 2018 RETHEAGE 181.4
Discounted using the lessee’s FAABEARBXERABRNIEEE
incremental borrowing rate at the SR BL3E
date of initial application 139.0
Finance lease liabilities recognised as at R =ZF— \F+Z A =+—BHERH
31 December 2018 MEREAE 438.8
Less: short-term leases and low-value 3 i R E A AR ARTHMREHEE
leases recognised on a straight- LEEEBEHRE
line basis as expense (18.6)
Add: adjustments as a result of a R REIEEENTREES
different treatment of extension R R
and termination options 134
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 R-ZE—NLF—A—HHNBEEEE 572.6
Of which are: Hep:
Current lease liabilities nEHEERE 165.2
Non-current lease liabilities EnBEEARE 407.4
572.6
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS BRRMEE
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAIHBEBE (8)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 wEEEXE(E)
2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 212 ST BREHRKE
(continued) (#&)
(a)  New and amended standards and (a) AEERABIFET R
interpretations adopted by the Group AENEETER R 22 7
(continued) (%)
There was no material impact on the operating KRB BB MERE
profits for the year ended 31 December 2019 Al 1658 I & B A
as a result of the adoption of HKFRS 16, while EZFNEFTZA
the segment assets as at 31 December 2019 ST-HIEFEZE
had increased as follows: EnMEEERY
Z.- MR _ZE—hE
TZA=t—HZH
HEEDEMAOT :
Increase in
segment assets
DEEE
1B hn
HK$M
BEBT
Asia M 64.9
Europe (HOA 166.0
North America JEEM 10.7
Total w@Et 241.6

134 chiho Environmental Group Limited  Annual Report 2019



2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TmE M PR aRMEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(a)

New and amended standards and
interpretations adopted by the Group
(continued)

(i) Practical expedients applied

In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time,
the Group has used the following
practical expedients permitted by the
standard:

° the use of a single discount rate
to a portfolio of leases with
reasonably similar characteristics;

° reliance on previous assessments
on whether leases are onerous;

o the accounting for operating leases
with a remaining lease term of less
than 12 months as at 1 January
2019 as short-term leases;

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB HRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(@)  New and amended standards and
interpretations adopted by the Group
(continued)

(i) Practical expedients applied (continued)

° the exclusion of initial direct costs
for the measurement of the right-
of-use asset at the date of initial
application, and

o the use of hindsight in determining
the lease term where the contract
contains options to extend or
terminate the lease.

The Group has also elected not to reassess
whether a contract is, or contains a lease at the
date of initial application. Instead, for contracts
entered into before the transition date, the
Group relied on its assessment made applying
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) 4 ‘Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease’.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= LUE T eI

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAIHBEBE (8)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE(H)
2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 212 EFBERSBRIEE

(continued) (#8)

(b)  The following new and amended standards, (b) KT FETRACIEETE
new interpretations and framework have been Al FTET 2 FE R HESE
issued but are not effective for the financial R-ZE—NF—H—
year beginning on 1 January 2019 and have H B8 8958 B F/E 2
not been early adopted by the Group PEMIERERL - AR

LR E FIEF IR

AT 473 RAE AT
AU 75T 8 RIE 2
R=F—hEF—A—

The following new and amended standards,

new interpretations and framework are not

effective for financial year beginning on 1

January 2019, and have not been applied H 588 BEFE R

in preparing these consolidated financial R BERERRE

statements: Bz EHnAMB®
*:

Effective for accounting
periods beginning

on or after
RUTBEHH 2%

RN EstBEEN

Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018
—\EHBREN BETHBRELIER
BAER
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 (Amendments)
SAESHENE IR
B e EAIEs5%
(BATA)
HKFRS 3 (Amendments)

Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 1 January 2020
—T-FF-A-H

Definition of Material

EAENTES

1 January 2020
—Z-%%-A—H

Definition of a Business 1 January 2020

BER RS EIER BN TESR “Z-ZE-f-FH
(BATA)

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9 Hedge accounting 1 January 2020
(Amendments)

BRGENFIN BENBRERE  Hihet
BIETR R B EY B REERER
CHES)

e

HKFRS 17
BAMBRERULITH

HKFRS10 and HKAS 28 (Amendments)
BRMEREENEIORREBEH

2RI 285 (18T A)

Insurance Contracts

REEH

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture

&gﬁﬁgm%ﬂw& AEOEIHNEELS
B

The above new and amended standards, new
interpretation and framework are not expected
to have a material impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

EeRREBERAT

1 January 2021

—Z_—-%-8—H

A date to be determined by
the IASB

BAReTENZEeRTET
Ak

iﬁﬁﬂi L AT M AR A&
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB HRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EREHBEME (&)
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity 22 HRERARERSEEE
accounting

2.2.1 Subsidiaries 2.2.1 72T

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group
(Note 2.3).

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated balance sheet
respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= LUE T eI

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BAEBEHE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (continued)

22 HERARERSTE (F)

2.2.2 ERBKERE

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

2.2.3 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting (Note 2.2.5), after
initially being recognised at cost.

2.2.4 Joint arrangements

The Group’'s joint arrangements are classified
as either joint operations or joint ventures. The
classification depends on the contractual rights and
obligations of each investor, rather than the legal
structure of the joint arrangement.

The Group has assessed the nature of its joint
arrangements and determined them to be joint
ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for using
the equity method. Interests in joint ventures are
accounted for using the equity method (Note
2.2.5), after initially being recognised at cost in the
consolidated balance sheet.

2.2.3

224

EeRREBERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB HRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 ERSHBEHE (8)
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (continued)

22 HZEARBAREZREE(E)

2.2.5 Equity method 225 #EmE

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee
in profit or loss, and the Group's share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in
other comprehensive income. Dividends received
or receivable from associates and joint ventures are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of
the investment.

Where the Group's share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in
the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated
to the extent of the Group's interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity-
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in Note 2.10.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (continued)

2.2.6 Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling
interests and any consideration paid or received
is recognised in a separate reserve within equity
attributable to shareholders of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control, joint control or significant influence, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its
fair value, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an
associate is reduced but joint control or significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share
of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB HRRMEE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-
controlling interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at their acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability
are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured,
and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Chiho Environmental Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

2.4

Business combinations (continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Where businesses are acquired and fair values of the net
assets of the acquired business are finalised within 12
months of the acquisition date, all fair value adjustments
are recorded with effect from the date of acquisition and
consequently may result in the restatement of previously
reported financial results.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker (“CODM"). The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the Executive Committee that makes strategic
decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB HRRMEE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (“the functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
HK$, which is the Company’s functional and the
Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, except
when deferred in other comprehensive income
as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss within
‘other gains, net'.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(9]

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each statement
of profit or loss are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

(i) all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is sold or any
borrowings forming part of the net investment are
repaid, the associated exchange differences are
reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss
on sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB HRRMEE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c) Group companies (continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise mainly factories and offices.
Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Buildings

BF

Plant and machinery

Office furniture and equipment
MAERERRE

146 Chiho Environmental Group Limited  Annual Report 2019

2

EXSHBRBE (8)

2.5

2.6

SNEE R ()

(0 &EBEQF (&)
WEEINEREENEHER
NP EFHBRRSZEI
ERMEERAE  WRK
MERGEE - PrELRIER
EHEEEEMEEBATE

7
o

iﬂﬂ&@ﬂ*—f%‘& BEBEEBA
EoWE BB RRERESLKAR

M%ﬁ%@lﬁﬁ JE e AR B IR

HEEREENRAX

rEXKAESEERRBBRZA
REEMBZRAEER A ANE
[ - T 2N 52 8] X BE A SEdh AT 2 %
BERARZBERT HTEEEM
FFABEREEXERS S
VEE-CEEMS 2KREER
RUILER-FTAEEMEEREER
REEEZVHBEARGEE
BRI

WEDRBERETE UEH
Bt ERFHAD @EEXLK H
BT

12 — 50 years
12Z506F

5 - 20 years
5ZE20%4F

3 - 13 years
3E13%F



2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within ‘other gains, net’ in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction and pending installation and
is stated at cost. Cost includes the costs of construction
of buildings and the costs of plant and machinery. No
provision for depreciation is made on construction-
in-progress until such time as the relevant assets are
completed and ready for intended use. When the assets
concerned are brought into use, the costs are transferred
to other property, plant and equipment and depreciated in
accordance with the policy as stated in Note 2.6.

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising land and
buildings, are held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that are not occupied by the
Group. Investment property is initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs and where applicable
borrowing costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of investment properties over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account of their estimated residual
value, using the straight-line method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB HRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Investment properties (continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

2.9 Intangible assets
(@) Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to
each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the
lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill
is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is
compared to the recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately
as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Intangible assets (continued)

(b)

(0

(d)

Computer software

Computer software acquired are capitalised on the
basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software. These costs are amortised over
their estimated useful lives of 5 years.

Brand names, patents and licenses

Separately acquired brand names, patents and
licences are shown at historical cost. Brand
names, patents and licences acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Certain brand names, patents and
licences which have a finite useful life are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate the cost of certain brand
names, patents and licenses over their estimated
useful lives of 8 to 20 years. Certain brand names
have indefinite useful life and carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment
assessment is undertaken annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate a
potential impairment.

Customers’ relationship and suppliers’
relationship

Customers’ relationship and suppliers’ relationship
acquired in a business combination are recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date. The customers’
relationship and suppliers’ relationship which have a
finite useful life are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation
is calculated using the straight-line method over
the expected life of the customers’ relationship and
suppliers’ relationship of 5 to 20 years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB HRRMEE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9

Intangible assets (continued)
(e) Non-competition agreement

Non-competiton agreement is recognised at fair value
at the agreement date. Non-competition agreement
has a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment loss.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method over the agreement term of 2 years.

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

2.1

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Investments and other financial assets
2.11.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income or
through profit or loss); and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

2.11.1 Classification (continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this
will depend on whether the Group has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition
to account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

2.11.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

2.11.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at fair value through profit and
loss (“FVPL") are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB HRRMEE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

2.11.3 Measurement (continued)

Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or
loss and presented in ‘other gains, net’ together
with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit
or loss following the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the
Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in ‘other gains, net’ in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses)
on equity investments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) are not
reported separately from other changes in fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEREHBERBE (8)
POLICIES (continued)
2.11 Investments and other financial assets 211 RERHMEREE (F)
(continued)
2.11.4 Impairment 2114 RFE
The Group assesses on a forward looking basis N BRI MRS (R
the expected credit losses associated with its EARE A RGBT
debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The BB EEEE T
impairment methodology applied depends on FERRIRET EEUAREE
whether there has been a significant increase in credit [Rfg 2 A FE LG N
risk.
For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified MESEWHIBAME A&
approach in accordance with HKFRS 9, which requires BB EBMBRELRE
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial SRR LA A
recognition of the receivables (Note 25(b)). REBHERATHEBESE

] 45 HE 3R I U FRE R T RR
(Pt 5E25(b) ) °

2.12 Offsetting financial instruments 212 E#HEEMITA
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount eRMEERBEBESEERE MmN
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally BIERE LA RE TN EED
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and BREERBENFEELESE
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the FRAREREEREEEER
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally TEEBBRIHMFE EEL
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events AEH TR EAKARRE
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business EHRNEREREBFRRRA
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the RIE F AR FHIE - ENERE
company or the counterparty. R o BB 2 FRF 5 T SR AT T o

2.13 Derivative financial instruments 213 {THESmTIA
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date PTETERTTETAGHEILE
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently HERQAFENGRER HERA
re-measured at their fair values. Changes in the fair value FEHEFFE METESHRT
of these derivative instruments are recognised immediately B2 N PENBES . AR ®
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss within ‘other fFEBmR A [ EA T | T
gains, net'. The Group does not have any derivative that is R o N5 [0 R AR ] 15 E 2 R
designated as a hedging instrument. TRAZITAET R

moEREEERAR —Z2-hEgEHR 153



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB HRRMEE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods comprises,
raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related
production overheads. It excludes borrowing costs. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

2.15 Trade, bills and other receivables

Trade and bills receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade, bills and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

The Group holds trade, bills and other receivables with the
objective to collect the contractual cash flows. Accordingly,
trade, bills and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less loss allowance
(Note 2.11.3).

Trade, bills and other receivables are written off when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

Impairment losses on trade, bills and other receivables are
presented as net impairment losses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against the
same line item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks and bank overdrafts.

2.17 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

2.18 Trade and bills payables

Trade and bills payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers.

Trade and bills payables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.19 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB HRRMEE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Borrowings (continued)

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

2.20 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest expense, finance charges
in respect of borrowings and lease liabilities, and exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to
the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs. The exchange gains and losses that are
an adjustment to interest costs include the interest rate
differential between borrowing costs that would be
incurred if the entity had borrowed funds in its functional
currency, and the borrowing costs actually incurred on
foreign currency borrowings. Such amounts are estimated
based on interest rates on similar borrowings in the entity’s
functional currency.

2.21 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company'’s subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability
is settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB HRRMEE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Investment allowances and similar tax incentives
Companies within the Group may be entitled to claim
special tax deductions for investments in qualifying
assets or in relation to qualifying expenditure. The
Group accounts for such allowances as tax credits,
which means that the allowance reduces income tax
payable and current tax expense. A deferred tax asset
is recognised for unclaimed tax credits that are carried
forward as deferred tax assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BAEBEHE (&)

POLICIES (continued)
2.22 Employee benefits 222 EEER

2.22.1 Short-term obligations 2221 BHEME

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave that
are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in respect
of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting
period and are measured at the amounts expected to
be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities
are presented as current employee benefit obligations
in the consolidated balance sheet.

2.22.2 Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for long service leave and annual
leave are not expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service. They
are therefore measured as the present value of
expected future payments to be made in respect
of services provided by employees up to the end of
the reporting period using the projected unit credit
method. Consideration is given to expected future
wage and salary levels, experience of employee
departures and periods of service. Expected future
payments are discounted using market yields at the
end of the reporting period of high-quality corporate
bonds with terms and currencies that match,
as closely as possible, the estimated future cash
outflows. Remeasurements as a result of experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB HRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (continued)
2.22.3 Post-employment obligations

The Group operates various post-employment
schemes, including defined benefit plans and defined
contribution pension plans.

(a)  Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods. A defined benefit
plan is a pension plan that is not a defined
contribution plan.

Typically, defined benefit plans define an
amount of pension benefit that an employee
will receive on retirement, usually dependent
on one or more factors such as age, years of
service and compensation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (continued)

2.22.3 Post-employment obligations (continued)

(a)

Pension obligations (continued)

The liability recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet in respect of defined benefit
pension plans is the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the end of the
reporting period less the fair value of plan
assets. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated annually by independent actuaries
using the projected unit credit method. The
present value of the defined benefit obligation
is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows using interest rates
of high-quality corporate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the
benefits will be paid, and that have terms to
maturity approximating to the terms of the
related pension obligation. In countries where
there is no deep market in such bonds, the
market rates on government bonds are used.

The current service cost of the defined benefit
plan, recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in employee benefit expense,
except where included in the cost of an asset,
reflects the increase in the defined benefit
obligation results from employee service in the
current year, benefit changes, curtailments and
settlements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB HRRMEE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (continued)

2.22.3 Post-employment obligations (continued)

(a)

Pension obligations (continued)

Past-service costs are recognised immediately
in consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Changes in the present value of the defined
benefit obligation resulting from plan
amendments or curtailments are recognised
immediately in profit or loss as past service
costs.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying
the discount rate to the net balance of the
defined benefit obligation and the fair value of
plan assets. This cost is included in employee
benefit expense in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

Remeasurement arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to equity
in other comprehensive income in the period in
which they arise.

For defined contribution plans, the Group
pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The
Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (continued)

2.22.3 Post-employment obligations (continued)

(b)  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever
an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits at the earlier
of the following dates: (a) when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises
costs for a restructuring that is within the
scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment
of termination benefits. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period

are discounted to their present value.

2.23 Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates a number of equity-settled share-

based compensation plans, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
vest based on the non-marketing performance and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB HRRMEE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Share-based payments (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(continued)

When the options are exercised, the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital
and share premium.

2.24 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation.

2.25 Revenue recognition

(a) Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of the
goods is transferred to the customers in accordance
with relevant shipping terms. A receivable is
recognised when control of the goods is transferred
to the customers as this is the point in time that
the consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is
due.

(b) Rental income

Rental income from investment property is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

(c) Service income

Services income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss when a service is
transferred to the customer and the customer obtains
control of that service.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= LUE T eI

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BAEBEHE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Interest income 226 FIERWA

Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is included in
the net fair value gains/(losses) on these assets.

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost and
financial assets at FVOCI calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss as part of other income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where
it is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes. Any other interest income is
included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets
the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).

2.27 Dividend income

Dividends are received from financial assets measured at
FVPL and at FVOCI. Dividends are recognised as other
income in profit or loss when the right to receive payment
is established. This applies even if they are paid out of pre-
acquisition profits, unless the dividend clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of an investment. In this case,
the dividend is recognised in other comprehensive income
if it relates to an investment measured at FVOCI. However,
the investment may need to be tested for impairment as a
consequence.

2.27
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB HRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BERETHEWME (8)
POLICIES (continued)
2.28 Leases 228 #HE

2.28.1 As the lessor 2281 FEBHFEA

A lease is an agreement whereby the lessor conveys
to the lessee in return for a payment, or series of
payments, the right to use an asset for an agreed
period of time.

When assets are leased out under an operating lease,
the asset is included in the balance sheet based on
the nature of the asset.

Lease income on operating leases is recognised over

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;
° variable lease payment that are based on an

index or a rate;

o amounts expected to be payable by the lessee
under residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that

MER— % BUthE
INDIZELEWNE i hattil
AEREERNERN  SARE
—EFRL—RIIFR-

EEERELEMEHN
HZHREERBENETAR
EREX-

RIBKEHEELZHSK

the term of the lease on a straight-line basis. AESERHEE B A&
o
2.28.2 As the lessee (applicable from 1 January 2019) 2282 ERAMBEA (BZZ—N

F-A—HEER)
HERRDEREEE I
HEHEEEHEAEEER
ZBAERHEARE-

HEEENEERBENS

BREATHEMNREFER
1B :

e BEEMNK(BHEEER
[ 7€ 1~ 50 8k A 1] 1
WHEES:

o« ERMEBEFIEHT
SREMH

o FHEEERTHK
N R ARE =k

. REENTEER
(A AA B

option; and WMETHZIEBEE
) R
. payments of penalties for terminating the lease, o ST IERE R E K
if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising (118 78 & 1R 3R e g 2
that option. AT ZIBRERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
2.28 Leases (continued)

2.28.2 As the lessee (applicable from 1 January 2019)

(continued)

Lease payment to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be
determined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value in a similar economic environment
with similar terms and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

° where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee as
a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in
financing conditions since third party financing
was received;

° uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-
free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for
leases held by the Group entity, which does not
have recent third party financing; and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg
term, country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB HRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BAEBEHE (&)

POLICIES (continued)
2.28 Leases (continued) 228 #HE (#)

2.28.2 As the lessee (applicable from 1 January 2019) 2282 ERABA (B

(continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease

liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs; and

° restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset
is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.
(Notes 2.6 and 2.9)

Payments associated with short-term leases of
equipment, vehicles, offices, warehouse and all leases
of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line
basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.
Low-value assets comprise IT equipment and small
items of office furniture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= LUE T eI

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEREHBERBE (8)
POLICIES (continued)
2.28 Leases (continued) 228 HE (&)

2.28.3 As the lessee (applicable until 31 December 2283 EREBA (BEREZ=Z
2018) —NFE+=ZA=+—H)
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and WA EMBRIB OB R
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are B 1% [B] ¥ 35 | I AH AR EE -
classified as operating leases. Payments made under AlZEHESEREENR
operating leases (net of any incentives received from E-RBEEREELNN
the lessor) are charged to the consolidated statement K (EMBRREEAESD
of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the ERMER)  REEEHUE
period of the lease. ATt NEaBmK-
The Group leases certain property, plant and REBHEETYWE BE
equipment. Leases of property, plant and equipment REE - ME - BE ME
where the Group has substantially all the risks BT EHR AR A B K
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance BB L % (2] 3R F AN £ [
leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s B REBEYE BEKIE
commencement at the lower of the fair value of HHHESERREHRE -
the leased property and the present value of the B A ST EM AL
minimum lease payments. EMEZ A TERKEEE

NRIRERE 2 REEER

b
Each lease payment is allocated between the liability FBERSHYEAAB R
and finance charges. The corresponding rental BRX - BEEESE TR
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in GRS BEAEMK
other long-term payables. The interest element of the HAFE ZRIE A - BA RSB A E
finance cost is charged to the consolidated statement F B RELHHRNELE
of profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce BRR X LA EH M
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining 2 BEsEEEIT E T A
balance of the liability for each period. The property, K RIEMEREESEHNY
plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is ¥ BMERREZREEZA]
depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the FAFE MR ENREE
asset and the lease term. E-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB HRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.29 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company'’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

2.30 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
over the period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, fixed return investment, derivative
financial assets, pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other payables, derivative financial
liabilities and borrowings, etc. Details of the financial
instruments by category are disclosed in Note 36.

The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk
and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= LUE T eI

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk

(a)

()

Foreign exchange risk

The Group has foreign currency sales,
purchases, trade, bills and other receivables,
pledged bank deposits,
equivalents, trade, bills and other payables,
derivative financial instruments, borrowings
and amounts due from/(to) related parties

cash and cash

which expose the Group to market risk arising
from changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Group currently does not have a specific
foreign currency hedging policy. However,
the management closely monitors its foreign
currency risk exposure and considers any
foreign currency forward contracts should the
need arise.

In addition, the Group had entered into several
foreign currency forward contracts with banks
to reduce its exposure to currency fluctuation
risk. The derivatives were not accounted for
under hedge accounting. The Group was
required to estimate the fair value of the
foreign currency forward contracts at the end
of the reporting period, which therefore also
exposed the Group to foreign exchange risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB HRRMEE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(a)

0]

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

At 31 December 2019, if Renminbi (“RMB")
had weakened/strengthened by 5% (2018:
5%) against the HK$ or the US$ with all other
variables held constant, pre-tax loss for the year
would have been HK$15.9 million higher/lower
(2018: pre-tax profit would have been HK$25.0
million lower/higher), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange losses/gains on translation
of RMB/US$ denominated trade, bills and
other payables, borrowings, derivative financial
instruments and cash and bank deposits.

At 31 December 2019, if Euro (“EUR") had
weakened/strengthened by 7% (2018: 9%)
against the HK$ or US$ with all other variables
held constant, pre-tax loss for the year would
have been HK$5.3 million higher/lower (2018:
pre-tax profit would have been HK$20.9
million higher/lower), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of
EUR/US$ denominated trade, bills and other
receivables and payables, borrowings, derivative
financial instruments, amounts due from
related parties and cash and bank deposits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TmE M PR aRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

0]

(i)

3 SRERE

2 (48)

31 SEEREE (&)
(@) WiEER (#)

Foreign exchange risk (continued) () SMERSR (E)
The Directors considered the foreign exchange B T Bk T 4
risk between HK$ and US$ is minimal as HK$ EERABITHEET
has been linked to US$. 2 [ B NEE | Bt
e
Interest rate risk () FEERE
The Group's interest rate risk mainly arises from N5 B A A1 2= R &
borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable EREERRTZH
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest FEEEHERER
rate risk. SEEZR SR E
B o
Based on the simulations performed, with a RIEFTHEI TS HE -
100 basis points shift in interest rate, the pre- T =2 B)1001E £
tax loss (2018: pre-tax profit) would have a ZoBRBAIEE (=
maximum increase (2018: decrease) by the T—\F BRI ADR
following magnitude: B &AM (=
T-NF:RD)R
ET:
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZT—N\F
HK$M HK$M
BEBRT BEBTT
Impact on loss/profit HBRAEHAERE
before income tax i ) A R 2 3.2 13.3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB HRRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 SRERER(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 eREREZE (&)
(a) Market risk (continued) () WHEEE (&)
(iii)  Price risk (i) (E1EE e
Commodity price risks 7 B AR B g
At 31 December 2019, the Group was exposed RZE—-—NF+A
to commodity price risks through its metal =+t—H XxEEHA
commodities future contracts. TEEmEEOMm
Ei‘fﬁuuﬁﬁ%ﬂ R °
Sensitivity analysis BRE DT
The sensitivity analysis below is determined T§|J@Wﬁ’\$ﬁ)}§
based on the exposure to commodity price —E-NF+Z=A
risk of metal commodities future contracts at :‘f‘ HeEmmE#
31 December 2019. If the commodity price of EAXEHNEME
metal commodities future contracts had been & BB i TE © fie © 8
19% (2018: 21%) higher/lower, the Group's 2 an ,Hﬁiéié.\ 2 H
pre-tax loss (2018: pre-tax profit) for the year mER L TE
would decrease/increase (2018: increase/ 19% (ZF— )\F:
decrease) by the following magnitude: 21% ) - BIZRE B4
NBRBATEE (ZF
—N\F - BREADEF)
BRI =F
—\FE 8 R)
HtEEAT
2019 2018
ZE-NF - N\F
HK$M HK$M
BEAR BEAST
Impact on loss/profit RS AIER,
before income tax i N 3.1 73.4
(b) Credit risk (b) FEERE
The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from cash rEBHNEER ﬁIE%
and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments, AReRREFMEEE

amounts due from related parties, fixed return
investment, trade, bills and other receivables and
deposits with banks and financial institutions. The
carrying amounts of these balances represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk is managed on a group basis.
Management has policies in place to monitor the
exposures to these credit risks on trade, bills and
other receivables on an on-going basis.

To manage credit risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents, derivative financial instruments, fixed
return investment and deposits with banks and
financial institutions, the Group only transacts with
reputable and creditworthy commercial financial
institutions and investment counterparties. There has
been no recent history of default in relation to these
financial institutions and investment counterparties.

The Group generally grants credit terms ranging
from 30 to 90 days to customers upon the approval
of management according to the credit quality of
individual customers. The Group measures expected
credit losses and applies lifetime expected loss
allowances for all trade receivables. Details on the
quantification in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk on trade receivables are set out in Note 25.
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RSB HRRMEE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(9]

Credit risk (continued)

Amounts due from related parties, bills and other
receivables are considered to have low credit risk.
These balances are continuously monitored by
assessing the credit quality of the counterparties,
taking into account its financial position, past
experience and other factors.

At 31 December 2019, the Group had concentration
of credit risk as 9% and 23% (2018: 20% and 58%)
of its total trade receivables was due from its largest
trade debtors and the five largest trade debtors,
respectively. The five largest trade debtors have good
repayment history and credit quality with reference to
the track records of these customers under internal
assessment by the Group.

Liquidity risk

Cash flow forecasting is performed in the operating
entities of the Group and aggregated by group
finance. Group finance monitors rolling forecasts
of the Group’s liquidity requirements to ensure it
has sufficient cash to meet operational needs. Such
forecasting takes into consideration the Group’s debt
financing plans, covenant compliance, compliance
with internal balance sheet ratio targets and, if
applicable external regulatory or legal requirements —
for example, currency restrictions.
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= LUE T eI

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 SREREE(8)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 eREREZE (&)
() Liquidity risk (continued) (0 #"RBELER (E)

TRAOMAZERARFR
FTEERMBENFEEE
MOTESRAE  HLHIRR
TREIH BB B - ARV A
HHEAMNIH A M TR
REETOIT - WiTE SR A
ERAKBIEERE TR
ERBEEFSE Mg

The table below analyses the Group’s and the
Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities and
net-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period
at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity
date. Derivative financial liabilities are included in the
analysis if their contractual maturities are essential for
an understanding of the timing of the cash flows. The

amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual ADHTH - E TRABEED
undiscounted cash flows. SRASENARMRNIAEDR
=
On demand Between Between
or less than 1and3 3 months and Between Over
1 month months 1year 1and5 years 5 years
REXT
SR-B -Z=fF Z@ARE-E -5 BENE
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
AEER AEER AEER AEER AEER
At 31 December 2019 R=ZB-n§
tZB=t-H
Non-derivative ¥TESRER
financial liabilities
Borrowings &3 410.6 113.2 2,1206 222 5.1
Lease liabilities HEaE 18.0 3.0 1622 537.6 1176
Trade, bills and other payables &5 ZEREfENFUB 6415 88.5 63.2 354 -
Amounts due to related parties  EEE T FUE 19.7 - 16 10.2 -
1,089.8 231.1 2,353.6 805.4 1227
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NF
t-A=1-H
Non-derivative FTESREE
financial liabilities
Borrowings (excluding finance {53 (A BERE
lease liabilities) HEEE) 2416 3455 674.9 2,142.9 121
Finance lease liabilities BERERE 121 242 108.8 3196 20
Trade, bills and other payables &5 ZE R AN FUB 986.4 1232 82.6 126 -
Amounts due to related parties R FE 479 22 59 103 -
1,288.0 495.1 872.2 2,485.4 14.1
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RSB HRRMEE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
() Liquidity risk (continued)

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the “on demand or less than
1 month” time band in the above maturity analysis.
As at 31 December 2019, the aggregate carrying
amounts of these bank borrowings amounted to
HK$77.6 million (2018: HK$233.8 million). Taking
into account the Group's financial position, the
Directors do not believe that it is probable that
the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to
demand immediate repayment. The Directors believe
that such bank borrowings will be repaid within one
year after the reporting date in accordance with
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements. At that time, the aggregate principal
and interest cash outflows of HK$77.9 million (2018:

HK$234.6 million) will be repaid within one year.

The amounts included above for the variable interest
rate instruments are subject to change if changes in
actual interest rates differ to those estimated at the

end of the reporting period.

3.2 Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's

overall strategy remained unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes bank and other borrowings and lease liabilities
(2018: bank and other borrowings and finance lease
liabilities) as disclosed in Notes 32 and 33 (2018: Note
32) and, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to shareholders of the Company, comprising

capital, various reserves and accumulated losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= LUE T eI

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 SRERER(E)

3.2 Capital management (continued) 3.2 BEXREE(H)
The directors of the Company review the capital structure RAREETFRENERLER-
periodically. The directors of the Company also balance the RAREENBEBIAMRE B
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, TR SRt B Bl LA S 31T 37 (R
new share issues and share repurchases as well as the BEOREEB T EEEE
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt. No AEE-BHE_ZT—NF+=A
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes =+—HIEFE BRBE BER
during the year ended 31 December 2019. SRR F I EEE .

3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AFEME
Fair value measurements and valuation process A EFERMGERR
The directors of the Company determine the appropriate ARREERATEAEEES
valuation techniques and inputs for fair value B E R &R A B -
measurements.
In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the REFTEESRBBHNRAFER
Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is AEEERHERSOMSEREY
available. Where Level 1 and 2 inputs are not available, the Bl — RE R ABEBET
Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform the AR AEEZEE=F6EK
valuation for financial instruments that are measured at HERE R B EEARTE
fair value on a recurring basis. The Directors and the senior HEZEMIAKTHE-ES
management team work closely with the qualified external BREEEEKEINES B
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques T ERDZ V)& VELATIE & @ 8l
and inputs to the model. B R ABIEER -
Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used fHEE T TREERBERTE
in determining the fair value of various assets and liabilities P R BV (4 (B 708 R 3 A BURFF
are disclosed below. BEN T
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RSB HRRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation process
(continued)

The following table analyses the Group's financial
instruments carried at fair value as at 31 December 2019 by
level of the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure
fair value. Such inputs are categorised into three levels
within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (level 2).

J Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3

TmE M PR aRMEE

TRUERETE (&)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 33 AREMEE (&)
Fair value measurements and valuation process ATEFERMERR (F)
(continued)

Fair value Valuation technique(s)

Financial assets/(Financial liabilities) Fair value as at hierarchy and key input(s)

SREE/ (SRER) RUTERNATE RTEER  HERMREEEAHE

31 December 31 December
2019 2018
“E-NF “B0E
+-ZA=t-B +=ZA=1+-H
HK$M HK$M

REET BEAT

1) Metal commodities future contracts classified as derivative (12.9) 2.9 Level 1 Quoted bid commodity futures prices on
financial instruments in the consolidated balance sheet -8 the London Metal Exchange.
REAEEBERTARAMESRIAZSBHRNE RALBRIFMFTARZHRAEEAE.
&t

2)  Metal commodities future contracts classified as derivative 243 318 Level 2 Par method, taking actively traded future
financial instruments in the consolidated balance sheet (17.2) (19.9) E-4 prices into account.
RESEERERTARAMECRIA e BARNE BEE 2EXRERHAEER-
af)

3) Foreign currency forward contracts classified as derivative 07 14 Level 2 Present value of the future cash flows
financial instruments in the consolidated balance sheet (0.1) (0.6) s-R estimated based on forward exchange
REAEEBERTARANTESBRIAZNEEREN rates (from observable forward exchange

rates at the end of the reporting period)
and contracted forward rates.
HERRBER (RASHRIBRNES
E%) REFTANEEEEMEHARE
SRNBE-

4) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1.9 08 Level 3 Primarily based on the present value of

BATEABGZ SBEE EZH the estimated future cash flows of the
investee entities.
FEERBRAEREIARARRN
HE-

5) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive 9.7 11.0 Level 3 Primarily based on the present value of
income E=M the estimated future cash flows of the
BRATEFALMRENGE 2BEE investee entities.

TEERHRABRIERRAL TN
HE-

6) Contingent consideration payable (Note 35) - (182.9) Level 3 Primarily based on the present value of

O EENARED) FZH the estimated future cash flows.

TRERERRRRERARME

ESRREBERAT —E-LFER
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3 ZRERER (&)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 33 AREMEE (&)
Fair value measurements and valuation process NFEFERMMERR (F)
(continued)
Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated FeAERBERERNQTER
balance sheet: g
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E-% ] E=H it
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BE®T HE#BRT HEBRT HEBR
As at 31 December 2019 R-E-h&E+=-A=+—-H
Assets EE
Financial assets at fair value through R ATFEFABREZ EREE
profit or loss - - 1.9 1.9
Financial assets at fair value through ~ AT EF AR MEZEKRE 2
other comprehensive income SREE - - 98.7 98.7
Derivative financial instruments fTESMIA - 25.0 - 25.0
Liabilities 2
Derivative financial instruments fTEEMIEA (12.9) (17.3) - (30.2)
As at 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F+ZA=T—H
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value through R AFEFABHEZ
profit or loss PREE - - 08 08
Financial assets at fair value through ~ RAFEFAEMZE
other comprehensive income Wame e BEE - - 111.0 111.0
Derivative financial instruments TEERIA 2.9 332 - 36.1
Liabilities =0
Derivative financial instruments fTESRIA - (20.5) - (20.5)
Other payables and accruals Hit R AR EER
- contingent consideration payable —-ERRARE - - (182.9) (182.9)

There were no transfers among the three levels during
either of the years ended 31 December 2019 or 2018.

The management considers that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities
(a) Financial assets

The following financial assets are subject to
offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements

= LUE T eI

3 ZRERER (&)

34 HEETRHEEREBMAE

() =REE
AT EREESIEE F®8
BT —FREAEE LR

and similar agreements: SR LU R AR R -
Related amounts not net off
Gross amount  Net amounts in the consolidated
of recognised ~ of financial balance sheet
Gross financial assets  RRGREESERIRY
amounts of liabilities ~ presented HELE
recognised et off in the in the Cash
financial  consolidated  consolidated Financial collateral Net
As at 31 December 2019 assets  balance sheet  balance sheet  instruments received amount
RGREE
BERIRN  RGREE
ERE  EERER  ARREIN EHE
RZB-hE+ZA=t-A SREELE BESE SHEERR $RIE  REEAR E
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
BEER BERT BEER BERR BEER BEAR
Pledged bank deposits BERBOER 1917 - 191.7 (96.1) (83.0) 126
Derivative financial instruments 744 &I &
- Foreign currency forward —— —SMEREIAY)
contracts 17 (1.0 0.7 - - 0.7
- Metal commodities futre  — 2 BERES
contracts & 23 - 43 - - 13
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e BRI
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 SRERER(E)
3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial 34 EHEREEREHEE (H)
liabilities (continued)
(a) Financial assets (continued) () S=REE (HF)
Related amounts not net off
Gross amount  Net amounts in the consolidated
of recognised ~ of financial balance sheet
Gross financial assets  ARNGAAEBERNRY
amounts of liabilities presented RELE
recognised  net off in the in the Cash
financial  consolidated  consolidated Finandial collateral Net
As at 31 December 2018 assets  balance sheet  balance sheet  instruments received amount
REEEE
BERIRY  REREE
ERA  ERIER BEREIN B
R=Z-N\§+ZA=1-H SREELR BEZE SRARTAE SRMIE  REEER e
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEATL BEATL BEATL BBAT BBAT BEAT
Pledged bank deposits BEERTER 31356 - 3136 (34.0) (248.1) 315
Derivative financial fTEemIA
instruments
~ Foreign currency forward  —SMEREAH
contracts 08 - 0.8 - - 08
- Foreign currency swap ~ —SMNEBEAL)
contracts 24 (2.4) - - - -
~ Metal commodities future —& BEREH
contracts &4 370 (17) 353 (03) - 35.0
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities (continued)

(b) Financial liabilities

The following financial liabilities are subject to
offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements

= LUE T eI

3 ZRERER (&)
34 HEETREERSBMEME (K)

(b) =REE
AT ERBEZEE f®
BT —FREAEE LR

and similar agreements: SR LU R AR R -
Related amounts not net off
Gross amount  Net amounts in the consolidated
of recognised  of financial balance sheet
Gross financial liabilities ~ RRGAEERBRIBRH
amounts assetsnetoff  presented BBLE
of recognised in the in the Cash
financial consolidated  consolidated Financial collateral Net
As at 31 December 2019 liabilities balance sheet balance sheet  instruments received amount
RGEEEE
BERNRN  REREEE
BEA  CERILR BERIIN 2HE
RZB-AE+=R=1-H CRARAE EEAE SREETE SRIE REeHAR BE
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
AEAR BEAR BERR BERR AEER AEER
Borrowings &R 2,795.4 - 2,795.4 (96.1) (83.0) 26163
Derivative financial fTEERIA
instruments
~ Foreign currency forward  —SMNEREA 4
contracts 0.1 - 0.1 - - 0.1
- Metal commodities future —4 B REH
contracts &4 311 (1.0) 30.1 - - 30.1
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3 ZRERER (&)

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial 34 EHEREEREHEE (H)
liabilities (continued)
(b) Financial liabilities (continued) b) &WEEE)
Related amounts not net off in
Net amounts the consolidated
Gross amount of financial balance sheet
of recognised liabilities ~ RRGEEEBBERIRE
Gross amounts ~ financial assets presented RELE
of recognised  net off in the in the Cash
financial  consolidated  consolidated Finandial collateral Net
As at 31 December 2018 liabilities  balance sheet ~ balance sheet  instruments received amount
REEERE
BERIBH  REREE
BRA  ERIER BEREIN B
R=Z-Ng+ZA=1-H cHaELER EEEE SRARIAE SRMIE  REKEER e
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HK$M HKSM
BEAT BEATL BEATL BEATL BBAT BEAT
Borrowings &5 37876 - 3,7876 (34.0) (248.1) 3,505.5
Derivative financial fTEemIA
instruments
~ Foreign currency forward  —SMEREAH
contracts 03 - 03 - - 03
- Metal commodities future  —% B 78 ik 2
contracts &4 219 (17 202 (03) - 199
- Foreign curency swap ~ —FIRIEH A Y
contracts 24 (2.4) - - - -

The gross amounts of the recognised financial assets
and financial liabilities as presented in the Group's
consolidated balance sheet, both of which have been
disclosed in the above tables, are measured as fair
value.

The disclosures set out in the tables above include
commodities futures contracts traded through
brokers, and foreign currency forward/swap contracts
contracted with banks. If a default event (included
but not limited to default payment, liquidation,
bankruptcy or insolvency) occurs, the brokers and the
banks are able to exercise the right to offset against
any favourable contracts and/or the collaterals placed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the

future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

(a)

(b)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group tests at least annually whether goodwill
and other assets that have indefinite useful lives have
suffered any impairment. Other assets that are subject to
depreciation and amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amounts of an asset or a cash-
generating unit have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations or its fair value less costs of disposal,
whichever is higher. These calculations require the use of
estimates. The value-in-use calculations primarily use cash
flow projections. Judgement is required to determine key
assumptions adopted in the cash flow projections and
changes to key assumptions can significantly affect these
cash flow projections and therefore the results of the
impairment reviews.

Fair value of contingent consideration at the
date of acquisition

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations, which requires the Group to record
contingent consideration at its fair values on the date of
acquisition. Significant judgement and estimate are used
to determine the fair value of the contingent consideration
assumed. The valuation involves determining appropriate
discount rates and other assumptions.

= LUE T eI

BEEETET R

lET MH BT A F B AT (G - WA B RR
REMEAZRER SBRERBBFRT
BEHRKREHNSERSR-

AEBEERARRIEL A REBR- AL
EEZSABRARSERBEERS
REFT -EBERARRT —MHFE
SIBEERAGRMEZERAENM
At R RERI T X H -

(@) FETMEERE
AEBELEERBHEREMWSE
BHEEFERFHNEEETA
AoNEERS LR RE Kb
FERBENEENEEES
R RBER R BT R EE
HE A B 5B SR EE TR
Mo BEXRMSELFMNAK
OeEEREREEREATFE
MHERA (UESERE)E
TAETIBE -ZEHETER
ZNAEE-EREEFERZX
TZEARERERMN KRR
MEERIFARANEERRA
{E AV BERETE - = BB
BRI M SR e REBTRME
FEARE VERKZERER
FIRIAER ©

(b) RUERBHIAKELFE

AEBERBWBESER A O
AR ERBEAEEZERNK
BEMHAFELEIARE
WA B A H T R AFH AEE
P s RARERFE-AE
B REEAENIEREREMR

BEEREEERAR —Z2-hEgR 187



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB HRRMEE

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

jurisdictions.

Asset retirement obligations

Various pieces of land was leased by the Group for
operating scrap yards and preparation of the land might be
needed to make it appropriate for operation as scrap yards.

It was the Group’s contractual obligation to bring the land
to its original condition as the Group is not the owner of
the land. The Group estimates the expected costs necessary
to dismantle the scrap yards by assessing the discount rate
as well as expected increment in future cost which might
lead to changes in the provisions recognised.

Estimation of provision for impairment of
receivables

The loss allowances for receivables are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the allowances calculation,
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period. Where the
expectations are different from the original estimates, such
differences will impact the carrying values of receivables
and the impairment loss on receivable is recognised in the
years in which such estimates have changed.

Current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
Significant judgement is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain, such as
deductibility of compensation payments to customers.
The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit
issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences would impact the current and deferred
income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(e)

()

(9)

Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax losses
can be utilised. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimates, such difference will impact the
recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax in the
period in which such estimates are changed.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
cost to completion and selling expenses. Management of
the Group reviews the inventories listing on a category-
by-category basis at the end of the reporting period, and
assesses whether the cost of the finished products will
exceed their net realisable value. Management estimates
the net realisable value for such inventories based primarily
on the latest resale value and quoted prices on applicable
commodity exchanges. If the market price of inventories
are to decline, additional write down may be required.
Management reassesses the estimation at the end of each
reporting period.

Fair value of derivatives and other financial
assets

The fair value of financial instruments and other financial
assets (including embedded derivative components of
convertible bonds and options over shares in joint ventures
to joint venture partners, if any) that are not traded in an
active market is determined by using appropriate valuation
techniques and making assumptions that are based on
market conditions existing at each reporting date.

The fair value of options over shares of non-listed entities
are determined using discounted cash-flow method, which
requires the determination of an appropriate discount rate
as well as assumptions regarding the cash-flow projections.
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RSB HRRMEE

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(h) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

0]

and intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation and amortisation charges
for its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
by reference to the estimated periods that the Group
intends to derive future economic benefits from the use of
these assets. These estimates are based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets of similar nature
and functions. Management will adjust useful lives as
appropriate. Periodic review could result in a change in
useful lives and therefore depreciation and amortisation
expense in the future periods.

The Group has periodically reassessed useful lives of its
property, plant and equipment, taking into consideration
past usage and performance, prior repair and maintenance
efforts, current physical and operating conditions of these
assets, industry practices as well as future usage plans.

Determination of the lease term

In determining the lease term, management considers
all facts and circumstances that create an economic
incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a
termination option. Extension options (or not periods after
termination options) are only included in the lease term
if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not
terminated). The assessment is reviewed when a significant
event or a significant change in circumstances occurs which
affects this assessment and that is within the control of the
leasee.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's revenue mainly represents the amounts received or
receivable for the sales of recycled scraps and wastes, net of sales
related taxes, during the year. The Group derives revenue mainly
from transfer of these goods at a point in time.

In the current year, the Group’'s CODM, which has been
identified as the Executive Committee that makes strategic
decisions, assesses the performance of the operating segments
based on the measure of segment profit. This measurement
basis excludes the effects of non-operating gains/losses, such
as gain/loss on disposals of subsidiaries, gain/loss on fair value
change of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. The
measure also excludes centralised costs such as the Group's key
managements’ remunerations and other central administrative
expenses. Finance income, finance costs, income tax expenses
and those unallocated income and expenses are not included in
the result for each operating segment that is reviewed by the
Group’s CODM. Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing
market price.

Total segment assets exclude deferred income tax assets,
fixed return investment, tax recoverable, derivative financial
instruments and cash and cash equivalents which are managed
centrally. Information relating to segment liabilities is not
disclosed as such information is not regularly reported to the
CODM.

= LUE T eI
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ERBRRNE
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SoEER (&)
The following table paresents revenue and segment profit TEABNFEINEEAREBEZE TN
information regarding the Group's reportable segments for the FRZE-N\F+ZA=+—HLEFE
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, respectively: A 2D AU S T 7 56 A ) E Y -
For the year ended
BENTRYLER
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
ZE-AETZAZT-8 E-NEtZA=1-R
North North
Asia - Europe  America Unallocated Total Asia -~ Furope  America Unallocated Total
] BN LEN &R a3t B Bl EN AAR e
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
BE%n FEBr FE%r BEM BEER AEMn EEEn EEAT  EEMR  EEERD
Revenue Wi
Total seqment revenue HElELE 20154 12,1668 1,4109 - 155931 37514 151665 23867 - 213046
Inter-segment sales AHERE - (148 (349 - (@) -84 (1084 - g
xtermal sales e 20154 119720 13760 - 153634 37514 148831 22183 - 209128
Segment (loss)profit AR (ER) /& (13 3197 (484 (59 1131 2752 435 84 1184 8455
Finance income BB 36 3656
Finance costs BERE (2362) w2
(Loss)Profit before income tax REER A (58) /&7 (99.5) 469.4
Income tax expense FeHA i (343) (704)
(Loss)Profit or the year Eh(E8) /& (133.4) 3990
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 7T R &R (i)
(Note) (65.8) (291) (44.3) 213) (4225) (65.3) (2314 (522) (264) (3813
Fair value (loss)fgain on derivative fESBIAZATE
finandialinstruments (B2)/ g - - - 21 21 - - - 37 37
Gain on disposal of property, plantand ~ HENE BEREAENR
equipment and right-of-use assets FREEE IR - - - 33 33 - - - 296 296
Provision for impaiment of property, 41 HERREZAERE
plant and equipment - - - (09 (09 - - - (12) (12)
Loss on disposals and deregistration of  HEREETAAZER
subsidiaries - - - (137) (137) - - - - -
Gain on disposals of financial assets ~ HERATEF A ARL
atfair value through profit or loss SHEE NS - - - - - - - - 200 200
Gain on disposal of assets classified ~ HEDEBREREEE,
s held for sale ez - - - - - - - - 1095 1095

Note: Depreciation and amortisation expenses for the year ended 31 December
2019 included the depreciation and amortisation of right-of-use assets as a

result of the adoption of HKFRS 16 (Note 8).

192 Chiho Environmental Group Limited  Annual Report 2019

Mz RABFEYBRESERNSI6HGHEE
F-NE+A=+-RLFEZFER
BHR BERREE 2 TEREBHETA
X (HfE8) »



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RMEE
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SoEER (&)

Segment assets PHWEE
Reconciliation of segment assets to total assets as at 31 RZTE—-NF+ZA=+—HBERZ=ZE
December 2019 and 31 December 2018 are provided as follows: —N\F+ZA=T—BHHEEREE

REMEERET
As at
R
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
ZE-AEtZRZt-H ZE-N\EFZA=T-H
North North

Asia  Europe  America Total Asia Europe  America Total
T Bl EM @ Tl BN LEN &t
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HK$M HK$M HK$M
BE%n HEBn EE#n EBBn BB EEART BEAT  BEAR
Segment assets AHEE 2,039 6,206.0 9087 91526 27126 65635 10028 10,2789
Deferred income tax assets ERAMEHEE 1093 148.7
Fixed return investment ErakE 88.4 M3
Tax recoverable ARERE 299 154
Derivative financial instruments  fT££ BT & 25.0 36.1
Cash and cash equivalents BeRAEEEER 784.8 697.1
Total assets BELE 10,190.0 11,387.5

Geographical information HEER

Non-current assets, other than financial instruments and deferred
income tax assets, and analysed by geographic regions as follows:

FIRBEETRESRIANMREMNS
MEE MBS HNT

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

R-—B-—h&E RZT—N\HF

+=Z—A=+—-8 +=-—A=+—H

HK$M HK$M

BEBTT BHEET

Asia EEDL 1,033.7 1,037.1
Europe BOM 4,178.5 4,077.9
North America =M 723.1 680.6
Total HET 5,935.3 5,795.6

ESRREBERA
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RS BRRMEE
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SoEER (&)
Analysis of revenue by category REBER B2 WED N
For the year ended
BEUTHHILEE
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
—ZE-h#F ZE-N\F
+=ZA=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
HKSM HK$M
BEBRT BEAT
Metal recycling B EK
— Ferrous metal —REEE 10,063.9 11,533.8
— Non-ferrous metal - BEEE 4,279.3 8,482.6
Forging and foundry s RIS 342.4 153.6
Others Hito 677.8 742.8
Total st 15,363.4 20,912.8
Information about major customers FEEFHNER
No single customer contributed 10% or more to the Group's REBEE_Z-NEFR-ZE-N\F+=A
revenue during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018. =t+—HIFE TEE-FFERA
EEKEZE10% LA Lo
6 OTHER INCOME 6 EHalA
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
HK$M HK$M
BEER BEAT
Rental income HE B A 23.7 22.0
Rental income from investment properties R EMEME LU A (Hf:E17)

(Note 17) 3.7 3.7
Government grants IR 48 B 6.5 0.9
Dividend income B A 4.8 3.5
Other income from related parties R B R 7 B9 A

(Note 39(a)) (M4 5E39(a)) 7.8 3.7
Compensation from insurance coverage REetE 49.0 16.3
Others EAh 31.5 491

127.0 99.2
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OTHER GAINS, NET

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= LUE T eI

7 Htblas e

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$M HK$M
BEBT BEET
(Loss)/Gain on fair value change of: N EEF
(F518) /Mas
— derivative financial instruments — TSR I A (2.1) 347
— financial assets at fair value through —BAFEFAERZ
profit or loss CREE 1.7 (3.2)
Foreign exchange gains/(loss), net E W Uz (E518) 548 13.9 (1.4)
Provision for impairment of property, M BELEFE
plant and equipment (Note 14) EEE (HEE14) (0.9) (1.2)
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE BERHK
plant and equipment and right-of-use AR i & BE 2 W
assets 33.3 29.6
Gain on disposal of assets classified as held HEDBEAFEHEETE 2
for sale (Note (i) Uzt (FI=EG)) - 109.5
Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair HEEAFEFAEBRZ
value through profit or loss (Note 20) SREEZ W (M7E20) - 20.0
Compensation income HERA - 453
Loss on disposal and deregistration of & R F AR ZEE (M
subsidiaries (Note (ii)) (i) ) (13.7) -
Others Hih 10.9 (0.7)
43.1 232.6

Notes: FtzE -

(i) Pursuant to a state-owned construction land use right transfer contract, a (i) RIREAERAMERRERAR  —R
piece of land located in Shandong Province, the PRC, which was classified REABELURENTHMER T —+F+=
as assets held for sale as at 31 December 2017, was surrendered to the A=t—HA2BABELREEE EERN
local government in 2018 and a gain on disposal of HK$109.5 million was )\ FRTEHBN YREBEEZZ
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2018. —N\F+ZA=1+—"HIEFEERLEK

#1{B9508 /8 7T -
(i) The Group disposed 75% equity interests in three subsidiaries in the USA and (i) HE-_T-NF+-_A=1+—HILEFE"

formed a joint venture with an independent third party who is also engaged

in scrap metal recycling for a consideration of US$4.5 million (approximately
HK$34.9 million) and a loss on disposal of HK$9.5 million was recognised for

the year ended 31 December 2019. The remaining amount of HK$4.2 million

represented loss from deregistration of a subsidiary.

EeRREBERAT

AEHEERERZ =HTFRE275%K
BEREEVE=F (AT NtEBE2EBE
WK — &% REBEARISOEET
(#93,4908 7% 70) I #ERR H & 5189508
BT T £ MEA20B B REFHE—EF
NEZEE.

—E-hEEH
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RSB HRRMEE

8 EXPENSES BY NATURE

RUEEE D ZFX

2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —ZE-N\F
HK$M HK$M
BEAT AEBT
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress £ %4 & & &K fh 17
and finished goods (141.9) (234.8)
Raw materials and consumables used FT AR KRB 12,266.9 16,782.3
(Reversal of provision)/Provision for FE (BERR), BEFE
inventories, net (Note 24) (FF7¥E24) (1.9) 18.5
Employee benefit expenses (Note 9) EERAZ (FFE9) 1,155.1 1,272.8
Depreciation and amortisation expenses of #)% - B E K& #H B EE
property, plant and equipment, intangible RIEEWEZITER
assets and investment properties BHB S 263.2 381.3
Depreciation and amortisation expenses of  {if FI#E & &E 2 T & &
right-of-use assets B 159.3 -
Legal and professional expenses FRRFEEME 43.8 66.8
Auditors’ remuneration 1% A B
— Audit services — %2R 27.5 31.6
— Non-audit services — I ERTE 7.3 2.7
Other expenses Htpx 1,727.8 2,239.8
Total cost of sales, distribution and selling ~ $5& M - 284 M EF X
expenses and administrative expenses AR ATE R = 4858 15,507.1 20,561.0
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= LUE T eI

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 9 EERMAX
Employee benefit expenses during the year are as follows: FRANESENFAOT
2019 2018
ZE-NF —E-)N\F
HK$M HK$M
BEET AEBT
Wages and salaries TERF® 961.3 1,078.0
Other termination benefits H B B A A 5.4 3.7
Social security costs FEARB AR 28.3 27.8
Pension costs — defined contribution RIRE KA — FE #HRE 2
plans (Note (a)) (FF3E@)) 107.7 108.1
Pension costs — defined benefit plans RIREHRA—FREBAMGE 0.5 0.6
Other employee benefits HiESEA 51.9 54.6
Total employee benefit expense EERN A& 1,155.1 1,272.8
Notes: MieE
(a) Pensions — defined contribution plans (a) BHhe-REMAKTE

(b)

Contributions totalling HK$0.2 million (2018: HK$0.3 million) were payable to

the fund as at 31 December 2019.

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for the
year include two (2018: two) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis shown in Note 40. The emoluments payable to the remaining three
(2018: three) individuals during the year are as follows:

HRE H20BE T (=

T—\F:308%

T)ER-ZE-NFTA=+—REEE

RiEE -
(b) FBRURSHFMAL

FRAREEz AUREHHALBENS
B#EFIRH 40T DT 2 ML ES (ZF
—N\EFE W) FRABNTFHT =L (=
T N\F: =) AL ZBEMT

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$M HK$M
HEBT ERYv
Salaries, bonus and other allowances ¥4 - fE 41 & H fih 2 84 10.9 17.6
Pension costs-defined RIRNE KA — FE #REH 8

contribution plans - _
10.9 17.6

The emoluments fell within the following bands: e N FIATE :
Number of Number of
individual individual
AB AEH
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/ 7L 3,000,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001/ 7t £ 3,500,000 7T 1 -
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001/ 7L 25,000,000 7T 1 -
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,001/ 7T 26,000,000/ 7T - 2

HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000

6,000,001 7T 26,500,000/ 7T

EeRREBERAT
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RS BRRMEE
10 FINANCE COSTS, NET 10 BAFSAK AN H5E
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$M HK$M
BEAT AEBT
Interest income from bank deposits RITFERZ A EHWA 9.5 10.5
Interest income from fixed return & E B 3% & 2 F B WA
investment 12.6 22.3
Interest income from related parties R B R 2 R B WA
(Note 39(a)) (KFE39(a)) 1.5 3.8
Finance income WWWWW%!?{?;%H&EZ\ 77777777777777777777777 236 366
Interest expense on bank loans, overdrafts, RITEBX  BNZE X
bills payable and note payable SEEMNREZFBMY (79.4) (244.8)
Effective interest expense on other HthERZERF M
borrowings (137.7) (103.0)
Interest expense on early redemption of REERNZERENRIEBZ
note payable MEFRX - (36.6)
Interest expense on early repayment of REEEEMERZ
other borrowings FERXZ - (14.2)
Interest expense on lease liabilities (2018: HE&E(—ZT— \F:
finance lease liabilities) (Note 33) BREMEEARE) 2
MEFX (MFE33) (18.5) (13.5)
Interest expense on loans from related RERB T NERZFE
parties (Note 39(a)) il &2 (FF3E39(a) ) (0.6) (0.6)
Finance costs I L. @362 (412.7)
Finance costs, net B A AR AN H 5B (212.6) (376.1)

198  Chiho Environmental Group Limited  Annual Report 2019



1

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2018: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.

Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT")
and the relevant EIT Implementation Regulations, the tax rate of
PRC EIT has been provided at the rate of 25% (2018: 25%) on
the estimated assessable profit for the year.

Germany and USA income taxes have been provided at the rate
of approximately 30% (2018: 30%) and 26% (2018: 26%)
respectively, on the estimated assessable profit for the year.

Taxation on profits from other jurisdictions has been calculated
on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of
taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

11

= LUE T eI

FTiS i sz

EBFERHREF ARG ERFUEF
BB E16.5% (ZF— )\ :16.5% ) it
B

RIBHBECEMRSHR ([REMRFHR])
ERBEEEMGHREREN  PED
EBHIMRRF QbR RGN R
BE25% (—F— \F:25% ) st 2 &
e

BEREBEMSR D BIRFENGHE
RER IR EH30% (ZF—N\F:
30% ) 226% (—F—)\F :26% ) 5T 1=
B

KB EMRDEERE N 2 HIR T RAE
BRLERAEBRR ZBITHEFEFAM
AHERTUE A

2019 2018
—E-NF —ZE-N\F
HK$M HK$M
BEAR BEBT
Current income tax (expense)/credit: BIERFTSRiITE (M) /%
Germany == (23.8) (104.1)
PRC EIT PRI TS (0.3) (0.5)
Hong Kong profits tax EENGEH (1.3) (2.7)
USA e - (2.2)
Other jurisdictions H R AR (5.0) 1.0
(30.4) (108.5)
(Under)/Over provision in prior years: RBEFE (BETR),/
FRFE A -
Germany = (1.1) 17.1
Hong Kong profits tax BEANFH 0.2 4.3
USA Eqe 21 -
Other jurisdictions B ek 0.5 6.2
I 7. 26
Deferred income tax (expense)/credit BEAER (X)),
ey e (imes)  Ge 05
Income tax expense FRS R (34.3) (70.4)
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RSB HRRMEE

1

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 11

The tax on the Group’s (loss)/profit before income tax differs

from the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted
average tax rate applicable to profit of the consolidated entities as

follows:

PRSI (&)

A5 B T 19 LA (A59R), F o B
TR B4 FE IR A AR M I
B EMELNRRSEZZRIMT

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HKSM HK$M
BEERT BEBT
(Loss)/Profit before income tax BT SRE (BR), %A (99.5) 469.4
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates 1238 F R MR A B 2R 4 A1 Y
applicable to profits in the respective N H B SR =+ B A I8
countries (15.4) 153.3
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for 7~ A] FOF% 5T sx B9 3 75 52 £2
tax purpose 49.8 97.0
Tax effect of income not taxable for BERTMBANB G E
tax purpose (60.9) (40.9)
Tax effect of temporary differences RIERNE ET ZFH
not recognised ka2 17.7 (11.4)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised ﬂiﬁﬁmﬁﬁlﬁﬁéﬂa TRy % 64.6 12.4
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses A2 B AR R IEEER
previously not recognised M E (2.8) (77.3)
Tax impact on share of results from HEGBRERAREGEEDRE
an associate and joint ventures HECRBEE (17.0) (35.1)
Over provision in respect of BEFEBERE
prior years 1.7) (27.6)
Income tax expense for the year FRMEHRX 34.3 70.4

IEFEEEAR R A155% (ZZE— N\
F:132.7%) WL TIEARETFARIZ
BREEHEE -

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 15.5% (2018:
32.7%). The decrease is caused by changes in the profitability of
certain subsidiaries.
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12 DIVIDENDS 12

No dividend was paid or proposed during 2019 and 2018, nor
has any dividend been proposed by the Company since the end of
the reporting period in respect of the years ended 31 December
2019 and 2018.

13 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 13
(a) Basic

Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
(loss)/profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the

= LUE T eI

=

ARRRZE—NFR-_ZT—\FHE
RESEZRATARE  aBE=-Z
—NFERZZE—\F+ZA=+—H1
FEMHRE R IMERZ RS AR

B o
o

)R (B8R) &7

(@) EX
FRRER (E18) BFTIEARA
IR EIEAFE (F518) E T

Company by the weighted average number of ordinary bR AR [ B 817 B AR Nt F
shares in issue during the year. BHHBEHESL -
2019 2018
—E-hEF ZE—N\F
HKSM HK$M
BHEERT BEAT
(Loss)/Profit (EB1]) &R
(Loss)/Profit for the year attributable 7/ &) B R G
to shareholders of the Company KEE (BIE) 5T (128.7) 401.2
Number of shares KRG &R
Weighted average number of BT @R
ordinary shares in issues EHHE (FR)
(thousands) 1,605,153 1,605,153
Basic (loss)/earnings per share FRER (FE),&F
(expressed in HK$) (LA T3 R ) (0.08) 0.25
(b) Diluted (b) #%8
REBEZEZZT-NEFR_ZT—N\F

The Group has no potentially dilutive shares outstanding
during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

TZA=T—BLEFEAEEL
BORTETEERD -

EeRREBERAT
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RS BRRMEE
14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 W% - WE K&
Office
Plant furniture
Land and and and  Construction
buildings machinery  equipment in progress Total
RREE
THEREF BERES R& EETE @t
HK$M HK$M HK$M HKSM HKSM
BEBTL BEBTL BEAT BEAT BEAT
At 1 January 2018 nZZ-NF—-F—-H
Cost AR 2,7415 1,2933 109.2 98.0 42420
Accumulated depreciation and ZHMERAMERSE
impairment loss (146.5) (502.6) (33.6) - (682.7)
Net book amount EEFE 2,595.0 790.7 75.6 98.0 3,559.3

Year ended 31 December 2018 EE-T—)\%

TZRA=+—-HLEFE

Opening net book amount EMzEmEE 2,595.0 790.7 756 98.0 3,559.3
Acquisition of business (Note 41)  UBE %7 (Kt 541) - - 05 - 05
Additions RE 80.3 264.9 1342 122.7 602.1
Transfer upon completion Rk k8 E 14.9 79.6 15.6 (110.1) -
Transfer from assets classified as BB S BABELENEE

held for sale 5.1 - - - 5.1
Impairment loss (Note 7) REBE (M7) (1.0 - 02 - (1.2)
Disposals e (33.8) (32.7) (2.9 4.1 (73.5)
Depreciation charge FERY (121.8) (168.6) (45.6) - (336.0)
Currency translation differences ~ [EXZ% (110.9) (33.2) (5.8) (2.9) (152.8)
Closing net book amount ERZERFE 2,427.8 900.7 1714 103.6 3,603.5
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\F+-A=1+—H
Cost KA 2,699.1 1,531.1 2448 103.6 4,578.6
Accumulated depreciation and ZEMERREFE

impairment loss (2713) (630.4) (73.4) - (975.1)
Net book amount BEFE 2,427.8 900.7 1714 103.6 3,603.5
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= LUE T eI

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14 %% /= K&k ()

Office
Plant furniture
Land and and and  Construction
buildings machinery  equipment in progress Total
BORE
THREF BERES SES ERIE @zt
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M

BEBET AEBET AERET AEET AEET

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE2-_Z-NF+-A=1+-A

I35

Opening net book amount FOERFE 2,421.8 900.7 1714 103.6 3,603.5
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 RNEBHBEREERE165 2

(Note 2.1.2(a)) g2 (Mi2.1.2@) (29.7) (302.2) (1243) - (456.2)
Restated opening net book amount & E 5| F N8R EFE 2,398.1 598.5 471 103.6 3,1473
Additions NE 79.2 63.2 79.3 115.8 3375
Transfer upon completion Rk EE 1.8 719 24.2 (107.9) -
Transfer to investment properties BERENE

(Note 17) (BE17) (6.6) - - - (6.6)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEFAT (4.8) (8.7) (1.7) (1.0) (16.2)
Impairment loss (Note 7) REEE (MW7) (0.9) - - - (0.9)
Disposals HE (137.8) (54.7) (22.8) (4.8) (220.1)
Depreciation charge nERY (106.6) (83.1) (31.0) - (220.7)
Currency translation differences ERESR (32.3) (4.9) 0.2 (0.4) (37.4)
Closing net book amount ERZEEFE 2,200.1 582.2 95.3 1053 2,982.9
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+ZA=1+—H
Cost AR 2,531.8 1,070.5 160.4 105.3 3,868.0
Accumulated depreciation and ZHFERAEER

impairment loss (331.7) (488.3) (65.1) - (885.1)
Net book amount REFE 2,200.1 582.2 95.3 105.3 2,982.9
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RSB HRRMEE

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Notes:

Construction in progress as at 31 December 2019 mainly comprises new metal scrap
processing machinery and equipment being constructed in Asia and Europe.

Buildings and plants with a net book value of HK$1,905.0 million (2018: HK$1,838.3
million) were pledged to secure certain borrowings and general banking facilities
granted to the Group (Note 37).

As at 31 December 2018, plant and machinery includes the following amounts where
the Group is a lessee under a finance lease:

14

W Wb MRt ()

L

RIE-NAF+-A=+-—HNERIRTIERE
FEZMEBONZRTOMBLESBINTHESER

REFEA/IVES00BB T (ZT—/\F 18
3,8308# L) MEFREESEIF (EAREEE
BETERR—RIETHE KR (ME37) -

RZFB-NF+ZA=+—H BEREHIEEN
T2 ARERET —ERERNNARA:

2018
—E-N\F
HK$M
BEAT

Cost — capitalised finance leases BA—ERMEBERLD
Accumulated depreciation 2FIE

166.3
(61.5)

Net book amount BREFE

104.8

From 1 January 2019, leased assets are presented as right-of-use assets in the
consolidated balance sheet (Notes 2.1.1 (a) and 16).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR aRMEE
15 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS 15 FHE b N L Hh(F A
The Group's interests in land use rights represent prepaid REBRTIOE BN ESETANEE
operating lease payments and their net book values are analysed HENFEEERFESTHOT
as follows:
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$M HK$M
BEERT BEAT
At 1 January ®n—H—H 387.9 412.9
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 BN S B T RS Y R
(Note 2.1.2(a)) EXid- 2
(Mi5E2.1.2(a)) (387.9) -
Restated opening net book amount EEHFAREFRE - 412.9
Amortisation charge By - (10.3)
Currency translation differences EH =% - (14.7)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8 - 387.9
From 1 January 2019, leasehold land and land use rights were B-E-NhE—F—HBf - BETHE
reclassified to right-of-use assets upon adoption of HKFRS 16 T ARERNREANT S ISR EEL]
(Notes 2.1.2 (a) and 16). BIeHmBETOEAERAEEAE (M

212 (@k16) °
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RSB HRRMEE

16 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16 FHAEEE
Office
Land Plant furniture
and and and Intangible

buildings machinery  equipment assets Total
BRBA

THREF BERES PET BREE @zt

HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M

BEBT BEBT BEBT BEBT BEBT

At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE—-A—H
(upon adoption of HKFRS 16) (RNRNE BRI HRE
EA 165 1%)
Cost A 607.6 497.3 182.4 0.4 1,287.7
Accumulated depreciation, amortisation 2 &  # 8 &t
and impairment loss REEE (96.1) (181.6) (32.1) - (309.8)
Net book amount REFE 511.5 315.7 150.3 0.4 977.9
Year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZ-NF
TZRA=t-RI%E
Opening net book amount FNEEFE (REAEE
(upon adoption of HKFRS 16) B REERE165E) (M
(Note 2.1.2 () 212 (@) 511.5 315.7 150.3 0.4 977.9
Additions NE 134.9 170.0 90.8 - 395.7
Disposals HE (8.1) (2.5) (3.9) - (14.5)
Depreciation and amortisation charge 17 & Jt # 55 % (31.9) (88.2) (38.9) (0.3) (159.3)
Currency translation differences EREE (7.2) (4.6) (2.2) - (14.0)
Closing net book amount FRZEEFE 599.2 390.4 196.1 0.1 1,185.8
At 31 December 2019 RZZF-NEF
+-A=+-H
Cost KA 725.9 640.9 258.0 0.4 1,625.2
Accumulated depreciation, ZEHE BHERAERR
amortisation and impairment loss (126.7) (250.5) (61.9) 0.3) (439.4)
Net book amount REFE 599.2 390.4 196.1 0.1 1,185.8
Notes: B &
Certain leasehold land and land use rights with a net book value of HK$288.2 million BE % 18 52188,8208 BT (— 2 — )\ & : 38
(2018 HK$316.4 million were pledged to secure certain borrowings and general 164088 T) 2 ETHE LR T FRED K
banking facilities granted to the Group (Note 37). o EAREBERTE TERN —RIBITRERN
R (ME37) ©
Expenses relating to short-term leases of HK$20.1 million and expenses relating to HEENAE YEE2,0108 8T REBYESE
leases of low-value assets that are not classified as short-term leases of HK$13.4 AEHAE Y EEEEAEME Y B Y1,3408 5T
million were charged to the consolidated statement of profit and loss for the year CEBE-—Z—AE+-_A=+—BULHEEIH
ended 31 December 2019. SiBRENMKB -
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TmE M PR aRMEE

17 REWH

2019 2018

—ZE-hEF —E-N\F

HK$M HK$M

BEBT BEAT

At 1 January n—H—H 3.2 35

Depreciation charge WEMX (0.4) (0.2)
Transfer from property, plant and EEAME BRERZE

equipment (Note 14) (PF3E14) 6.6 -

Currency translation differences PEH =% (0.3) 0.1)

At 31 December R+ZA=+—8H 9.1 32

Notes:

(i) The above investment properties, which are situated in the PRC (2018: the

PRC) are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the remaining useful lives.

(ii) The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 December 2019 was

HK$16.6 million (2018: HK$6.1 million).

(iii) Rental income from these investment properties recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2019
amounted to HK$3.7 million (2018: HK$3.7 million) (Note 6).

(iv) Investment properties with a net book value of HK$9.1 million (2018: nil)

were pledged to secure certain borrowings and general banking facilities

granted to the Group (Note 37).

B

0] Bt B (— B N\F R E)MEEY
EERRTERFHAEREENE-

(ii) REBLEMERN-_FT—-NLE+=-A4
=+ —HHAFEAR608ET(ZF
—N\E:6108BT) -

(i) MREBE-FT-NAF+ZA=+-HLFE
EREBRRRNERANKEZTRENE
WIS KA R3I708ETT (ZF—/\F 370
&85 (fiaEe) -

(iv) REDFERINOBEL (ZF-N\F:E)2

REMECEN UMERAFKEERTE
FERR—RIRITARE IR (FE37) -
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RSB HRRMEE

18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

18 EREE

Customers'
relationship
Brand names, and Non-
Computer  patents and suppliers  competition
Goodwill software licenses  relationship ~ agreement Total
mie BN BRFEER  RERE
BHE SEEN LEE HERBR A by
HKSM HKSM HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEET RAEERL BERT BEET ABERT BERT
Year ended 31 December 2018 HZE-Z—/)\F
TZA=t-RLEEE
Opening net book amount ENREFE 7917 59 3115 986 - 1,207.7
Additions NE - 2.5 - - 453 47.8
Acquisition of business Wi 7% (MiF41)

(Note 41) - - - 16.0 - 16.0
Amortisation charges BHER% - (3.5 (11.2) (8.8) (11.3) (34.8)
Currency translation differences & ¥ =% (34.8) (0.4) (13.3) 4.1 0.2) (52.8)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 756.9 45 287.0 101.7 338 1,183.9
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F

+=A=+-A
Cost A 756.9 10.3 302.9 114.3 45.0 1,229.4
Accumulated amortisation RETEH - (5.8) (15.9) (12.6) (11.2) (45.5)
Net book amount REFE 756.9 4.5 287.0 101.7 33.8 1,183.9
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= LUE T eI

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 18 BREEE (&)
Customers’
relationship
Brand names, and Non-
Computer patentsand  suppliers’ competition
Goodwill software licenses relationship  agreement Total
mE-BF EFEER RERS
BHE  BREEH4 kiEE HEFERE G @zt
HKSM HKSM HKSM HK$M HK$M HKSM
BEER BEER EX-3- 9 ABAER X3 BEBER
Year ended HE-Z-NF
31 December 2019 TZA=T-ALEE
Opening net book amount FOEREFE 756.9 45 287.0 101.7 33.8 1,183.9
Additions AE - 5.6 - - - 5.6
Disposals of subsidiaries HETFAA - - - (14.2) - (14.2)
Amortisation charges BHRY - (2.3) 9.7) (8.1) (22.0) (42.1)
Currency translation differences [ 5 2% (11.6) - (4.4) (1.5) 0.7) (18.2)
Closing net book amount FREMTE 745.3 7.8 2729 719 141 1,115.0
At 31 December 2019 RZB-n%F
+=A=+-A
Cost KR 7453 16.2 2983 96.9 443 1,201.0
Accumulated amortisation RitEH - (8.4) (25.4) (19.0) (33.2) (86.0)
Net book amount BEFE 745.3 7.8 272.9 71.9 1.1 1,115.0
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB HRRMEE

18

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment tests for goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives

Goodwill is recognised through the acquisition of Yantai Liheng
Environmental Protection Technology Co., Ltd* (/& & 37 #3%
REHEARAE]) (“Yantai Liheng”) and Scholz Holding GmbH
("Scholz Holding”) in 2016 with carrying amount of HK$13.6
million and HK$731.7 million (2018: HK$14.1 million and
HK$742.8 million), respectively, as at 31 December 2019.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives represented brand
names with carrying amount of HK$185.4 million (2018:
HK$188.3 million) as at 31 December 2019.

Management reviews the business performance based on
geographic regions. It has identified Asia, Europe and North
America as the main regions. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of Yantai Liheng is allocated to Asia region and that
arising from the acquisition of Scholz Holding is allocated to
Asia, Europe and North America regions. Brand names have been
allocated to Europe and North America regions.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated
below. The growth rate does not exceed the long-term average
growth rate for the metal recycling business in which the CGU
operates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= LUE T eI

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment tests for goodwill and intangible assets

with indefinite useful lives (continued)

For the impairment test for goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives, the key assumptions, long term growth
rate and discount rate used in the value-in-use calculations are

18 /‘\ﬁ/ §}Z<rv/\)

ZEERH (&)

BERAERUEAFHZEBTEE

MEBLRAERAERFHZELEE
ZREANH  EREER
ERR RMERXRFRERERT

BREANE

disclosed below: X
North
Asia Europe America
M BOM EEM
2019 —E-hF
Long term growth rate REER X 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
Pre-tax discount rate (Note (7)) BRELATITIR K (MIEG)) 17.7%-19.1% 14.2% 13.9%
Gross profit margin ER=E 5.2%-7.9% 7.7%-9.0% 8.0%-9.6%
Revenue growth rate g R =R 2.6%-37.0% 2.3%-9.1% 3.3%-11.0%
North
Asia Europe America
M &M =M
2018 —E8-N\%
Long term growth rate REER R 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
Pre-tax discount rate (Note (i)) Br BRI IR R (FH3E()) 17.7%-19.1% 14.2% 13.9%
Gross profit margin EFIE 5.6%-7.2% 8.7%-9.1% 9.3%-9.6%
Revenue growth rate Y 7548 & X 1.2%-39.8% 0.4%-2.9% 2.0%-17.7%
Note: B3
(i) Pre-tax discount rate applied to the pre-tax cash flow forecast. (i) FERRBRTLATER & TR R BRI AT TR & o
The recoverable amounts for Asia, Europe and North America WEREZEEMT M- EMH)SUE%/JH
CGUs would still exceed their carrying amounts if the assumptions ReEFBMHAIIRESFEKER
were changed as follows: EHEREE:
. lowering long term growth rate by 1 percentage point; o R REREEVES S5
e raising pre-tax discount rate by 1 percentage point; or . AR AT IR RIEF AR D8
o,
e lowering revenue growth rate by 20% of the expected . g R EBEERIEREY

growth rate.

20% °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB HRRMEE

19 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 19 fER#ER

EQUITY METHOD
(@) Interest in an associate

RINERIRE

() RBEQTR 2R

2019 2018
—g-nE  —FNE
HK$M HK$M
AWBTL BB

Cost of unlisted investment in
an associate (Note)
Share of post-acquisition

REE AR ZIELETHRE
AR (BEE) 2.3 2.3
B R R EBR

accumulated losses (0.6) (0.3)
1.7 2.0
Notes: Bt 5
Details of the Group's associate at the end of the reporting period are as REBRBEKRYBLSATHBNT
follows:

Proportion of

Place of ownership interest

Name of entity principal business held by the Group Principal activity
AEBEFEF

BREE TEEE N BERERLE EEEH
Poly Metals Company Limited (“Poly Metals") Hong Kong 20% Trading of metal scrap
E@mecEEROR ([EE]) & BECEBRS
Poly Metals is a private company and there is no quoted market price available BRI ATLARTRERO W EAFH TS
for its shares. G o
There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's WREEAREBREENE 2
interest in an associate. w2 HABE
Summarised financial information for an associate —EBE AR ZHBERBE
Set out below is the summarised financial information TXIHEBM M BERME
for Poly Metals which is accounted for using the equity HEARERES -

method.
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TmE M PR aRMEE

19 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 19 {FREZEVIERENRE (8)
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(a) Interest in an associate (continued) (a) MREfEQTZEZR (E)
Summarised balance sheet EEAEBERUE
2019 2018
“E-hE  —TNF
HKS$M HK$M
BHEETT BEBT
Total current assets MEBEELE 40.5 29.3
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 0.9 0.7
Total current liabilities nEBEETE (40.7) (27.8)
Total non-current liabilities JERE A EREE - -
Summarised statement of comprehensive income 2HENFEREPE
2019 2018
e L
HK$M HK$M
BHEETT BEBT
Revenue U = 233.4 117.5
Loss and total comprehensive loss EiEREHEEIBLRE (1.6) (3.4)
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RSB HRRMEE

19 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 19 {FREZEVIERENRE (8)
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(a) Interest in an associate (continued) (a) REEDQRZ2ER (H)
Summarised statement of comprehensive income ZHBERBTE (F)
(continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial P BEENEEENE R E R
information to the carrying amount of the interest in Poly ZERHEE (RGEHBRER AR
Metals recognised in the consolidated financial statements: R)ZHBRET
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$M HK$M
HEERT AEBT
Net assets of Poly Metals as at EMR+ZA=1+—8/
31 December EEFE 0.7 2.2
Proportion of the Group's ownership 7<% B 52 2 B 2 ¥ 6 &
interest in Poly Metals ey Al 20% 20%
Share of net assets of Poly Metals ERERMEEFE 0.2 0.5
Goodwill GES 1.5 1.5
Closing carrying value FRERHEE 1.7 2.0
The information above reflects the amounts presented 3B R e B 3 AN B ) B AR B
in the financial statements of the associate adjusted for NAIZ BT BEREZRERBEER
differences in accounting policies between the Group and ZMERRIZMBREES 28
the associate. o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TmE M PR aRMEE

no quoted market price for its shares. It is engaged in collection,
processing and trading of scrap metal in Mexico.

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 19 FA#EREYIRNKRE (&)
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

Interests in joint ventures (b) REELXER

Particulars of the significant joint ventures are set out FEEEREIFBHINGOT

below:

Place of
establishment/
principal place Principal ~ Measurement
Name of entity of business % of ownership interest activities method Carrying amount
Rt/
B TEEXBE EEREZEAN TEER TREE REE
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE2-NF —E-)\F Z2-NF —E-N\E
HKSM HK$M
BEER AEAT
Schrott und Metallhandel Germany 75% 75% Note (i) Equity 119.7 115.7
M. Kaatsch GmbH &R BiEE() Ex
Scholz Austria GmbH Austria 63.35% 63.35% Note (ii) Equity 214.6 2118
A i) En
Kalischatarra, S.de R.L. de C.V. Mexico 50% 50% Note (i) Equity 129.5 126.2
=Tk, k() s
Individually immaterial joint ventures Note (iv) Equity 165.4 157.5
EREERAELE Mt 2 i) #i
629.2 611.2

Notes: Bt 5 -

(i) Schrott und Metallhandel M. Kaatsch GmbH is a private company (i) Schrott und Metallhandel M.
and there is no quoted market price for its shares. It is engaged in Kaatsch GmbHA—fERLA R A R H
collection, processing and trading of scrap metal in Germany. BRI ETISRE - ZRARREER

REBE - NMIREEBELESR -

(ii) Scholz Austria GmbH is a private company and there is no quoted (ii) Scholz Austria GmbHA — B FLA R
market price for its shares. It is engaged in metal recycling business in A R H AR I R T35 B o 52 A A
Austria. REMFREBESBER -

(iii) Kalischatarra, S.de R.L. de C.V. is a private company and there is (iii) Kalischatarra, S.de R.L. de C.V./5—

A A DB R ER D I & T 5 R
B ZARNRAFUHERE NI
rEEBLESR-

EeRREBERAT
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RSB HRRMEE

19 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (continued)
(b) Interests in joint ventures (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iv) In addition to the interests in joint ventures as disclosed above, the
Group also has interests in a number of individually immaterial joint
ventures that are accounted for using the equity method:

19 MR

(b)

FIRRMRE (&)

REghxEHS (H)
i ()
V) BEXEBZRAEC¥ZHE

S AEETFRBEEREERE
BhXEEEL WEAESEA

AR -
2019 2018
—E-hEF —T—)\F
HK$M HK$M
HEET BEBT
Aggregate carrying amount of individually ~ R{EBIFEE KA LDEZ
immaterial joint ventures BREEARE 165.4 157.5

Aggregate amount of the Group's share of: 7S5 B fE {k 7 4855 -

Profit for the year F R T 17.0 51.6
Other comprehensive loss Hih2mEEE 0.2) -
Total comprehensive income EHE M =B 16.8 51.6

Commitments and contingent liabilities in respect of
joint ventures

The Group provided guarantees of approximately HK$35.3
million (2018: HK$35.9 million) for borrowings to certain
joint ventures as at 31 December 2019.

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s
interests in the joint ventures.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TmE M PR aRMEE

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE

EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(b)

Interests in joint ventures (continued)

Summarised financial information for joint ventures

Set out below is the summarised financial information
for Schrott und Metallhandel M. Kaatsch GmbH, Scholz
Austria GmbH and Kalischatarra S.de R.L. de C.V. which
are accounted for using the equity method. In the opinion
of the Directors, these joint ventures are material to the

19 ERRDEIIRNIEE (8)

(b) REELFZER (E)

| =}
A R
S

T X5 #Sc

R M BEHBE

hrott und

Metallhandel M. Kaatsch
GmbH * Scholz Austria GmbH &
Kalischatarra S.de R.L. de C.V.Z Bt
BERBE  HiR#ERES|R &

Group. ERB ZESEELEHAER
mEBEKX-
Summarised statement of comprehensive income THBHERME
Schrott und
Metallhandel Scholz Austria Kalischatarra,
M. Kaatsch GmbH GmbH S.deR.L de C.V.
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-NF TN\ ZEB-hE -\ ZB-AFf Z—T)F
HKSM HKSM HK$SM HK$M HK$SM HK$M
BEET BEET HEETL BEET BEETL BEETL
Revenue Wi 954.2 11227 2,380.6 2,865.8 708.4 744.6
Profit/(Loss) for the year ~ FREH / (E%E) 78.5 22.0 285 96.1 (2.9 (5.6)
Other comprehensive loss  Et 2 AEE - - (6.6) - - -
Dividends received from  BWAE T ERE
joint ventures 83 8.0 8.3 253 - -
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RSB HRRMEE

19 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(b) Interests in joint ventures (continued)

Summarised balance sheet

Schrott und
Metallhandel
M. Kaatsch GmbH

19

(b)

EREREINRNIKRE (B)

Reghx s (F)
EERERYE

Scholz Kalischatarra,
Austria GmbH S.deR.L de C.V.

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-h0f —E-\§¥ ZB-hE —ET-\& ZE-NEF —ZT-)\F
+=A +=ZA +=A +=A +=A +=A
=t-A =t+-A =t+-8 =+-A =t-H =t+-8
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HK$M HK$M
HEBRT BEBT HEBL BEATL BEBRL BEAT
Current bl

Total current assets MOEEAE 137.9 155.8 393.3 529.7 237.7 3152
Total current liabilities ~ i# & E&H (76.7) (80.5) (343.3) (419.9) (172.4) (243.2)
Total net current assets i B & EFEAH 61.2 753 50.0 109.8 65.3 72.0

Non-current 7|
Total non-current assets ~ FEREEELE 212.7 170.2 411.8 267.5 196.6 1783
Total non-current liabilities FERE) & E#E (126.9) (104.0) (194.6) (115.5) (35.1) (30.6)
Net assets BEFE 147.0 1415 267.2 261.8 226.8 219.7
Group's share in % TEEREES L 75% 75% 63.35% 63.35% 50% 50%
Group's share in HKSM RS EEEEEAT 110.3 106.1 169.3 165.8 113.4 109.9
Goodwill HE 94 9.6 453 46.0 16.1 16.3
Closing carrying value  FXREEE 119.7 115.7 214.6 211.8 129.5 1262

The information above reflects the amounts presented in
the consolidated financial statements of the joint ventures
adjusted for differences in accounting policies between the
Group and the joint ventures.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are all held for
trading and include the following:

20

TmE M PR aRMEE

BANFEFABDC EMEE

BATEMABRZ EMEETRFEER
5 BRENUT:

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HKS$M HK$M
BEABRT BEAT

Unlisted equity securities FELEHRAEFS
At 1 January ®n—HA—H 0.8 5.3
Additions NE 1.1 -
Disposals & - (4.5)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 1.9 0.8

Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss of HK$20.0 million was recognised in “other gains, net” in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2018 (Note 7).

HERAFEFARGSZEREEMS
Wi 42,0008 87T TREBEE-F—N
FH-A=t—HILFEZHFABHER
[E e as 38R ) R (BIaE7) »
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RSB HRRMEE

21 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 21 mAVEFARMEEEGRZ

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME TREE
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income BRATEFARMEEKE @ REE
are all held as long-term strategic investments that are not O eI ER A NGHEZ R
expected to be sold in the short to medium term and include the HISRBS MR E B AN EIE
following:
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$M HK$M
BEAT AEBT
Unlisted equity securities FLEHRAES
At 1 January ®—H—H 111.0 116.1
Disposals k= (2.9) -
Fair value change NEBEEZSH (7.5) -
Currency exchange differences 5 =% (1.9) (5.1)
At 31 December W+=ZRA=+—H 98.7 111.0
Dividend income of HK$4.8 million (2018: HK$3.5 million) from HE-Z—NF+-A=+—HLHF
these unlisted equity securities are recognised in “other income” T REELLTRABSFMEREW
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended A480E BT (ZE — \F : 3508 %
31 December 2019 (Note 6). TIRGERERER THMEA] h#ER
(Mizx6) -
22 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 22 HMIERBEE
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-N\F
HK$M HK$M
BEABR BEBT
Deposits, prepayment and other receivables %<& - TEf} 5018 &
H & UK IR 17.0 5.8
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S5 R EE
23 DEFERRED TAXATION 23 IREFLIA
The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred income RIEMGHEERBELEMSHAEZD
tax liabilities is as follows: Mran T
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HKS$M HK$M
BHEET ABEETT
Deferred income tax assets: FIEFTISTE =
Deferred tax assets to be recovered 1571218 B & W2l /Y
after 12 months EERIEEE 81.0 97.8
Deferred tax assets to be recovered #1218 B e /Y
within 12 months RREMIEEE 28.3 50.9
109.3 148.7
Deferred income tax liabilities: RIEFTSFHBE
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled BR1I2EREEERN
after 12 months BLEHEEE (318.2) (340.0)
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled BRANREARNGERN
within 12 months EERIEAE (24.6) (40.4)
(342.8) (380.4)
Deferred income tax liabilities, net EEFMERAETHE (233.5) (231.7)
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RS BRRMEE
23 DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 23 EAERIE (&)
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during FRELEMESHEERBEZEE (K
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of ST RE IS REE R AR A RIS
balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows: U
Accelerated
Deferred income tax
tax liabilities depreciation Others Total
pilig
EZEMBHERE HIENE Hit BEr
HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEET BEET BEET
At 1 January 2018 R-Z—\FE—A—H 391.9 24.6 416.5
(Credited)/Charged to the REEEERR
consolidated statement (5t A) /0%
of profit or loss (20.5) 4.3 (16.2)
Currency translation differences E & =R (22.4) 2.5 (19.9)
At 31 December 2018 RZE—-N\F
+=ZA=+—8H 349.0 31.4 380.4
Credited to the consolidated RérEaERERFA
statement
of profit or loss (21.6) (10.1) (31.7)
Credited to the consolidated RizeEMEE
statement of other WamEETA
comprehensive income - (1.4) (1.4)
Currency translation differences ME X Z&E (5.6) 1.1 (4.5)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZZ—NEF
+ZA=+—H 321.8 21.0 342.8
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= LUE T eI

23 DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 23 REFRIE (B)

Decelerate Unrealised
tax profit on
Deferred income tax assets Tax losses depreciation  Provisions  inventories Others Total
HE S 2}
EEFBHEE HEFR  BERE BE  REERN Hif @t
HKSM HKSM HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M

BEBET  AEAT BEBT  ABAT REBRT  BEAT

At 1 January 2018 RZE-\F-A—-H (65.6) (20.4) (25.8) (24) (53.9) (168.1)
(Credited)/Charged to the REaBak
consolidated statement (FtA)/ ks
of profit or loss (1.4) 48 1.1 0.9 2.1 5.7
Credited to the consolidated REAEM2E
statement of other BEEFA
comprehensive income - - - - (0.4) (0.4)
Currency translation differences B X £ 18 5.0 2.1 - 5.2 14.1
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E
+-A=1+-H (65.2) (10.6) (22.6) (3.3) (47.0) (148.7)
Charged/(Credited) to the REEBRR
consolidated statement nk/ (GtA)
of profit or loss 14.0 (3.8) 108 (0.2) 16.5 373
Credited to the consolidated NERENZE
statement of other WaEREA
comprehensive income - - - - (0.5 (0.5
Currency translation differences B Z% 12 03 0.7 - 1.0 26
At 31 December 2019 RZZ2-h%E
+-A=1+-H (50.0) (14.7) (1. (3.5) (30.0) (109.3)

The Directors do not have an intention to distribute the retained
earnings of certain subsidiaries such that deferred income tax
liabilities of HK$139.9 million (2018: HK$117.6 million) have
not been recognised for the withholding tax and other taxes
that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of these
subsidiaries. Unremitted earnings totalled HK$630.2 million
(2018: HK$604.0 million) as at 31 December 2019.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax
benefit through future taxable profits is probable. The Group did
not recognise deferred income tax assets of HK$475.3 million
(2018: HK$502.9 million) in respect of tax losses amounting to
HK$2,098.7 million (2018: HK$2,017.1 million). Unrecognised
tax losses of HK$1,482.6 million (2018: HK$1,337.4 million) have
no expiry date and the remaining tax losses will expiry at various
dates up to and including 2038 (2018: 2038).

EEEEDRETFRRIZREBAEF -
MM ARZE T RRIAREL BT EH
M TEME R E MR B REEATS
FHRBaE1E3,908 8 T (T —N\F 1
81,7608 %) - R=ZZE—NF+=A
=+—H KEHBEFA £5H6/E3,020
BB (22— /)\F : 6{84008 B T) °

AABERGEE 2 HBEERRREL
Fri8fi &R  WIEAGEBIERA ] 5
EBAEZ T RSB EBR A
& B30 45 5L B T8 5 1820189,870& B T
(ZZ— N\ :2081,7108 8 7T) R
EIEFT B A EME7, 53088 T (=&
— J\F 582908 B r) c R ER A
E11814188,2608 B L (=T — \F ¢
13183,7408 8 0) WEE A Mk
THESEBER-ZE="F(ZZF—N\
FZEZ)N\F) (BEZF)RZAZ
[ H B o
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RSB HRRMEE

24 INVENTORIES 24 FE
2019 2018
—B-NEF —TN\#E
HK$M HK$M
BESBT AEETT
Raw materials R K 338.0 1,036.4
Work-in-progress & m 33.8 23.8
Finished goods BIAK SR 1,124.1 1,045.5
1,495.9 2,105.7

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost
of sales amounted to HK$12,123.1 million (2018: HK$16,566.0
million), which included net reversal of provision for inventory of
HK$1.9 million (2018: provision for inventory of HK$18.5 million)
(Note 8).

As 31 December 2019, the Group has pledged inventories with a
net book value of HK$711.7 million to secure certain borrowings
and general facilities to the Group (2018: HK$809.7 million)
(Note 37).

BERARI T AHEREANTFERR
EE121E2,31088 T (= — \F:
165186,6008 B 7T) ' BRETFTERER
B FE1908B T (ZE—N\F:FEH
#1,8508 % L) (MIEE8) »

W-ZB-AE+-_A=+—H &&£H
BEREFEA7EINI0EE T CEM
FE UERASEERNETERK
—MEE (ZZF—)\F : 8{897088 L)
(H$3E37) »

25 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25 B EBENMEMEWFIE

2019 2018

—E-hF —E—)\F

HKS$M HK$M

BEBTT ABEET

Trade receivables B 5 EWGRIE 983.1 1,426.4
Less: loss allowance B BEEE (39.9) (62.8)
Trade receivables, net B S rEWRIEFEE 943.2 1,363.6
Bills receivables FERERFIE 14.1 3.9
Deposits and prepayments e RIBIHRIA 134.6 189.9
Deposits paid for purchase of raw materials [ E R# £ 2 21L& 39.3 40.5
VAT recoverable AR EEER 116.4 160.6
Other receivables (Note) H b U EOE (M) 128.2 123.6
1,375.8 1,882.1
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25 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25 B EEREEEMERFIE

(continued) (&)

Note: As at 31 December 2019, the balance includes a receivable of HK$64.0 Wi RZZ—AF+ZA=+—80 &4
million (2018: HK$65.5 million) from the Taizhou Bay Committee, a KETEBFEREMNEEZ S EYIR
government authority in the PRC. 186,4008 BT (ZF — /\% :6,55088

T e

At 31 December 2019, the Group has pledged trade receivables RZZE-—NF+ZA=+—8 £5H

with a net book value of HK$701.7 million (2018: HK$1,030.3 BEEFERIEI1708B T (ZE—N

million) to secure certain borrowings and general banking F:10(83,03088T) BB E FE

facilities to the Group (Note 37). WskTE AR A EBERNE TRER

K —MRRITRVE (MIRE37) »

At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the aging analysis of the trade RZE-NEFER_ZF-NE+_A
receivables based on invoice date was as follows: =+—H - ES5RWFIEREZEA N
BRER DA T
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HKS$M HK$M
AEBT BHEET
0 - 90 days 0%908 885.8 1,323.5
91 — 180 days 912 180H 48.1 45.7
Over 180 days HiE180H 49.2 57.2
983.1 1,426.4
(a) Fair values of trade receivables () EZEWREATE
Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables, AR RE R GER S
their carrying amount is considered to approximate their HEEHEEHERAEEAFEME
fair values. Ho
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RSB HRRMEE

25 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

(b) Impairment and risk exposure

The Group measures the expected credit losses on the
trade receivables by grouping them based on shared credit
risk characteristics and the days past due. The expected
loss rates are estimated based on the historical credit
losses experienced, adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over which the
historic data has been collected, current conditions and the
Group's view of forward looking economic conditions. On
that basis, the loss allowances as at 31 December 2019 and
2018 were determined as follows:

25 E5 - ZEMEAMERFIE

==
=)
n=l

(b)

NN

)
B R R B A
AEERBAREERREEK
B HR B 5 FE MR IR B TR
EEBBRETOEE-BHE
BRRatEERRERMA
A 4 58 BE DA = B i 5% JEF St B R
2 OB AR - W AR K AN &
EABEELERARERZER -
BBEEE R_Z—-NFR=
E-N\E+ZA=+—BHEE
BfsmEm T

Gross carrying

Expected amount
credit loss rate — trade receivables Loss allowances
BEREE
FHEEBER —EBEZERFIE BERE
HKSM HK$M
BEERT BEERT
As at 31 December 2019
RZZE—-—h&F+=ZA=+—8H
Active accounts
TERER P
Current 0.1% - 5.0% 7111 6.1
BNHA
Past due 1 — 30 days 0.1% - 25.0% 182.6 9.8
BEITE30K
Past due 31 — 90 days 0.1% - 70.0% 51.0 4.1
#HA31E 90K
Past due over 90 days 0.5% - 100% 234 4.9
1 HA 3B90K
Terminated accounts 100% 15.0 15.0
BIERRF
983.1 39.9
Total
5t
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(continued)

(b) Impairment and risk exposure (continued)

25

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TmE M PR aRMEE

—=
=]
=

NN

)

mE

B 5 R KA EIFIR

(b) REREBREE (&)

Gross carrying

Expected amount
credit loss rate — trade receivables Loss allowances
AR E
BHEEBEX —E S rEKFIE EERH
HK$M HK$M
AEAT BEET
As at 31 December 2018
RZE-—NF+_A=+—H
Active accounts
TEIRER P
Current 0.2% - 5.0% 969.4 5.0
BNHA
Past due 1 — 30 days 0.1% - 25.0% 371.5 20.9
BER1E30K
Past due 31 — 90 days 0.4% - 85.0% 53.1 8.9
i HA31 290K
Past due over 90 days 1.9% - 100% 16.3 11.9
8 BB BO0K
Terminated accounts 100% 16.1 16.1
BRIEERF
Total 1,426.4 62.8
5t
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RS BRRMEE
25 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25 J’:éi:i% IR N E A ENGRIE

(continued) (#&)

(b) Impairment and risk exposure (continued) (b) BERRERERE ()
Movements on the Group’'s loss allowance of trade $%@E%E§Hﬁz%ﬁlﬁz%ﬁﬁéﬁ
receivables are as follows: ZEBERIMT

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-)N\F

HKS$M HK$M

BEER BEAT

At 1 January ®n—H—H 62.8 127.8

(Decrease)/Increase in loss B R B B

allowance recognised CRA) /1 hn (21.0) 12.1
Receivables written off during FRMSEENTE 2

the year as uncollectable JE W R IA (1.3) -
Reversal of impairment of B 5N FIARERE

trade receivables - (74.6)

Currency translation differences &N E5E (0.6) (2.5)

At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 39.9 62.8
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25 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)
(b) Impairment and risk exposure (continued)
As at 31 December 2019, provision for impairment

of prepayments and other receivables amounted to
approximately HK$8.7 million (2018: HK$8.0 million).

The other classes within trade, bills and other receivables do
not contain impaired assets. The Group does not hold any
collateral as security.

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables, net
of provision, are denominated in the following currencies:

25

= LUE T eI

25 Bk RSO

==
&=
nE

(b)

NN

)

BERERREE (&)
R-ZT—hFE+=-A=+—8"
TE A FRIB R H A 8 s R TR R (B 1
HAEN8I0B BT (T — \F:
8008 T ) °

B REkEMERKAERE
EHNLE T B ECHEEE K
SEAEFATAERIEE
e

AEE 2B 5 RN (F05 &
%) ZBEEETA T ESEHE:

2019 2018

—E-h#F ZTE-N\F

HK$M HK$M

BHEET BEET

RMB AR 94.9 36.0
HK$ BT 0.7 30.9
EUR BT 540.9 829.8
us$ E 208.7 329.2
Other currencies Hip gk 98.0 137.7
943.2 1,363.6

The carrying amounts of the Group's other receivables are
mainly denominated in RMB, EUR and US$ (2018: RMB,
EUR and US$) as at 31 December 2019.

26 FIXED RETURN INVESTMENT

As at 31 December 2019, the fixed return investment of HK$88.4
million (2018: HK$211.3 million) represented investment carries
fixed interest at 7% per annum (2018: 7% per annum). The
principal amount and fixed return are guaranteed by a private
equity firm and the director of the private equity firm.

R-T—AE+=A=+—8"
A B SRR 2 SR (B
EUARK BTRET(ZF
— N\ AR BUTRETD) B
ffie

26 [EFEEFHEE
R-ZZEZ—hE+=-A=+—H AT
B R1% E8,8408 B L (ZE— N\F:2
11308 B L) BIZFNEI% (=ZF
—N\FE FEFET% ) 2 B EFET B
& o ANe K EE R R Az AL SR
NAREEEFER

ESRREBERAT —E-LFER
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RSB HRRMEE

27 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 27 PTAESRIA
2019 2018
—E-NF —N\F
HKS$M HK$M
BEET BEABT
Derivative financial assets TTEEMEE
Metal commodities future contracts cEERBESY
(Note (i)) (PREEG)) 24.3 34.7
Foreign currency forward contracts INEERBRE 4
(Note (ii) (PR EEGI) ) 0.7 1.4
25.0 36.1
Derivative financial liabilities "Tiﬁﬁﬂﬁfﬁ
Metal commodities future contracts TEERHESLN
(Note (i) (HEEEG) (30.1) (19.9)
Foreign currency forward contracts INESR RS K
(Note (ii) CBREEGi) ) 0.1) (0.6)
(30.2) (20.5)
Notes: G
(i) Metal commodities future contracts (i) cEBERPESRY

(ii)

The Group enters into copper and other metal future contracts and options in
order to manage its exposure to the price risk of inventories. These contracts
are actively traded in an active market and are measured at fair values based
on quoted price as at reporting date, with gain or loss recognised directly in
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The notional principle amount of the outstanding metal commodities future
contracts was approximately HK$1,057.2 million (2018: HK$1,600.2 million).

Foreign currency forward contracts

The Group entered into foreign currency forward contracts in order to
mitigate its exposure to the foreign currency risk. These contracts were
measured at fair value using quoted forward exchange rates at the end of
the reporting period, with gain or loss recognised directly in consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

The notional principle amount of the outstanding foreign currency forward
contracts were approximately HK$106.2 million (2018: HK$456.9 million).
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(ii)

REBRIUREEMEBREE O R
NEREFENERRAR ZFERHNE
BHISRRERYREBERRE AR RE
BRAVEFE HEBRREERGEER
RIER

AEECBHMAEANNERASER
#910185,7208 B L (—F—/\F : 16/820
BET)

SEEHREN

AEBRTSIINEE I KIVARE SNE R
FZEANNRERREAEHRERE =R
NTEFE HEERERERGESBERR

REEIINERHAONEBRESEOM
86208 B 7T (= F — )\ : 4185,6908 8
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28 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND 28 EBHEHBRTERERE LIRS
CASH EQUIVALENTS £EIEH
Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to banks to EHMRITIFRIERRITEAARR
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group. Deposits EEERN —RBRTEEEERNT
amounting to HK$191.7 million (2018: HK$313.6 million) have e ME91708 B L (ZE—/\F : 38
been pledged to secure bank borrowings, and are therefore 1,360@ B 70 ) M F R E | IPERITE R
classified as current assets (Note 37). MER AHESEARSEE (M
37) ¢
Cash and cash equivalents represent cash and short-term bank RekREFEEAERIBAR=A
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. RS THIRE KA BIRITF -
2019 2018
ZE-NF —E-)N\F
HKSM HK$M
BEERT BEET
Cash at bank and on hands WITRFHERE 783.3 696.5
Security deposit (Note) REZ (W) 1.5 0.6
Total cash and cash equivalents as per HeERenERZESR
consolidated statement of cash flows ReSHEEBERETE 784.8 697.1
Note: The balance represents a deposit placed with a financial institution as security fitE: HHEFACRBBERRAEESERD
for open metal commodity future contracts. The security deposit is non- BHEAVERNIEZS RESATFHE -

interest bearing.
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RSB RMIEE
29 SHARE CAPITAL 29 B
Authorised share capital SEE R A
Numbers
of shares Share capital
RO HE AR AR
(Thousands) HK$M
(FR]) BEAT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at RZZE-NEFE—-—H—Q1"
1 January 2018, 31 December 2018, —E-N\FE+ZA
1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 =+t—H -ZZFE—A%F
—A—HEZZE—NF
+ZA=+—R2
BRHEEC.OVEIT . B 5,000,000 50
Issued and fully paid ERITRERE
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018, RZZE-NF—H—A8-
1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 —ET-N\F+=A
=+t—H ZZF—ANF
—A—ARZZT—NF
+ZA=+—8 1,605,153 16.1

232 Chiho Environmental Group Limited  Annual Report 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TmE M PR aRMEE

30 OTHER RESERVES 30 HEftbi#Efs

Foreign
Capital Statutory Enterprise  Remeasurement  Remeasurement currency
Share redemption Capital general expansion on financial of pension translation
premium reserve reserve reserve fund assets plans reserve Total
EfitE E¥itE
RfRE  E4AREEE BAHE  iR-REE  0RERES SHEE EREHY  NMERRE &t
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT L BEAT BEET BEAT L
(Note (i) (Note (i) (Note (i) (Note 21)
(G (M3t (i) (GE{) (Hfs21)
At 1 January 2018 RZF-\E-A-B 59119 03 2109 107.0 1069 - 04 681.5 70189
Currency translation differences on 5N £z B £%
foreign operations - - - - - - - (301.0) (301.0)
Remeasurement of post-employment E# it ERSERBR% ZEHER
benefit obligations, net of tax NEHE - - - - - - 20 - 20
Transfer of reserves L LE - - - 01 02 - - - 03
At 31 December 2018 RZF-NE+ZA=F-H 59119 03 2109 1071 1071 - 24 3805 6,7202
At 1 January 2019 R=B-nE-A-A 59119 03 2109 1071 1071 - 24 380.5 6,720.2
Currency tranlation differences BN EBZEXEE
on foreign operations - - - - - - - (90.7) (90.7)
Change in the fair value of RATEF AR B2 EREZ
financial assets at far value SREEIATERY.
thiough other comprehensive pili ]
income, net of tax - - - - - (6.1) - - (6.1)
Remeasurement of post-employment B it EREERBH% ZEHER
benefit obligations, net of tax NBEHE - - - - - - (%)) - (%))
Share of other comprehensive loss B4 807 A2 AER
of joint ventures - - - - - - (a.4) - (84)
At 31 December 2019 RZB-ME+ZA=t-8 59119 03 109 1071 1071 (6.1 (6.1) 28938 6,6149
Notes: ks
(i) Capital reserve represents the sum of (a) the difference between the nominal (i) BARREEQARANR-_ZEZENFEES
value of the aggregate share capital and share premium of the subsidiaries ERFTUREFARRARRG G ERE 2
acquired by the Company upon a group reorganisation in 2008 and the EEEARR R R B R ETRG 2 HE
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange and (b) a MEERO)—E-ZFEMBRERZ
capitalisation of shareholders’ loans in 2010. fER I
(ii) Statutory general reserve and enterprise expansion fund represent the (ii) AARHEFARNESSZAMARE

appropriation of 10% of profit after tax determined based on the relevant
accounting rules and regulations of the PRC as required by the Articles
of Association of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries. The appropriation may
cease to apply if the balance of the statutory general reserve and enterprise
expansion fund has reached 50% of the PRC subsidiaries’ registered capital.
The statutory general reserve and enterprise expansion fund can be used to
make up prior year losses or to increase share capital.

A
ES

ARE T BIAR & AR B RO EE 5
BEEF10%BNEE —RFR R B HEH
BREZ -MEE - REBREEZFRES
MREET B FRARZMERN50% A7)
RIEBE - EZE - REBREEERES
AJ A G847 2 1 A B 1R K AR AR o

BRREBARAH
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G FRHmRMIEE
317 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 31 FEFERRER
Share of net liabilities of
subsidiaries
FriEFRARAEFHE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HKS$M HK$M
BEBT BEBTT
At 1 January ®n—H—H (29.4) (26.0)
Transactions with non-controlling interests B2 JEIERR R ETR 5 25.9 -
Share of loss for the year, net FNALEBEFE (5.1) (2.2)
Share of other comprehensive loss, net EliEEMEEEIRFRE (1.7) (1.2)
At 31 December R+—A=+—H (10.3) (29.4)
32 BORROWINGS 32 B
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HKS$M HK$M
BEBTT BEET
Non-current B
Bank borrowings (Note (a)) IRITIEF( WE )) 226.4 388.7
Other borrowings (Note (a)) H b gk (KisE@)) - 1,738.1
Finance lease liabilities (Note (b)) mEHEBE( W #Z()) - 302.3
e 2264 24291
Current B
Bank borrowings (Note (a)) ITIE R (MizE@)) 547.3 971.5
Other borrowings (Note (a)) EAb g (MisE@)) 2,021.7 250.5
Finance lease liabilities (Note (b)) MEREEE (HiEbh) - 136.5
e 2569.0 13585
Total borrowings ERAE 2,795.4 3,787.6
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32 BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

Bank and other borrowings

Bank borrowings mature at various dates up to 2029 (2018: 2025) and bear
average coupons ranging from 1.1% to 8.5% per annum (2018: 1.2% to
8.0% per annum).

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group’s bank and other borrowings
were repayable as follows:

Bank borrowi
RITER
2019

32

ngs

2018

—E-NFE ZEB-N\E

HK$M

HK$M

BEER BEET

TmE M PR aRMEE

&k (%)

B
(@ BEREMER

RITERRTRBHIE EE-F-NF
BE(CE-N\E: -2 _RF) FHE
EFEMENT11%E85% (ZT— )\ F:
FHE12%E8.0%) °

RZE-NEFR_ZT—N\F+_A=+—
B AEBERITREMERZ B BHERS

I
Other borrowings Total
HipfE R st
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-hE ZEB-NE ZE-hFE ZEB-N\F
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M

BEET BEET BEER BEBT

Within 1 year —FR 547.3 971.5 2,021.7 250.5 2,569.0 1,222.0
Between 1 and 2 years —EMF 180.1 125.4 - 1,738.1 180.1 1,863.5
Between 2 and 5 years MEREF 41.2 252.5 - - 41.2 252.5
Over 5 years HENE 5.1 10.8 - - 5.1 10.8

226.4 388.7 - 1,738.1 226.4 2,126.8

773.7 1,360.2 2,021.7 1,988.6 2,795.4 3,348.8
The carrying amounts of the bank and other borrowings are denominated in SRIT R E e 2 Y BREE YA T 5 St
the following currencies: =8

2019 2018

—B-hfF T \#F

HK$M HK$M

HEBT ER-v

EUR BT 541.1 525.3
us$ EV 1,854.1 2,315.2
RMB AR 273.1 371.7
Czech Koruna ("CZK") el ([ERRH]) 82.5 61.8
Danish Krone (“DKK") FERA (TR 9.9 12.0
Polish Zloty (“PLN") IR ([ZBIR]) 34.7 62.8
2,795.4 3,348.8
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32 BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(@)

(b)

Bank and other borrowings (continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had aggregate facilities of approximately
HK$5,969.2 million (2018: HK$6,614.2 million) for loans, factoring and
guarantees. Unused facilities as at the same date amounted to approximately
HK$2,393.2 million (2018: HK$2,341.4 million) which were uncommitted
facilities. These facilities are secured/guaranteed by certain properties, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets, investment properties, inventories, trade
receivables and bank deposits (2018: properties, plant and equipment,
leasehold land use rights, inventories, trade receivables and bank deposits)
with an aggregate amount of HK$3,807.4 million (2018: HK4,308.3 million)
(Note 37).

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has drawn down a new
2-year syndicated term loan of US$220.0 million to early repay certain other
borrowings and note payable. The loan was guaranteed by USUMHK and Mr.
Tu. The Group has pledged the shares of certain subsidiaries to secure the
loan. Subsequent to year ended 31 December 2019, the maturity date of the
syndicated term loan has been extended to March 2021 with some terms,
amongst which certain financial and non-financial undertakings, have been
revised.

The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximate their fair values.

Finance lease liabilities

From 1 January 2019, lease liabilities are presented as a separate line item in
the consolidated balance sheet (Notes 2.1.2 (a) and 33).
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33 LEASE LIABILITIES 33 HEAaE
The Group leases various land and land use rights, property, plant, AEBHEESHE I MR LMERE - Y
equipment and intangible assets (Note 16). Rental contracts are ¥ WE- -REREFEE (HM:E16) -
typically made for fixed periods of 2 to 6 years but may have HEARNBREIE _Z"FNEEH
extension options. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual PR - M T G I HAGE 124 - B IR FNIR
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. R EEEITHER - B2 R TRAE
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants. R - HE MR T EA A REE-
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of TRETAEEHEEEEN T —NF
the Group's lease liabilities as at 31 December 2019: T A=+ —HZHTEHIHIER:
2019
ZE-NF
HK$M
HEBT
Gross lease liabilities HEAEEE
- minimum lease payments -REHAESR
No later than 1 year TBR—F 216.2
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years EBR—FETERAF 537.6
Later than 5 years BREF 117.6
871.4
Future finance charges on leases HAEMRRMEL (110.3)
Present value of lease liabilities HEEENRE 761.1
The present value of lease HEABEHREWNT:
liabilities is as follows:
No later than 1 year TR —F 191.7
Later than 1 year BR—F 569.4
761.1
Interest expenses on lease liabilities of HK$18.5 million was MEBABEZFERE,8508 B TE &
charged to finance cost for the year ended 31 December 2019 ABEZZT-NF+A=+—HILHF
(Note 10). B2 KA (MiFE10) -
The total cash outflow for leases was HK$232.2 million for the BHE_Z-NE+-_A=+—HILF
year ended 31 December 2019. EZHERSREEER2E3,2208%8
5o
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34 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS 34 RIKTEFIFTE
The table below outlines where the Group's post-employment TREMAEBH A REVBRK 2R
amounts and activity are included in the consolidated financial BRERRBE 2 ERED -
statements.

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$M HK$M
AEBT BEEL
Consolidated balance sheet obligations for: 4F& EEBERMIN T A
ZEME:
Defined benefit plans (Note (b)) AERAFE (MFED)) 27.3 23.4
Consolidated statement of profit or loss FEBEAMATEIEA
charges included in operating profit for: RN 2
Defined contribution plans (Note (a)) FIEHFRE S (MEE@)) 107.7 108.1
Defined benefit plans (Note (b)) AERAFE (M&ED)) 0.5 0.6
108.2 108.7
Remeasurements for: AT BBZEHNFE:
Defined benefit plans (Note (b)) REBAEFTE (MFED)) 4.6 (1.6)
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34 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (continued) 34 RIKEFIFE (8)
(a) Defined contribution plans (@) HREHNKTE
The Group operates a couple of defined contribution plans RNEERELEREHREE
which receive fixed contributions from group companies. HE£E QA WEEREMRR K
The Group's legal or constructive obligation for these plans SERZEFFEEEREER
is limited to the contributions. The expense recognised EUAERRR - RFE s ZFH
in the current year in relation to these contributions was HER A BVETIOEA T
HK$107.7 million (2018: HK$108.1 million). (ZZ2-N\F: 11881088 ) -
(b) Defined benefit plans (b) HREFFE
The Group operates several defined benefit pension plans AEERAEERERENE T T
for selected former and active employees of the Group's NEINKETEAERETESE
certain subsidiaries in Germany. The plans provide benefits EE TRERMBRETE 25
in the form of a guaranteed level of pension payable for FTEIRREK IR ZHENE
life. The plans are mostly financed by the Group's internal ERHRERRE B 2 F T3
resources. A part of the plans is covered by plans assets in REBOBEAEENTEREE
the form of reinsurance policies. i 5% % 51 8130 5 B LA BRI AR &
FEAREEERRE-
The Group's major plans are valued by qualified actuaries AEEZFZHETFHEER
annually using the projected unit credit method. The BHMEAEREMLRES
amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet are B-RGEEEBBERAER
determined as follows: SEDEATIAEE
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-NF
HK$M HK$M
HEERT BEAT
Present value of funded obligations BB EEHIHRE 14.3 11.8
Present value of unfunded obligations % Bh & T &R E 19.2 17.3
Fair value of plan assets FAEEEMATE (6.2) (5.7)
Liabilities in the consolidated balance FABEBBEXRWAE
sheet 27.3 234
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34 RREAEE (F)
b) FEBFE (M)
FERNREENEEORERE
AENATEEHMT:

34 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (continued)
(b) Defined benefit plans (continued)

The movement in the present values of defined benefit

obligations and fair value of plan assets over the year is as

follows:
2019
“E-NF
Present
value of
defined Fair value
benefit of plan
obligations assets Total
RERA TEEE
EENERE WATE @t
HK$'M HKS$'M HK$'M
BEART BEET BEET
1 January K—A—H 29.1 (5.7) 234
Current service cost EHRBAA 0.5 - 0.5
Interest expense FIEHZ 0.5 - 0.5
Interest income FIEHA - (0.2) (0.2)
30.1 (5.9) 24.2
Remeasurements: EH -
Effects from change in financial ~ B/ BRHREHNTE
assumptions 43 - 43
Effect from other experienced HRERIEL
based adjustments RENTE 0.4 - 0.4
Return on plan assets, excluding ~ #EIBER LR
amounts included in interest PREFAFERANEE
income - (0.1) (0.1)
4.7 (0.1) 4.6
Currency translation EXZE
differences (0.1) 0.1 -
Contributions H®®
— Employers -Ex - (0.3) (0.3)
Payments from plans: BEE
~ Benefit payments LR (1.2) - (1.2)
As at 31 December Rt+=A=+-~H 33,5 (6.2) 273
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34 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (continued) 34 RIKEFIFE (48)
(b) Defined benefit plans (continued) (b) HREBAFE (&)
2018
—T-N\E
Present
value of
defined Fair value
benefit of plan
liability assets Total
RERF HTEEE
BEAMBE BATE @t
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEBT BEAT BEBT
At 1 January ®—A—H 322 (5.5) 26.7
Current service cost g HRBAA 0.6 - 0.6
Interest expense FERAX 05 - 0.5
Interest income FIEWA - 0.1) (0.1)
333 (5.6) 27.7
Remeasurements: EfE:
Effects from change in financial ~ BIHBHREHNTE
assumptions (1.5) - (1.5)
Return on plan assets, excluding ~ 3fE|EEREIH -
amounts included in interest TREHAMBRAREE
income - 0.1) (0.1)
(1.5) (0.1) (1.6)
Currency translation differences EXZ%8 (1.4) 0.4 (1.0)
Contributions H®%
- Employers -Ex (13) (0.4) (1.7)
As at 31 December W+=BA=+-8H 29.1 (5.7) 234
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34 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (continued)
(b) Defined benefit plans (continued)

The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows:

34 RRERIEE (48)

(b)

RERBAE (8
FIERAMEZRERRNOT

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-)N\F

HK$M HK$M

BEER BEAT

Discount rate BRIR & 0.65% 1.8%
Future pension increase rate RAGRIRS L bE = 1% - 2% 1% - 2%
Future salary increase rate RPN e =& 0% -3% 0% - 3%

The sensitivity of the defined benefit plans to changes in

RERAMGEE MBI ZERE

the weighted principal assumptions is: @Z@Q@EQDT :
Impact on defined benefit liabilities
HRAERAEANTE
2019 2018
“E-hE —Z-N\E
Change in Increase in Decrease in ~ Changein  Increase in  Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption  assumption  assumption  assumption
BEE®  RREM  BEREL BREY BREN BIRD
HKSM HKSM HK$M HK$M
BEET HE#ER BEET HE®ET
Discount rate B % 0.50% decrease increase 0.50% decrease 1.6 increase 2.0
by 2.1 by 2.3 1.6 #102.0
A2 2.3
Pension increase rate iR IE 0L & 0.50% increase  decrease 0.25% increase 0.9 decrease 0.7
by 1.0 by 1.0 $£1n0.9 w407
#1m1.0 HA1.0

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an
assumption while holding all other assumptions constant.
In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of
the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the
sensitivity of the defined benefit obligations to significant
actuarial assumptions the same method (present value
of the defined benefit obligations calculated with the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting
period) has been applied as when calculating the pension
liabilities recognised within the consolidated balance sheet.
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e B RMEE
35 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES 35 B EEREEMERFIE

2019 2018
—g-hE —T-NF
HK$M HK$M
BEAT HEAET
Trade payables S EMNRIE 639.3 1,042.9
Contract liabilities (Note (i) A8 E (M) 40.0 25.4
Other taxes payable HAth fe A 5818 67.5 70.9
Accrued salaries and employee benefits et # e RMEE B 143.5 159.3
Provision for claims and contingencies RERKAFIEEE 17.7 20.5
Accrued professional expenses FERTEERR X 22.6 28.9
Asset retirement obligations BERBEET 72.8 84.8

Other payables and accruals (Note (ii) EmENRIBERETER
(B E iy ) 160.1 410.2
1,163.5 1,842.9

Less: non-current portion B IEmENER

Asset retirement obligations BEREEMT (72.8) (84.8)
Other payables H M fE T RRIB (23.8) (25.9)
1,066.9 1,732.2
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35 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES
(continued)

Notes:
(i) Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the current

35

B 5 R MEMENFUR
(&)

B eE
0] A OR ERER RS

TERINFAAREHMAERN LEEE

reporting period relates to carried-forward contract liabilities. # 8 BB Was -
2019 2018
—E-hEF —T—)\F
HK$M HK$M
HEBT BEBT
Revenue recognised that was included in the BEEEVEHEEBERNA
contract liabilities balance at the beginning of BB iR U
the year 25.4 17.9
(ii) As at 31 December 2018, the balance included the contingent consideration (ii) R-ZZE—N\E+_A=+—8 #%HBE
payable with respect to the acquisition of Scholz Group and its debt R RNERUREIER R EE R EES
restructuring programme in 2016. In 2019, the directors of the Company SMHTEEENENIAREB-RZ=Z—A

considered the Group's obligation for the contingent consideration was
released as the predetermined conditions were not met.

The aging analysis of the trade payables based on invoice date
was as follows:

F R GRM W AREER - AR EE
ERBARERMINREZRHCER

S RNFRREEE A RO
LINE

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-)N\F

HKS$M HK$M

EE- - BEAT

0 - 90 days 0&90H 601.3 1,007.9
91 — 180 days 91£180H 12.5 14.9
Over 180 days HBiB180H 25.5 20.1
639.3 1,042.9

The carrying amounts of the trade, bills and other payables
approximate their fair values.
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36 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 36 kEREID eI A
Assets at
fair value

Assets at

amortisation

Assets at through the
fair value other

through  comprehensive

cost profit or loss income Total
BATEA
REBHRE ROATLHETA Htt2E
SRz EE BRvEE WEzEE @zt
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEET BEER BEET BEET
31 December 2019 “E-hE+=ZB=+-H
Assets as per consolidated balance sheet ~ GABEEBERZEE
Trade, bills and other receivables 25 EER
excluding non-financial assets Hib R
TEEFEREAE 1,081.0 - - 1,081.0
Fixed return investment EEEHREE 88.4 - - 88.4
Amount due from related parties FEM BT 75 508 41.9 - - 479
Derivative financial instruments fTEemIA - 25.0 - 25.0
Pledged bank deposits BERRITER 191.7 - - 191.7
Cash and cash equivalents Re kAL SFEER 784.8 - - 784.8
Financial assets at fair value through BROTFEFABREZ
profit or loss SREE - 1.9 - 1.9
Financial assets at fair value through other AT EzF A
comprehensive income E2ENE 2
EREE - - 98.7 98.7
Other non-current assets, excluding HimeaeE
non-financial assets TEEFEREE 5.5 - - 55
Total @t 2,199.3 26.9 98.7 2,324.9
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36 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

il

36 REMEDcEBMITA (&)

Assets at
fair value
Assets at through the
Assets at fair value other
amortisation through comprehensive
cost profit or loss income Total
BAFETA
REERA  BRTERA Hit2E
SR BE B BE WmvEE @it
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEBT BEATL BEAT BEATL
31 December 2018 “E-\FtZA=t-H
Assets as per consolidated balance sheet ~ GABEERERCEE
Trade, bills and other receivables excluding 25 Z15 & E it el 508 -
non-financial assets TREEEHEE 1,484.1 - - 1,484.1
Fixed return investment B EREE 2113 - - 2113
Amount due from related parties JE s B 75 R00E 63.2 - - 68.2
Derivative financial instruments fTEemIA - 36.1 - 36.1
Pledged bank deposits BERRITER 313.6 - - 313.6
Cash and cash equivalents Re kR eZFEER 697.1 - - 697.1
Financial assets at fair value through profit A FEFTABZZ&REE
or loss - 0.8 - 0.8
Financial assets at fair value through other R AFEF ALMEE
comprehensive income s epEE - - 111.0 111.0
Other non-current assets, excluding non-  Et3EREEE -
financial assets TaEFemEE 1.9 - - 1.9
Total @it 2,776.2 36.9 111.0 2,924.1
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36 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)

36 WEREDZERIA (&)

Other Liabilities
financial at fair value
liabilities at through
amortised profit or
cost loss Total
R R A
SRz EHM BAFEA
cHEE BEZARE st
HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEAT BEAET BEET
31 December 2019 —E-hEF
+=-HA=+—H
Liabilities as per consolidated #AEEBEBERZAR
balance sheet
Borrowings (Note) B (M5 2,795.4 - 2,795.4
Lease liabilities (Note) HEaRE (M) 761.1 - 761.1
Derivative financial instruments $74 & @ T A - 30.2 30.2
Trade, bills and other payables, &% ZE N
excluding non-financial H b fE T RUA
liabilities TEEFCRERE 828.3 - 828.3
Amounts due to related parties &< BB /5 28 37.5 - 37.5
Total et 4,422.3 30.2 4,452.5
31 December 2018 —E-N\F
+-A=+—H
Liabilities as per consolidated #EEEBERZARE
balance sheet
Borrowings (Note) &k (P5E) 3,787.6 - 3,787.6
Derivative financial instruments $74 & & T A - 20.5 20.5
Trade, bills and other payables B 5 ZiE K
excluding non-financial H th J& A< 5RIE -
liabilities TEEFCHEE 1,204.8 182.9 1,387.7
Amounts due to related parties & {5 BB /5 3118 66.3 - 66.3
Total HEr 5,058.7 203.4 5,262.1
Note: See Note 2.2.1(a) for details on the impact from changes in accounting i AR EEH L EHBERWE

policies.
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RS BRRMEE
37 PLEDGES OF ASSETS 37 EEHEM
At the end of the reporting year, the Group has pledged the E’\‘ HEFEER AEBEEEHRUATE
following assets to secure certain borrowings and general B X?{%&%$E.Z7E?fﬁ7&—
banking facilities granted to the Group: RIRTTEE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
HK$M HK$M
BEBRT BEAT
Property, plant and equipment Y BE R RE 1,905.0 1,838.3
Leasehold land and land use rights (Note) & =4 i & + hb {5 F 4
(&) - 316.4
Right-of-use assets (Note) FREEE (M) 288.2 -
Investment properties "EME 9.1 -
Inventories FE 711.7 809.7
Trade receivables 2 5 fEWGRIA 701.7 1,030.3
Pledged bank deposits DK IRRITIEK 191.7 313.6
3,807.4 4,308.3
Note: See Note 2.1.2(a) for details on the impact from changes in accounting Hex: EESHRREH 2 HEFBERWE
policies. 2.1.2(a) °
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TRe BRI EE
38 COMMITMENTS 38 E¥E
(a) Capital commitments (a) EAREIE
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, significant capital RZZE-—NFRZZT-N\F+=
expenditure contracted for but not yet incurred is as R=+—B BiHEREEZ
follows: BRERAZT:
2019 2018
ZE-NF —ZZ=-N\F
HK$M HK$M
BEABR AEBT
Capital expenditure contracted for ~ B F]QEARRGEA T BKIRESR
but not provided in the BHEOERMAS:
consolidated financial statements
in respect of:
— acquisition of property, plant and ~ — WY B K&
equipment 118.8 95.9
— additions in construction in —-REERIRE
progress 2.2 16.6
— investment in joint ventures —REAEDE 7.9 4.1
128.9 116.6
Authorised but not contracted for: B E R R4
— additions in construction —AEERIR
in progress 2.0 0.8
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38 COMMITMENTS (continued) 38 A&IE (&)

(b) Operating lease commitments - as lessee (b) REHERE-ERREA
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non- RIET AT RS S E 2 R R &
cancellable operating leases are as follows: EHEENFERENAT

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
HK$M HK$M
BEART BEAT
Note (i)
B FE )
No later than 1 year TEBR—F - 52.1
Later than 1 year and no later BR—FETERAESF
than 5 years - 79.1
Later than 5 years ERAE - 50.2
- 181.4
Note: See Note 2.1.2(a) for details on the impact from changes in Mizt: AESTERREY2TEFBRN
accounting policies. 7$2.1.2(a) ©

() Operating lease commitments - as lessor (0 ReEHFHARE-—FRHAA
The future aggregate minimum lease payments receivable BRI AT S E 2 R R &
under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: EHEENRBRENT

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-N\F

HKSM HK$M

BEERT AEBT

No later than 1 year TEBRR—F 27.9 11.9
Later than 1 year and no later BR—FETERAESF

than 5 years 41.4 41.0

Later than 5 years ERAE 32.9 316

102.2 84.5
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39 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 39 BBARS
The Group is controlled by USUMHK which owns 62.85% of REBBAEEBEG AmEEHEE
the Company's shares. The remaining 37.15% of the shares are KRR A)62.85%M% 17 B #£37.15% A% 17
widely held. The ultimate holding company of the Group is Loncin HEZFHAEAFE ASERKERA
Group Co., Ltd (incorporated in the PRC). The ultimate controlling AlREEEEER AT (RH B
party of the Group is Mr. Tu. ) o RERBBKIEHT RREE
(a) Transactions (@ =%
In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated BRE RS B ISR H A 20 o B
financial statements, the Group had the following BN REERBE_Z-NEF
transactions with its related parties during the years ended EZE—-NF+ZA=+—H1t
31 December 2019 and 2018. FEGEHERBEAFETATR
5
All of the transactions were carried out in the normal FIBRGHRAEERBEBR
course of the Group's business and on terms as agreed BHIER 57T E O GRGE
between the transacting parties. They are summarised as T FERnT
follows:
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$M HK$M
BEART AEBT
Sales of goods to MUTEHEEER
— Joint ventures —AERE 99.6 97.7
— Related parties — BT 173.3 608.1
Purchases of goods from BEUATEFREER
— An associate /N (41.3) -
— Joint ventures */\Mﬁ;\i (259.8) (279.3)
— Related parties — s (108.5) (150.2)
Interest income from REURTEFHFEHA
— Joint ventures —aEhE 1.0 1.1
— Related parties — A 0.5 2.7
Interest expense to FA T A ZREF BRI
— Related parties — (0.6) (0.6)
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39 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (continued) 39
(@) Transactions (continued)

TR 5 (F)
@ %28

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$M HK$M
BEBRT BEAT
Sales of property, plant and M TEFHEME-
equipment to = K&
— A related party ——HEEE 1.1 -
Other income from (Note (i)) RENATEAFREAKA
(PFEG))
— Joint ventures —BEDE 2.6 1.2
— Related parties — s 5.2 2.5
Administrative expenses to (Note (ii)) A LA & 5 2489
1T 2 (BT E(GD))
— Joint ventures —BEDE 0.7) (0.1)
— Related parties —RENE 7 (1.0) (2.2)
Notes: B 5
(i) Other income mainly comprised management fee income, rental (i) HWAFTZaIEERERA M

income, service income and commission income.

(ii) Administrative expenses mainly comprised management fee, lease
expense and service fee.
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39 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(b) Key management compensation (b)

(0

Key management includes chairman of the Company, all
directors, chief executive officer, chief financial officer,
chief operation officer and chief investment officer. The
compensations paid or payable to key management for
employee services are shown below:

= LUE T eI

39 BAEETRS (&)

TEEEEFMH
IREREREARAEE 2
BEE THEH BEVHEE-
BELZEENBRERER iR
HEERBMDNKENEIRE
BRI RT

2019 2018
—ZE-hF —E-)N\F
HK$M HK$M
BEBTT BHEET
Wages and salaries, including T8RS BREEEKAR
restructuring costs and other HAh 4% (- B (12 7
termination benefits 27.1 29.6
Pension costs — defined contribution 3R K S B AR — R FE R ET 2
plans 0.1 0.1
Other employee benefits Hitv (g 818 F 0.7 1.6
Total st 27.9 31.3
Year-end balances © FRER
2019 2018
— —E-N\F
HKS$M HK$M
BHEET ABEETT
Receivables from: FEUUA T & 5 5808
— Joint ventures (Note (i) — & B E (W) 33.9 38.3
— Related parties (Note (i) — 5 (MI5EQ)) 14.0 29.9
47.9 68.2
Payables to: JEAT AT % 5 508 -
— Joint ventures (Note (ii)) — & (i) (15.5) (29.6)
— Related parties (Note (ii)) —EAE 7 (B REGi)) (22.0) (36.7)
(37.5) (66.3)

EeRREBERAT

—Z2-nEFR 253
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RSB HRRMEE

39 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (continued) 39 B@lAERS (8)
(c) Year-end balances (continued) () FREEer (&)
Notes: Bt 5 -
(i) The receivables from joint ventures and related parties include trade (i) A ERERBB T RIEREYE
receivables and other receivables. Trade receivables are repayable DI FIA R KW IH-E 5
within 60 days, and other receivables are repayable on demand. Both fEW R IBARG0R AEE M H b
of them are unsecured and non-interest bearing. FEMCGRIERI AR EREE - ZM A
RIBY AEEA RS
(i) The payables to joint ventures and related parties include trade (i) EREECERBBTREREYE
payables and other payables. Trade payables are repayable within 60 SRNFEREMENKE-E S
days, and other payable are repayable on demand. Both of them are FEA FRIBARG0R AEE - M HAb
unsecured and non-interest bearing. R RIERI AR EREER - ZM A
RIBY AEEA RS
40 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 40 FESE Mg
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) E=HBE
The remuneration of the directors for the years ended 31 HE_Z-NFRZZ-N\F
December 2019 and 2018 is set out below: TZA=+—HLEEEZESS
BHEL ST
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and  Performance scheme Other
Fees  allowances bonus  contributions benefits Total
BRER
Year ended 31 December 2019 e HeREE REEA S 2 ER Eh
BE-Z-AEtZASt-HLERE HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
BEET BEER AERR RERT BEER BERR
Executive directors: BES:
Mr. Tu BEE - 2.6 3.5 - - 6.1
Mr. Qin Yongming (“Mr. Qin) RKAELE ([REE])
(Note (i) (WF3EG)) - 52 40 - 07 9.9
Mr. Wong Wun Lam (“Mr. Wong") BRREE([EEE])
(Note (i) (BiEE(i)) - 3.0 - - - 3.0
Non-executive directors: FUTES:
Dr. Loke Yu BEHEL 03 - - - - 03
Ms. Qian Liping BEERT 03 - - - - 03
Mr. Zhu HongChao (Note (i) Rk (i) 03 - - - - 0.3
0.9 10.8 15 - 0.7 19.9
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TmE M PR aRMEE

40 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 40 EBEBRM N (8)
(continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) () E=ME (&)
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and  Performance scheme Other
Fees allowances bonus  contributions benefits Total

BT
Year ended 31 December 2018 Be  FeREH FAfL HE LSS HiiEH b
BE-E-N\E+-A=t-BLEE HK$M HK$M HK§M HKSM HK$M HK§M

BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BB BEAT
Executive directors: iTES:
Mr. Tu REE - 23 36 - - 5.9
Mr. Qin (Note (i) Z5 4 (F6) - 5.0 42 - 0.6 98
Mr. Wong (Note (i) ERE (W) - 26 12 - - 38
Non-executive directors: FYTES:
Dr. Loke Yu BEHEL 03 - - - 03
Ms. Qian Liping BEYLL 03 - - - 03
Mr. Zhu HongChao (Note (iii) Fok s (M) 02 - - - 02
Mr. Zhu Dajian (Note (iv)) FARBAE (W) 0.1 - - - 0.1
0.9 9.0 - 0.6 204

Notes: B 5T
(i) Mr. Qin was also the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and his (i) EEETRARATITHES  BY

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered by
him as Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Qin resigned as the Chief Executive
Officer with effect from 1 March 2020.

Mr. Wong was also the Chief Financial Officer of the Company and
his emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered by
him as Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Wong resigned as executive director
and the Chief Financial Officer with effect from 20 December 2019.

Mr. Zhu HongChao was appointed as independent non-executive
director on 18 April 2018 and resigned with effect from 19 February
2020.

Mr. Zhu Dajian retired as independent non-executive director on 12
June 2018.

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
the directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
None of the directors waived any emoluments during both years.

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

EeRREBERAT

EXREEZMEBEMREET
BAEHPTRERB M N2 ME -
RELCHETRASR 8=-F=
TE=ZA—HBER

BAEENMARAEERVBE &
REXEBEZHER2ERBEET
& E S PR AR A T sk A 2 B
S EBERECDHERTESLER
BKE BT NE+=A=+
HiB AR

IHBEEER-Z2—N\FEHA
TN\BEEERBIIFENTES
WEBT B-_Z-_TF_A+h
BB AR

FRREER T N\FXRA+=
REREBIIFRITES-

REEFE REEREATTE
FARERSHFALINMEES
R B1 AN AR AN AR SR B B Y B2 D
SERERAE - HEEEXMRE
FEREEMBE -

—E-NEFEFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB HRRMEE

40 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

(b)

(0

(d)

(e)

Directors’ retirement benefits

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
made contributions to the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme for Mr. Tu, Mr. Qin and Mr. Wong in the
amount of HK$18,000, HK$18,000 and HK$18,000,
respectively (2018: HK$18,000, HK$18,000 and
HK$18,000, respectively).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
did not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2018: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and controlled entities
with such directors

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, there were no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate by and controlled
entities with such directors.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the financial year
(2018: Nil).
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40 BEREAM MR (8)

(b)

(9]

(d)

(e)

EEERNER
REBEE=ZE—NF+=-A=+—
BLEFE - RARAADANAERE
ERmEAEREREERE SRS
M AR ETEI1E 4 3018,0007%5
JT ~ 18,0007 7T 118,000/ 7T ( —
T—N\F: 55 418,000% T
18,0007 7T }.18,000/5 7T ) °

RREAEERBEMEAE=FREH
ZE
REBE-_ZT-NAF+_A=1+—
HIFFE ARBLEpLIRMHE
ERBMAERNE=TZNRE
(ZF—N\F:8|)-

EREREE BERESES
HERARREGEESLEE
HNEENER BUERERH
35 HnER
RZE-NEFERZZE-N\F+=
A=+—H BELNEE HEH#H
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EHETHNERAYTANE
FBUEBERREMRZEHE-

BEENXS RYBEHNFTZE
Kz

R B BT ST (] B AR S [ 2
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41

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R MBI RMTEE
BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 41 EBeft
In 2018, the Group acquired substantially all assets and RZZE— NG REEP2108EET (4
operations of BNC Recycling Inc (“BNC"), which was principally 1,650& 7% 7T ) YWEEBNC Recycling Inc
engaged in recycling of ferrous and non-ferrous metals in ([BNCJ) (FEREBRILEMRIEE
northeast area of USA, for US$2.1 million (approximately ERERENEESRE) 2BRMBOEE
HK$16.5 million). E R
As a result of the acquisition, the Group is expected to enhance W TR AEBERRE AT EARE
the Group's processing coverage and sales channels especially in B MTEBHENMEERE LER
the northeast area of USA. BRI EPH[E o
The following table summarises the consideration paid for TRBMKEBNCEB 2N 2 RE R
acquisition of business of BNC, the fair value of assets acquired WHBBEWEEERMEEZAEZ
and liabilities assumed on the acquisition date: NE:
2018
—ZE-N\F
HK$M
ER-2c
Consideration: RE:
— cash consideration - ReaRE 8.1
— consideration payable (Note (i) — ERHRAE (BEEG)) 8.4
Total consideration BRE 16.5
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets acquired EWRERHFIEERFIREAEZ
and liabilities assumed: ReE:
Property, plant and equipment mE - BB R&E 0.5
Intangible assets mpEE 16.0
Total identifiable net assets ARl EERE 16.5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB HRRMEE

41 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 41 EBEO (&)

Cash flows involved in the acquisition of business of BNC is
summarised as follows:

BRBEBNCEB 2R RER AN

T

2018
—E-N\F
HK$M
BEAT

Cash consideration paid ENEeRE
Add: cash and cash equivalents acquired mn:FER e &
ReEEER

Net cash outflows of cash
— investing activities

REntFE-—RELY

Note:

(i) Cash consideration of US$0.6 million (equivalent to HK$4.7 million) was
settled in 2019 while the remaining cash consideration of US$0.4 million will
be settled in January 2020.

Acquisition-related costs of approximately HK$0.6 million were
charged to administrative expenses in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Since the acquisition, the business operation and financial
reporting of BNC has been fully integrated within the North
American segment. Revenue and profit of BNC since the
acquisition date, and had it been acquired on 1 January 2018,
were insignificant to the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MM RRMEE
42 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 42 EEMRRRE

Reconciliation from (loss)/profit before income tax to cash

BATSTA (BER) IEFIEELEME

generated from operations: Re ¥R
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HKSM HK$M
HEBT BEBT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHHERERE
(Loss)/Profit before income tax BRETISRLAT (E51R) 5 F (99.5) 469.4
Adjustments for: AT EEFAE:
Finance costs (Note 10) BATERCAR (M43510) 236.2 412.7
Finance income (Note 10) B A (KizE10) (23.6) (36.6)
Dividend income (Note 6) iz B WA (K5E6) (4.8) (3.5)
Depreciation and amortisation (Note 8) WEL#EE (H:ES) 422.5 381.3
Fair value loss/(gain) on derivative PEEMIAZAFE
financial instruments, net (Note 7) B8 (W) F58
(BIEE7) 21 (34.7)
Fair value (gain)/loss on financial assets BAFEFABZZ
at fair value through profit or loss CRMEEANTE
(Note 7) (Mez) /B8 (FaE7) (1.7) 3.2
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - BERBENAR
plant and equipment and right-of-use CRREE Ba
assets (Note 7) (F3E7) (33.3) (29.6)
Gain on disposal of assets classified as HESHEARELHEEEY
held for sales (Note 7) Wes (MHEE7) - (109.5)
Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair ~ H&EZAFEFFABRZZ
value through profit or loss (Note 7) SREE 2 W (EE7) - (20.0)
Net reversal of impairment on TRAERBERERFE
financial assets (39.49) (36.4)
(Reversal of provision)/Provision for HE (BERRE)
inventories, net (Note 8) B FRE (MiEs) (1.9) 18.5
Provision for impairment of property, WME - -WEMREEZ
plant, and equipment (Note 7) AR (MEE7) 0.9 1.2
Compensation income (Note 7) HEwA (HEE7) - (45.3)
Loss on disposal and deregistration of HERFHETFARZES
subsidiaries (Note 7) (MFEE7) 13.7 -
Share of loss of an associate JE(LEG & A 18 0.3 0.7
Share of profit of joint ventures EihE & E R (47.6) (126.2)
Non-cash post-employment HREEELERRBEEZ
benefit expenses & FIF X (0.6) (0.6)
Net foreign exchange losses HNEE 5 185 88 (20.9) 2.4
402.4 847.0
Changes in working capital EEEEY
Decrease in inventories FERL 580.3 121.2
Decrease/(Increase) in trade, bills and 25 ZEREMEIY
other receivables KIER A, (3Gm) 508.5 (41.6)
Change in derivative financial instruments ~ $T4 SR T A& H) 23.8 1.5
Decrease in trade, bills and 25 RBEEHAM
other payables &~ FRIE R (711.4) (300.5)
803.6 627.6
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42 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

(continued)

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from
disposal of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB HRRMEE

42 REMBHRE (4

comprise:
2019 2018
ZE-NF —ZZE-N\F
HKSM HK$M
BEAR AEBT
Net book amount of property, plant and Y E R
equipment (Note 14) BREFE (KisE14) 220.1 735
Net book amount of right-of-use assets ERAEEEREFE
(Note 16) (H¥7E16) 14.5 -
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE BER&EEAR
plant and equipment and right-of-use TRAEEE K=
assets 333 29.6
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE BERRBEUAR
plant and equipment and right-of-use FREEEZFERE
assets 267.9 103.1
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42

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

(continued)

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the

in net debt for each of the years presented.

movements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TmE M PR aRMEE

REmSREE (8)

REBFEFRDTRA2INEFE
B FRER-

Liabilities from financing activities

MEEHELNAR
Lease
liabilities Lease
(2018: liabilities
Finance lease (2018: Bank Bank Other Other Note
liabilities) due ~ Finance lease  borrowings Borrowing  borrowings  borrowings  payable due
within liabilities) due due within due after due within due after within
1year  after 1year 1 year 1 year 1year 1year 1 year Total
R-FRE  R-F&3
BHERAR MHERAR
(ZB-N\F: (ZB-N\F:
MEHE BEERE R-FAIN R-FRIE R-FA38 R-FRI8 R-FrdH
af aff) WHRTER  WRTEX  HHEER NEEER  WESRR @t
Net debt as at R-B-tF
31 December 2017 +=A=+-BH
EHRE 835 1421 1,083.0 572.0 3791 4189 1,476.6 4,155.2
Proceeds/additions MRHE/RE 64.0 257.0 980.1 35.0 - 1,691.5 - 30276
Repayments BEHE (91.1) (1.5) (1,172.3) (92.6) (115.5) (431.6) (1,568.0) (3,472.6)
Other non-cash movement HindpRe 2 85.2 (85.2) 1204 (114.0) (13.1) 59.3 914 144.0
Currency translation differences ERESE (5.1) (10.1) (39.7) (11.7) - - - (66.6)
Net debt as at R-B-N\E
31 December 2018 +ZAZ+-BH
EHEE 1365 3023 971.5 388.7 250.5 1,738.1 - 3,787.6
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 ROFEMBREENL16% 2
(Note 2.1.2(a)) FE (M:2.1.26) 287 105.1 - - - - - 133.8
Restated opening balance as at RZF-NF-A-HZ
1 January 2019 @ETF A 165.2 4074 9715 3887 2505 1,738.1 - 39214
Proceeds/additions H35E/RE 145.7 246.8 697.0 343 53.1 - - 1,176.9
Repayments BEFRE (147.1) (51.6) (1,186.0) (101.0) - - - (1,485.7)
Other non-cash movement Hib R LY 302 (29.6) 84.1 (85.7) 1,739.8 (1,738.1) - 0.7
Currency translation differences [E 5 58 (2.3) (3.6) (19.3) (9.9) (21.7) - - (56.8)
Net debt as at R-B-NF
31 December 2019 TZA=t+-AH
EHEE 191.7 569.4 5473 226.4 2,021.7 - - 3,556.5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS BRRMEE
43 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 43 BEBBEXRNFEEE
Balance sheet of the Company KRRZEEEER
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Note HK$M HK$M
P BEAT AEBT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investment in subsidiaries, unlisted A F AR ZI%E - FE L™ 3,500.4 3,500.4
Investment in a joint venture, ReEBahEZRE LM
unlisted 41 -
Right-of-use assets EREEE 29.5 -
Other deposit Hhike 2.7 -
Loan receivables from a subsidiary f&U T2 RIE K 89.1 90.1
3,625.8 3,590.5
Current assets mEEE
Other receivables H g RIE 95.0 215.0
Amounts due from subsidiaries &I F A A FIA 2,335.1 2,434.2
Amount due from a related party & U B8 5 A 1.3 0.6
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFHBHER 36.1 1.8
2,467.5 2,651.6
Total assets EERE 6,093.3 6,242.1
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Equity attributable to ARERRELER
shareholders of the company
Share capital & 29 16.1 16.1
Reserves f# 3,785.0 3,998.5
Total equity BRER 3,801.1 4,014.6
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RMEE
43 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 43 BEBEBEXRMHHEEE (B)
(continued)
Balance sheet of the Company (continued) KRRz EEAER (B)
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Note HK$M HK$M
B 5 BHEETT BEBT
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities kRBEME
Other borrowings HAb & - 1,738.1
Lease liabilities HEAE 18.1 -
Other payables Hth fE A~ RR0E 3.0 -
21.1 1,738.1
Current liabilities REEE
Accruals and other payables FERT B A I E b JE < k0B 17.2 18.3
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTFRRIFIA 523.5 4711
Lease liabilities HEBE 8.6 -
Other borrowings HMER 1,721.8 -
2,271.1 489.4
Total liabilities waf 2,292.2 2,227.5
Total equity and liabilities HEZRERE 6,093.3 6,242.1
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of RRARZEEABROESTSETEN_Z
Directors on 12 May 2020 and was signed on its behalf: ZEFRA+TZAMETHEATESR
REE:
Mr. Tu Jianhua Mr. Qin Yongming
REBEELE FXBEE
Director Director
EE EF
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RSB HRRMEE

43 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 43 BEEBEBEXRLHEHEZS (B)
(continued)
Reserves movement of the Company KRR ZRERE
Capital
Share  redemption Capital Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
EAARER
i aE 1k N 2 EE st
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT
(Note (i)
(PREEG))
At 1 January 2018 RZE-N\F
—H—H 59119 0.3 216.2 (1,616.8) 4,511.6
Loss for the year FREE - - - (513.1) (513.1)
Total comprehensive loss FRNEHEEBERE
for the year - - - (513.1) (513.1)
At 31 December 2018 RZZB-N\F+_-A
=+—A 59119 0.3 216.2 (2,129.9) 3,998.5

264 cChiho Environmental Group Limited  Annual Report 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= LUE T eI

43 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 43 BEEBEBEXRLHEHEZS (B)
(continued)
Reserves movement of the Company (continued) KRR ZHEERE (F)
Capital
Share redemption Capital Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
BAREE
17 E 51 EXRE RtER Bt
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM

BEER BEER

BEBR HEER HEBR
(Note (i)

(BHEEG))

At 1 January 2019 RZZE-NEF

—H—H 5911.9 0.3 216.2 (2,129.9) 3,998.5
Loss for the year FRBE - - - (213.5) (213.5)
Total comprehensive loss FRNEEERELE

for the year - - - (213.5) (213.5)

At 31 December 2019 RZE—-NF

+-A=+—H 5,911.9 0.3 216.2 (2,343.4) 3,785.0
Note: B &
(i) Capital reserve represents the sum of (a) the difference between the nominal (i) BAFBEEQARATNIR-_ZT/\FEEE

value of the aggregate share capital and share premium of the subsidiaries
acquired by the Company upon a group reorganisation in 2008 and the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange and (b) a
capitalisation of shareholders’ loans in 2010.

ARBAEEFRARARBRDBEAE L
E{EREARRRBBHEAETRN 2 HE
MEBERO T -ZTFEARMMBRER
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RSB HRRMEE

== ==
44  PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 44 KRB FRAIFFS
COMPANY
(a) General information of principal subsidiaries () EEFLARN-—REHR
The table below shows the subsidiaries as at 31 December TRINTEZERRN_ZE—NE
2019, which in the opinion of the Directors, principally TZA=+—BHEHAREERRKA
affect the revenue, net assets or business aspects of the FEENFEBAXFERE TR
Group. To give details of all subsidiaries would, in the Al-BERA REMBETFRARZ
opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive HEHELREBRR LK.
length.
Issued and
fully paid
Place of share capital/ Attributable equity
Place of incorporation/ registered interest and voting power
Name of subsidiary operation establishment capital held by the Group Principal activities
A BRIRBERE AREFEEGRABRR
FRARER b5 /BIBE /RRBA RERE TREH
2019 2018
ZE-AE ZF\E
Chiho-Tiande (HK) Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Purchasing agent of the
BEX (FE)ERAA Eif BiE 1T Group and wholesales
of metal scrap without
processing
FEERERERBERE
MIZBESRE
Chiho Eco Protection Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
BEGeRRERAT B BB 10,000/ 1T metal scrap and WEEE
MIRHEBELBRER
BAREFR
Taizhou Chiho-Tiande Metals Company ~ The PRC The PRC U$$108,000,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
Limited** HE # 108,000,000% 7T metal scrap
aMEER e BERAR! MIRHERELR
Chiho Environmental (Suyang) Resources  The PRC The PRC RMBS5,000,000 100% - Processing and sales of
Recycling Company Limited** # f AR 5,000,000 metal scrap
ERRRAEER (NG BRAR MIRHERLELE
Chiho-Tiande (YanTai) Resources The PRC The PRC US$40,000,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
Recycling Company Limited** HE 7 40,000,000% 7T metal scrap
BEXM (ER)BEERERAR" MIRHERELR
Yantai Liheng Environmental Protection ~ The PRC The PRC RMB55,150,000 60% 60%  Processing and sales of
Technology Company Limited** # f AR 55,150,0007T lubricating oil
EaTERRRHEERAA MIRHEEHRR
Dalian New Green Recycle & Resources ~ The PRC The PRC JPY 8,566,011,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
Corporation** HE # 8,566,011,0008 metal scrap
AEFEBEERNIBRAR" MIRHERELR

*  For identification purpose only

*  Limited liability company
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TmE M PR aRMEE

== NS EEE (4
44  PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 44 KRB ZFRAFFE (B)
COMPANY (continued)
(a) General information of principal subsidiaries (a) EEFRARN—REHR (F)
(continued)
Issued and
fully paid
Place of share capital/ Attributable equity
Place of incorporation/ registered interest and voting power
Name of subsidiary operation establishment capital held by the Group Principal activities
A BRIRBERS AREREERAERR
FRARER b3k /BIBE /RRBA REE TREH
2019 2018
ZE2-hE  ZE-N\%
Heng Hup Chiho Recycling Malaysia Malaysia RM4,000,000 51% - Processing of metal scrap
(Malaysia) SDN. BND. ERAD SRAD 4,000 0005 RERLE MIBEER
Hidaka-Chiho Metal Recycling (Thailand) ~ Thailand Thailand Baht78,750,000 45.7% - Processing and sales of
Company Limited* ZE ZE 78,750,000% metal scrap
MIRHEBLLE
Delco Europe B.V. The Netherlands The Netherlands EUR18,151 100% 100%  Purchasing agent of the
i i 18,1518 Group
REBZRBRE
Fegert Recycling GmbH Germany Germany EUR84,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
28 = 84,0008 T metal scrap
MIRHERELR
Scholz Industrieservice GmbH Germany Germany EUR50,000 100% 100%  Providing industrial and
&a &E 50,0008! 70 logistic services
RETERDRRS
Scholz Recycling GmbH Germany Germany EUR100,000,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
(&5 Bk 100,000,0008/ 7T metal scrap
MIRHEBELRE
SIV Immobilien Verwaltungs GmbH Germany Germany EUR25,000 100% 100%  Purchase and administration
=8 zE 25,00081 7 of real estate
BEREERIE
Scholz Management Service GmbH Germany Germany EUR25,000 100% 100%  Providing services to group
2R =z 25,0081 companies
RERBTEERT
# The Group controls the board of directors # rEEZHESE
BEEREEEARAR ZE-NFER
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== NS EEE (4
44  PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 44 KRB ZFRAFFE (B)
COMPANY (continued)
(a) General information of principal subsidiaries (a) ETEFLRARN—REHR (F)
(continued)
Issued and
fully paid
Place of share capital/ Attributable equity
Place of incorporation/ registered interest and voting power
Name of subsidiary operation establishment capital held by the Group Principal activities
A BROIRARRA AREREERAERR
FRARER b3k /BIBE /RRBA REE TREH
2019 2018
“E-NE ZTN\%
SRW metalfloat GmbH Germany Germany EUR1,000,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
] &E 1,000,0008! 70 metal scrap
MIRHEBLLE
Liberty Iron & Metal, Inc. USA USA US$3,100 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
B ZB 310057 metal scrap
MIRHEBELE
Uniscrap A/S Denmark Denmark DKK20,003,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
E E 20,003,000 % 52 5 metal scrap
MIRHERELR
Uniscrap Sverige AB Sweden Sweden SEK100,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
i gl 100,000 572 5 metal scrap
MIRHEREER
Scholz Polska Sp. z.0.0. Poland Poland PLN88,501,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
it | i 88,501,000 &2 metal scrap
MIRHEBELRE
Scholz Austria Holding Gmbh Republic of Austria Republic of Austria EUR35,000 100% 100%  Holding company
B FIAME BiFILME 35,0008 7T BRAT
Kovosrot Group CZ s.r.o. Czech Republic Czech Republic (ZK499,834,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
RRLME R LME 499,834,008 7 2 5 metal scrap
MIRHEERLER
Sberne suroviny, a.s. Czech Republic Czech Republic (ZK61,217,000 79.6% 79.6%  Processing and sales of
ERANE R ANE 61,217,000 7 52 56 metal scrap
MIRHERELR
DINOS d.d. Republic of Slovenia Republic of Slovenia EUR2,279,700 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
AT ATE AT £TE 2,279,70080 7T metal scrap
MIRHERESRE
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44 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

(b) Significant restrictions

(0

Cash and short-term deposits held in the PRC are subject
to local exchange control regulations. These regulations
provide for restrictions on exporting capital from the PRC,
other than through normal dividend.

The carrying amount of the assets included within the
consolidated balance sheet to which these restrictions apply
is HK$396.7 million (2018: HK$544.5 million).

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interest

The non-controlling interests of all non-wholly owned
subsidiaries are individually not material to the Group.

45 CONTINGENCIES

(a)

The Company is one of the defendants to a legal claim
by Delco regarding an alleged non-payment of a portion
of the loans advanced by Delco Asia to subsidiaries of the
Company, amounting to approximately HK$57.8 million
together with interest and costs. Delco alleged that it
acquired the assets and liabilities of Delco Asia in 2011.
Delco Asia was dissolved by deregistration in 2012. Each
of Mr. Fang and HWH undertook to the Company to
indemnify and hold the Company harmless on demand
against all losses arising out of, inter alia, this claim in
accordance with the terms of a letter of indemnity signed
by Mr. Fang and HWH in favour of the Company on 17
December 2015 (the “Indemnity”).

The court case is still in progress. The directors of the
Company, after taking legal advice from its legal advisers
and in review of the Indemnity and the Escrow Account,
are of the opinion that it is not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle this claim. Accordingly, no provision of this claim has
been made.

VIV VIN/N

(b)

(9]

= LUE T eI

Bl F RIS (8)

ERRH

REBEBEZRES REREFERE
ST E M ANE E BUER - % FE
MY B P BIE B A R -
HEVAIE & B B 77 SER S

REEAEBBRANERAZER
#l 2 & E R HE (A A3189,6708 8
(ZZF— N\F:5(84,4508 &

o

b T i

~

BHEXFRRESZHRT
AR ZRHE
2HE2AFATL LR
YARE BN ELREA-

45 S IREIR

(a)

EeRREBERAT

XN A FBDelcodt B MR E R
Delco Asia# T A2 &) F A A&
OB RS EEL5,7808 B LiE R
FMERABERAMERAEER
BRI E A Z — e DelcoBTBEE
RZZT——FUWH#EDelco Asiafy &
ExBE-R=_2— =% Delco
AsiaABUEE M T BB - 5 e
RHWHE B AR R a5 - R i&
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TR R -

—E-hEEH
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45

46

CONTINGENCIES (continued)

(b)  The Company and Chiho-Tiande (HK) Limited (“CTHK"), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, are two of the
defendants to another legal claim by Delco regarding an
alleged breach of a letter of undertaking in relation to a
convertible bond issued by the Company and subscribed for
by Delco. Delco further claimed against CTHK for a sum of
US$1.0 million, allegedly advanced by Delco Asia to CTHK.
Delco further claimed interests, costs and further or other
relief of approximately HK$6.3 million.

The court case is still in progress. The directors of the
Company, after taking legal advice from its legal advisers,
are of the opinion that it is not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle this claim. Accordingly, no provision of this claim has
been made.

() As at 31 December 2019, the Group does not have any
contingent liabilities (2018: HK$27.4 million) which consist
of non-financial guarantee in favour of investee entities.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

After the COVID-19 outbreak in early 2020, a series of
precautionary and control measures were firstly enforced in
China, and later in Europe and the US as some measures in China
began to uplift. The Group is closely monitoring the development
of the COVID-19 outbreak and its disruption to business and
economic activities.

As at the date of this report, the management of the Group
has assessed the overall impact of the situation on the Group's
operations and financial position and concluded that there are
no material effects on the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019. As at the date of this
report, management is unable to reliably estimate the financial
impact of COVID-19 on the Group’s financial results for the year
ending 31 December 2020 as the pandemic has yet to run its full
course hence the current situation is still fluid. The Directors shall
continuously assess the impact of COVID-19 on its operations as
well as the financial position for the year ending 31 December
2020.

270 Chiho Environmental Group Limited  Annual Report 2019

45

46

A EIE (4E)

(b) ARFREARBZEZETFRAE
AR (BB)BRAR([BE
&) BDelcogt BB E R AR
B)AT3 1T K DelcofTRME 2 Al A%
BEH T K 2 s I T 3R R Y
BREARRRNEPMEEE
Ac Delcoit —HMBEGBEAHR
SE1008FE L ZHBREEH
Delco Asia®\ s F 75 & &% ° Delco
BERME RERE—PRHE
thER PR e L6308 BT

RRREEETH -BEBAR
AERERMNERERR AR
AEER/BEMRBETAES
BUSBERN AR o Fut - WL
B REFE LB -

(0 WRZZE—hAF+=-_A=+—8"
REEWEIMBIERREETE
AZEANIESRIERNNAE
B(ZB—\F:2,740887T) °

Hi8%E15

RN-ZZE T FFYIEECOVID-19%%
—RYEH RESEEE L EPE R
BREBNEERER mETHESH
TATE R B AR RR o AR E IE R V) ER BT
COVID-197 BB R L ¥ 275 R E B
EEZEE-

NSRS B AEEEREDMZIB
MEAREEEE NI BRROBETE
EHFGTRAEBE_TE—NF+=
A=+—RALFENGAEMBRRTE
BEAFE - RARERL AREBD
EERE ERMRRDIAEE EEESE
SERAI S COVID- 198 AEBRE - T
—EF+ A=+ BHULFEUMBES
TSR 8 - BB EEFTHCOVID-19
HHEBEULRBEE T -_TF+ - A
—t+—BHUEFEUBRANTE-



5-Year Financial Summary

hFUBRE

Summary of selected items of consolidated statement of HFEERRBEHAYE
profit and loss

For the year ended 31 December

HET-A=T-HLEE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
ZE-NE T\ ZT—+F ZT-RF ZT-IF
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M

BEEER ASET AEAT  ABERT  ASATR

Revenue Wz 15,363.4 20,912.8 18,491.0 3,211.4 3,136.6
(Loss)/Profit before income tax BATERA (EB),/5F (99.5) 469.4 546.2 (4436)  (1,1437)
Income tax (expense)/credit FEH (FX) /#% (34.3) (70.4) (110.6) 0.4 (0.3)

(Loss)/Profit attributable to: TR ER (BB) /57
Shareholders of the Company ARFRR (128.7) 401.2 426.8 (439.9) (1,138.8)
Non-controlling interests FmRER (5.1) 2.2) 8.8 (3.3) (5.2)
(133.8) 399.0 435.6 (443.2) (1,144.0)

Summary of selected items of consolidated balance sheet #&EEABERETREME

As at 31 December

R+-A=1+—H

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-hF —“T-N\& —T—+HF —T-RF —T-1%
HKS'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BERT EBEAT EBHEBST BEBT BEARL

Asset BE
Current assets REBEE 4,039.4 5,329.5 6,022.2 6,602.3 4,920.3
Non-current assets ERBEE 6,150.6 6,058.0 6,071.5 5,183.4 1,117.6
Total assets BEHLE 10,190.0 11,387.5 12,093.7 11,785.7 6,037.9

Liabilities =8
Current liabilities mEEE 3,996.5 3,298.0 5,365.2 5,032.9 1,481.1
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 1,262.5 2,943.6 1,681.4 2,668.4 143.0
Total liabilities BEBE 5,259.0 6,241.6 7,046.6 7,7013 1,624.1
4,931.0 5,145.9 5,047.1 4,084.4 4,413.8

Equity attributable to: &7 bR

Shareholders of the Company ARARIRE 4,941.3 5,175.3 5,073.1 41172 4,487.9
Non-controlling interests R R (10.3) (29.4) (26.0) (32.8) (74.1)

4,931.0 5,145.9 5,047.1 4,084.4 44138
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Corporate Information

RIAEN

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Qin Yongming (Chairman)

Mr. Tu Jianhua

Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed with effect from 1 March 2020)

Mr. Wong Wun Lam (Chief Financial Officer)
(resigned with effect from 20 December 2019)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Loke Yu
Ms. Qian Liping
Mr. Ko Frankie Andrew
(appointed with effect from 19 February 2020)
Mr. Zhu Hongchao
(resigned with effect from 19 February 2020)

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Mr. Qin Yongming (Chairman)

Mr. Tu Jianhua

Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed with effect from 1 March 2020)

Mr. Wong Wun Lam (Chief Financial Officer)
(resigned with effect from 20 December 2019)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Dr. Loke Yu (Chairman)
Ms. Qian Liping
Mr. Ko Frankie Andrew
(appointed with effect from 19 February 2020)
Mr. Zhu Hongchao
(resigned with effect from 19 February 2020)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Qin Yongming (Chairman)
Dr. Loke Yu
Ms. Qian Liping
Mr. Ko Frankie Andrew
(appointed with effect from 19 February 2020)
Mr. Zhu Hongchao
(resigned with effect from 19 February 2020)
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Ko Frankie Andrew (Chairman)
(appointed with effect from 19 February 2020)
Dr. Loke Yu
Ms. Qian Liping
Mr. Zhu Hongchao
(resigned with effect from 19 February 2020)

STRATEGY AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Qin Yongming (Chairman)
Mr. Tu Jianhua
Mr. Goh Kian Guan
Mr. Wong Wun Lam
(resigned with effect from 20 December 2019)
Mr. William Thomas Bird
(resigned with effect from 24 October 2019)

PRICING COMMITTEE

Mr. Qin Yongming (Chairman)
Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan

(appointed with effect from 1 March 2020)
Mr. Udo Langhans
Mr. Wong Wun Lam

(resigned with effect from 20 December 2019)
Mr. William Thomas Bird

(resigned with effect from 24 October 2019)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Tu Jianhua
Ms. Yiu Yi Ting

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Mr. Wong Wun Lam
(resigned with effect from 20 December 2019)
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COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Yiu Yi Ting

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

LEGAL ADVISORS

Conyers Dill & Pearman (Cayman Islands)
DLA Piper (Hong Kong)

Deacons (Hong Kong)

Dechert (Hong Kong)

LC Lawyers LLP (Hong Kong)

Zhejiang Xingce Law Firm (China)
Latham & Watkins LLP (Germany)

CMS Hasche Sigle (Germany)

Menold Bezler (Germany)

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Bank of China

Agricultural Bank of China

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank

KeyBank National Association

REGISTERED OFFICE IN CAYMAN ISLANDS

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands
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KeyBank National Association
FERSTMiER
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
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REGISTERED OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

48 Wang Lok Street
Yuen Long Industrial Estate
Hong Kong

GROUP HEADQUARTERS

23/F., Infinitus Plaza
199 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN THE PRC

No. 8, Baijin Road

Taizhou Renewable Metal Resources Industry Base
Lugiao, Taizhou

Zhejiang

The PRC

HEADQUARTERS IN EUROPE

Berndt-Ulrich-Scholz-Str. 1
73457 Essingen
Germany

HEADQUARTERS IN NORTH AND CENTRAL
AMERICA

2144 W. McDowell Road
Phoenix, AZ 85004
USA 85009

* For business addresses of other principal operational bases of the Group, please refer
to the Company’s website
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HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

WEBSITE

www.chihogroup.com

STOCK CODE
Hong Kong Stock Exchange 976

276 Chiho Environmental Group Limited  Annual Report 2019

EBROBRRBPAE

BERETREFELERA

BB
AT
EfFRER1835

BN T7HE
1712-1716%% 48

AERETERNELMBFE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

NSIEEN
www.chihogroup.com

R AR SR
BBBRZFAT976



CHIHO ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED
EeRAREERRAH

48 Wang Lok Street,
Yuen Long Industrial Estate, Hong Kong

FHE A T UPRGH485%

Tel E55%: (852) 2587 7700 / (852) 2589 3500

Fax {§E: (852) 2587 7799
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